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Providing partnerships
through our depth and
breadth of services.

At Mears, we are addressing some of the biggest
challenges our country faces quality sociat housing,
building communities and providing exceptional care.
in partnership with our Social Housing clients, we maintain, repair and

upgrade the homes of hundreds of thousands of people 1n communities
from remote rural villages to large inner-city estates

Our Care teams provide support to arcund 20,000 people on a dally basis,
enabling older and disabled people to continue living in their own homes
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Highlights of the year

Operational highlights

« Strategy focused on two growth sectors
« Differentiated service delivery continues to drive organic growth
* Qutlook s positive and we are well placed for continued growth
« Further investment in Mears Nurseplus infrastructure, driving organic growth

+ Emergence of new commissiening models in Care market, Torbay success
represents a crucial milestone

« Extension of Social Housing activittes into broader housing management,
Omega performing strongly

* Cantinue to drive margin improvements from enlarged Social Housing business

« Order book of £3 3 billian, 92% visibility of consensus forecast revenues for 2015
and 82% for 2016

Read more about our gperational
performance on pages 26 to 33

Financial highlights

* Revenue of £838 7m (2013 £865 &m), following the anticipated normalisation
of the ex-Mcrrisen revenue run-rate

+ Social Housing operating margin increased to 4 8% (2013 4 5%),
driven primartly by the improving margins being generated from the
ex-Morrison business

« Record profit before tax of £42 0m (2013 continuing activities £39 3m),
growth of 7%

+ Normalised diluted EPS of 32 20p (2013 28 06p), growth of 15%
« Excellent EBITDA cash conversion from cortinuing activiies of 96% (2013 103%)
* New contract wins In excess of £300m

« Social Housing awards of £170m with a conversion rate of 35%
(2013 £420m and 32%)

+ Care awards of £130m with a conversion rate of 73% (2013 £86m and 69%)

» Strong balance sheet with average net debt of £59 0m (2013 £70 Om),
net cash at 31 December of £3 8m {2013 net debt £0 4m) and closing
core debt of £75 Om following acquisition of Omega

» Prograssive dividend policy, Increasing total dividend by 14%, closely tracking
growth in earnings, to 10 Op per share (2013 & 8p)

Read more about our financial
performance on pages 34 to 37

Group revenue {Em)t

£838.7m

2014 8387
2013 8656
2012 6172

20M 5235

2010 4798

Group operating profit {Em)*!

£43.0m

2014 430
2013 411
2012 328

2011 324

2010 298

Dividend per share {p)

10.00p

2014 10 00
2013 8 BO
2012 8 00

20M 750

2010 675

Normalised diluted earmings
per share {p)**

32.20p

2014 3220
2013 2806
2012 25 60

20Mm 26 01

2010 23 38

* Before acquisition intangible
amortsation and exceptional costs

** Before acquisstion intangible
amortisation and exceptional costs
with an adjustment ta reflect a full
taxcharge

T Excludes discantinued M&E actmties
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Strategic report

Mears at a glance

We repair and maintain over 700,000
of the 5 million Social Homes in the UK.

Social Housing

Qur clients are increasingly looking for partners who can operate strategically as well as
operationally across a range of housing services Mears has extended its core reactive
and planned maintenance offering to include housing management to support chents

in delivering more integrated solutions, aligned to their strategic challenges

We provide rapid response and planned maintenance services to Local Authorities
and other Registered Social Landlords

in focus

Mears and North
Lanarkshire Councit,
aunique JV, and our
acquisttion of
Omega Lettings

pages 29 and 30
Revenue Employee numbers Office locations
£715m ¢.5,600 180
Qur breadth of services:
Revenue {Em)
o
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Planned and cyclical maintenance Fuel poverty initiatives Operating profit (Em)
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Grounds maintenance Capital projects
Our customers: oo e
[= I e T o K oo TN v ]
NN N NN
* Local Authorities * Tenants and service users
* Registered Sociat Landlords * Community groups

* Private Landlords

Read more about our
Social Housing markets
on page 08
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We provide personal care to over 20,000 etderly
and disabled people in their own home, on a daily basis.

Care

We have a comprehensive range of domiciliary care and complex care services enhanced by
the ability to deliver & range of housing adaptations and assistive technology such as telecare
The range of services enables us to deliver broad solutions to the independent living challenges
faced by so many elderly people, as well as younger people with physical or mental disabilities

We provide high quality and flexible care for older and disabled people who want
to continue living in their own homes

Revenue Employee numbers Office locations

£124m  ¢.7,400 120

Our breadth of services.

In focus

A new commissIOnIiNg
model 1s transforming
the sector and Mears
Nurseplus, working
In partnershipwith
the NHS

Pages 31 and 32

odes oifaleng l

Independent iving service Aids and adaptations
Complex care Assistive technology (telecare}
Live-tn care Extra care

Our customers*

* Local Authorities * Comrmunity groups

* NHS * Flderly pecple

* Charities * Peoplewithlearning

and physical disabilitias

Reventue (Em)
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Operating profit (Em}

87
75

2014
2013
012
20M
2010

Read moreabout our
Care markets on page 10
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Strategic report

Chairman’s statement

We have made excellent progress in strengthening our relative
competitive position in our two growth markets

Bob Holt
Chairman

In summary

The Board remains confident in our grewth
markets and consequently expects te be able to
cantinue to follow a progressive dividend pelicy

We expect our Sociat Housing business to
continue to grow through further contract wins,
underpinned by our differentiated market-leading
service delivery

We believe the opportunities for us in Social
Housing remain very strong as our clients seek
broader solutions to their increasingly comptex
housing challenges, consequently, we will look
to add scale, depth and breadth to aur housing
management offering

We are confident that further opportunities

in Care will arise from health and social care
outsourcing and the implementation of new
tocalised commissioning models Consequentty,
we will continue to move further up the acuity
chain, with an increased focus upon organic
growth, extending our Nurseplus model

across our customers, supported by

tn-fill acquisitions

tam pleased to announce record profits for the year to 31 December 2014
and delighted to report excellent progress, particularly around
strengthening our competitive position 1n our two growth markets
We expected a reduction in Social Housing revenueas given the
normalisation of the Morrtson run-rate Group revenue amounted

10 £838 7m (2013 £865 6m), however we signficantly enhanced
our future growth prospects through the development of our
Heusing Management business, both through the acquisition of
Omega and through organic iInvestment in people and systems

We continue to drnive margin improvements with operating profit
before amortisation increasing by 5% to £43 Om (2013, before
exceptional costs £411m) Group operating margin increased to
5 3% (2013 5 0%) driven pnimarily by the impraving contract margins
being generated from the ex-Mornison business Normalised
diluted earmings per share on all activities was up 15% to 32 20p
(2013 28 08p) and up 7% on continuing activities {2013 30 08p)

We have 82% wisibility of consensus forecast revenue for the
current year and 1n excess of 82% wsibility for 2016

We have continued to deliver strong cash flows with cash generated
from continuing operations as a proportion of EBITDA at 96%
(2013 103%) and net cash reportedat the year end Average net
debt for the year, before the acquisition of Omega, was £568m
(2013 £70m) demenstrating continuing strong cash management

We completed the acquisition of Omega In October 2014 The
shortage of affordable, safe and secure housing 1s a significant
challenge faced by our clients today [ anticipate Local Authorities
having increased raspensibility resulting in the need to provide
more soctal homes and remove the reliance upon those private
landlords who provide properties which are not of a unifermly high
standard Omega s a logical extension to our current offering, 1t
will enhance our ability to work with housing providers to improve
the delivery of housing and property management ! am excited
by the medium-term organic growth opportunities that will be
forthcoming through the development and integratien of the
Omega busmess moda! | know that our clients welcome our
involvement in their challenge to professionalise and stabilise
financially thewr housing management activities

We are delighted to announce that we have been appointed
preferred bidder with the Department for Communities & Local
Government (DCLG) for the commercialisation of its Planning
Portal The Planning Portal s a web-based one-stop shop for
advice and guidance on planning buillding regulations and
appeals It s the sole electronic means to subnit a planning
application, with links to all Local Authorities in England and
Wales DCLG believes the portal has commerciai value as well as
opportunities toidentify other revenue streams particularly as
some 80% of planning applications go through the portal tison
this bagis that DCLG sought a partner to take on the runming costs
of the service and to help transform it into a commercial business
We ntend to take a 75% stake in the venture with DCLG This
partnership will not enly strengthen our housing management
service with matenally improved customer access but it will also
provide an opportunity to bring further services to our clients

04  Annualreport and accounts 2014 Mears Group PLC
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Although our Social Housing arder intake was impacted temporarnly
by a quieter period of new bidding opportunities our conversion of
new bidding opportunities reported an increase to 35% Thisis an
important metric and ane that will serve us well, once the bid pipeline
opportunities return o hustoric levels

In Care, as a robust high quality provider at the forefront of
change in the sector, we remain well placed strategically to take
advantage of the long-term opportunities | am delighted at the
success we heve achieved in new contract bidding Importantly,
we are seemng a cantinued mave away from frameworks towards
strategic partnerships often with langer contract lengths and
fewer providers This witl benefit us disproportionately to the rest
of the sector given our long-term partnership ethos Our award of
the Torbay & Southern Devon NHS Trust contract for Limng Well@Home
Services Is another crucial milestone in the evolution of the sector
and for Mears' posiion within it We will deliver & full range of
community-based services including personal care and more complex
services, such as healthcare at hame, community support mental
health and tearning disabilities support The contract will be for a
minimum frve year term with three potential one-year extensions
and 15 due to commence in April 2015 1t has an estimated contract
value of £50m We understand that this 1s the first trme a contract
ofthis type has been awarded to a single prime contractor in the UK

Dividend

The Board remains confident in the future opportunities in our
growth markets and consequently it expects to be able to continue
to follow & progressive dividend policy The Board has recommended
a final dividend of 715p per share which, combined with the interim
dividend gives a total dividend for the year of 10 00p {2013 8 80p),
a 14% mcrease The dividend is payable, subject to shareholder
approval at the Company s Annual General Meeting on 3 June 2015,
on 2 July 2015 to sharsholders on the register on 12 June 2015
The dividend 1s covered aver three times by the normalised diluted
earnings per share The Board regularly reviews the Group's
distribution policy to maximise returns to shareholders whilst
raintaining a prudent capital structure and investing for growth

Corporate governance and risk management

The Board continues to set itself high standards of corporate

governance Our Corporate Governance Report 1ssued within

our Annual Report will detail how we approach governance and
the areas of focus for the Board in 2014 and into the future

We have continued to invest resources In our risk management
pracess Dunngtheyear, we have redrafted the Group's policy on
fraud and anti-bribery The revised policy enhances the process
for continual review of our control effectiveness in this area
Moreover, we have delivered a fraud and anti-bribery traxning
programme nforming staff of their legal duties and to ensure
that they are aware of our policies

We have reviewed and updated the Group's risk register The semor
management teams play a central role In reviewing and challenging
the Group's nisks The Group risk team presented risk management

traiming modules to all tevels of management, via the Group
development programme, to further incrgase our strong nsk
managemant ethos We engaged KPMG as our internal audit
partner which completed a detailed audit programme on the
Group's financial nsks

Board evaluation and effectiveness review

Performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and indwvidual
Directors takes place on an annual basis This year s review was
externally facilitated, with an independent reviewer meeting with
all Board members individually The Directors were asked for their
views on a broad range of areas including Group strategy, independence,
expenence, effactivenass, shareholders and the interaction between
Board members Soms improvements were proposed and implemented
but overall it was concluded that the Board was working in an
effective and efficient manner

Qur people

| commend our employees for their commitment and energy
throughout anather significant year for the Group | continue
to be impressed by their quality, professionalism and loyalty

Wa have continued to investin the future generation Atthe

end of 2013, we launched the National Apprenticeship Scheme,

a Group-wide approach to the end-to-end apprenticeship process
This schems, which has now been In place for a full twelve months,
provides a best practice approach to recruitment with the asm of
appointing the best guality candidates for our business We are
pleased to have baen recognised as one of the Top 100 employers
of apprentices in the UK

Our corporats strategy includes the establishment of an

internal talent scheme, which recognises the potential of our
existing workforce and maximises the Uikelihood of retaining
our most promising people During 2014, we made significant
progress In our management development pragramme, including
senior leadership, branch manager and supervisory levels These
bespoke programmes call on internal experts and external specialists
in order to create an effective scheme, combining the best of
Mears with the tatest in leadership thinking and wider industry
bast practice

| look forward to bringing you news of further success during
the coming year

R Holt /\
Chairman —

bob holt@mearsgroup co uk
17 March 2015

www maarsgraup cc uk
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Strategic report

Business model

Our business model Is based on our values of innovation,
partnership and leadership Through leveraging our breadth
of capabilities, we create long-term value for our stakeholders

\nnovation
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Partnership

Wa have arobust nsk
management precessin place
Read more on page 22t0 25

People are a major factor
behind Mears success
Read more on page 16to 17

Our key performance indicaters
are detailed on page 14t0 15
and are focused on ensuning the
robuatness of aur business model
and the achievement of our
strategic goals
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Qur customers

Our customers are at the centre of our business We feet a streng
sense of responsibility to improve the long-term prospects of the
communities we sarve by improving theirr homes, their neighbourhoods
and their ives Our business is based upon the development of
outstanding partnerships with clients, tenants, service users
their families and the wider communibies We partner with our
customers in Secial Housing and Care and secure contracts for,
on average, six years and three years respactively Our customers
choose us for the quality of our service delivery, which remains
aur key differentiator

Our people

Amajor factor behind Mears' success is cur commitment to the
traiming and development of our staff We recognise our staff as
our greatest asset and that 1s why Mears”employees are skilled
in both delivering an excellent service whilst showing a strong
customer service ethos and an empathy for our service users

Strong service delivery ethos

Our service delivery leads the market We set ambitious KPls,
conststent with our expectations to maintain and extend our market
leadership We have a long track record of meating these targets,
which are cascaded down to people at every level of the organisation

Robust IT systems

Our perfarmance 1s bullt on a bedrock of first class, in-house

IT platforms giving market-leadmng capability Qur processes and
systems are developed with a focus upon praviding excellent
vistbility of operational and financral performance at a joband
contract level

Our communities

We work in some of the most socially deprived areas of the country
and wa feel a strong sense of respansibility towards finding ways
to improve the long-term prospects of the people who live in these
communities This philosophy has always been at the heartof the Group

Innovation

The challenge of delivering service improvements at lower ¢ost
requires Innovative thinking and extensive consultation between
all stakeholders We create, discuss lead and roll out best
practice in our markets

Leadership

The growth and change in cur business requiras nvestment

in leadership at every level and we work hard to ensure that there
1s a clear succession planming in place We believe that our leadership
team has never been stronger and we continue to attract the best
talent in both of our sectors to Mears

Partnership

Wa focus on long-term customer relationships with shared goals
and trusted relationships We recognise that, for our customers,
we have a responsibility beyond just repairing a homs or delsverning
a good standard of personal care

Wa have key strategic partnerships with a number of our suppliers
Wa work closely with them to develop inncvative services and
processes that integrate with our core systems

Creating long-term shareholder value

Wa have grown through a combination of organic growth
supplemented through acquisitions The Board remains
confident in aur growth markets and consequently expects
to be able to continue to follow a progressive dividend palicy

We have a clear and effactive strategy
to support our business model
Read moreonpages 12to 13

Www maarsgroup co uk

Annualrepart and accounts 2014 Mears Group PLC 07

yoda) mBmEng

£1UaLLA1RIS |RiaURUIY 80UBRUIaACE a:modmo

UDITBLLIOJUI 1BPIOYBIBYS




Strategic report

Our markets

We operate In robust and defensive markets where spend
i1s largely non-discretionary

The Social Housing market

The Social Housing market continues to develop strongly with
demographic, supply-side and economic change drivers for growth

Change drivers

Demographic factors

The demand for housing continues to exceed supply
There are 1 8m househelds on housing lists across the UK
which i1s driving the development of new affordeble homes
both far sccial and market rent

An ageing population 1 putting pressure on the need
far more homes a3 we maove to housing four generations
simultanecusly as oppesed to three

A growing population - 1t 1s projected to increase
at a rate of 450,000 per annum over the next decade

Over the same pertod n Engtand new households will
form at a rate of 221 000 a year

Supply-side

Housing Associations continue to see mergersas &
mechanism to secure sustainable businesses particularly
where aspects of poor performance or insufficient scale
are in play

Housing Associztions are still very active davelopers of
new housing and hava successfully absorbed reduced
Government funding through increased surpluses

Local Authorities are now building new homes in increasing
numbers even those that have sold their housing stock are
now constdenng building or acquirtng housing again

Mast commentators now agres the natian neads in excess
of 240 800 new homes a year

Econemic

The 2012 reform of the Hous:ng Revenue Account (HRA)
system in Local Government with the subsequant
long-term security around rentalincreases it brings,
has generated increased financial siability

This stability with theincreased availability of
finance 15 now funding both refurbishment and
development programmes

The financial position of Housing Associatians remains
secure with increasing operating surpluses

The underlying increasing cost of domestic energy s driving
considerable investmentin carbon reductron increasing
energy etftciency and reducing fuet poverty in the sector

Changes ta welfare reform although in train to some degree
have not yet been fully implemented but together with the
high demand far affordable accommedation are providing
new opportunities to broaden our service intc housing
management provision and related partnership models

Funding sources

The total revenue spending rescurces for Sacial Housingin
England was £24 8 billion in 204, having increased from £21 billion
in 2010, heading to an estimated £28 billion by 2017 Cngoing
prudent financial managemant, income increases above Inflation,
asset appreciation above inflation and increasing investment facilities
will continue to support the industry s further growth and development

Similar patterns, on a proportionate scale, are expected
in Scotland and Wales

Resources for investmentn services and new and
existing assets come from four sources:

1 Although varying across the sector, generaily 80% of funding
for repairs and mantenance expenditure comes from collected
rent The basis for annual rent increases from Apnil this year will
change to CPI plus 1% The other funding sources are capital
receipts from sales, both voluntary and those required by statute,
service charges for services not covered by rent and new capital
secured through traditional loans the 1ssuing of bonds and more
recently new financial Instruments including institational
investments such as public sector pension funds

[

Most Housing Assaciations, and an increasing number of Local
Authernities, build new housing which increases stock volume
and turnover Developing Housing Associations receive a grant
contnibution from the Government, togsther with same Local
Authorities, to support new housing although the arrangements
for this grant funding have changed 1t still supports significant
numbers of new hemes The current programme s for 165,000
new affordable homes in England by 2018 30 000 1n Scotiand
by 2016 and 7,500 in Wales by the same date

3 Over the period 2010 to 2015, the total number of homes owned
and managed by Sociat Housing providers across all tenures will
have increased by approximately 100 000

4 Over the period 2010 to 2017, the combination of above inflation
increases in income and below inflation increases in costs will drive
an Increasing year-on-year surplus amongst Housing Associations
which hold over 60% of Soclal Homes The operating surplus s
forecast to have increased from £2 242min 2010 to £5,169m in
2017 These surpluses are baingused principally to offset the
cost of new development work for which central grants have
been reduced

08
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Housing management

Strong change drivers

Financial incentives to maximise asset values
and income streams

Housing waiting List pressuras on existing stock

Private rental demands increasing in addition
to social housing

House buillding bringing 1n new financial
and management models

Welfare reform still at first stage impact

Increasing regulatory pressure to deliver
value for money

Mears strategy

Developing preferred partner arrangements
with existing customers

Butld upon the acquisition of Cmega Housing to develop
further housing rmanagement opportunities

Superior service delivery ethos

Strong cepability synergy between our maintenance
housing management, new homes and energy of fering

Total revenue spending resources
for Social Housing in England

£24.8 billion

Qur future growth

The pipeline of repairs, maintenance, iImprovement and
refurbishment opportunities will continue to remasn strong given
the increasing financial strength of almost all Secial Landlords

The reduction in Govarnment grants for new homes coupled with
increasingly high demand the impact of welfare reform and the
need to demonstrate value for money 1s pushing clients to reconsider
best value approaches to housing management and the provision
of hew homes

Housing management I1s a £4 brlhon service that 1s almost entirely
insourced Through the acquesitions of Plexus and Omega Housing and
the continued development of our Mears 24/7 call centre we have made
real progress in broadening our response to changing requirements

Qur clients in pursuit of sustainable hames and tenancies are
keen to reduce the energy their homes consume Together with
the Energy Company Obligation (ECO) scheme, which1s providing
new funding into Social Housing, Mears 1s helping clients to both
access the funding, delivering the works required and bringing
efficiencies to the tenants

Our broader business hase, incorporating our new homes capability
alongside management and maintenance, supperts our invalvement
In new partnering models as they emarge alongside traditional
outsourcingcontracts This presents new opportunities for Landlords
towark with Mears and thereby enable us to access work that would
previously have been done exclusively in house or not at all

www mearsgroup co uk
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Strategic report

Our markets continued

We continue to place great emphasis on winning high quality
contracts that provide clear and sustainable margins with

good cash flow dynamics

Community-based care

Change drivers

Demographic factors

* The number of people over pensionable age 1s expected
to grow by over 4m by 2037

* (var the same peried the number of people

- aged B0and above 1S prajected to more thandouble
by mid-2037

aged 90 and above Is projected to more than triple, and

who are centenarians is projectad to nise from 13 000
n mid-2012 to 111,000 1n mid-2037 a more than
eightfold increase

+ This increase in the numbers of older pecple means
that by mid-2037 ane in twetve of the populationis
projected to be agad 80 and aver

Supply-side

* Greater nvolvement and funding from the NHS

* |ncreasing consumer and regulatory pressures fuel demands
to mprove quality which continue te drive consolidation

+ Shiftin commissioning practices to secure cutcomes supparts
providers who can drive long-term guality improevements

Economic

* The dnive to reduce pressuras on public spending demands
Local Authorities to work with the NHS to integrate
care-related services

* The NHS and Local Authonties will spend £5 3 billion
for service integration in 2015/16

* Increasingamount of complexcare anincreas:ng proporton
of which 1s for people of working age, including hospital
discharge and end-of-life care, which are daveloping
INto new Service areas

« Movement of national policy, covered by legislation, to
cap the maximum amount a person has to pay for thair
care from 2016 whichis Ukely ta result in a sigmificantly
increased number of peopte recerving funding towards
their care

Funding sources

The main source of funds for care in England, Scotland and Wales
15 Local Authorities County Councils and all single tier authorities
- Londoan Boroughs and metropolitan and unitary authorities -

in England and unitary autharnities (n Scotland and Wales

In England total spend en domiciliary and day care for older people
and those of working age amounts to £7 9 billion per year™* The
equivalent figures for Scotland and in Wales are £600m and £400m
respectively The Narthern Ireland arrangements are through

Health and Social Care Trusts with spending of £175m

on day and domiciliary care

In addition to this collective purchasing by public bodies, private
indwviduals, who purchase therr care direct without recourse to
public funds, add an annual spend of a further £1 bithon This s
being supported by the state sector by the continuad introduction
of personal budgets which now support 8% of current care
Service users

In addition, the NHS 1s increasingly invelved in the commissioning
of and on occasions directly financing Social Care as the drive for
integrated services increases Local Authorities gat the bulk of their
funding from Government with around a quarter coming from locally
rassed council tax as well as directly charged fees

The closer working in England between Local Authorities and the
NHS means investmentin Social Care by the latter will increase
over the period of the next Parhameant

We expect annual market growth in care related spend of up to
10% from 2016 to 2020 This will impact, i particular, around more
support for complex community-based services, to help reduce
the enarmous growth in the pressures upon NHS Accident and
Emergency facilities and subsequent diagnosis and treatment

»  Dffice for Nationat Statisties November 2013
**  Autumn Statement December 2014
*++ HSCIC Decamber 2014
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Care commissioning trends

wWhile the pace of change 1s slower than we would
like, there 1s momenturn created by innovators
such as in Wiltshire and Torbay

From ..

» Paying for tasks done by the minute

» Frameworks with a larga number
of principal providers

« Singla service tenders
» QOnetothree-year tender periods

« None orlittle thought to workfarce support
or outcomes for service users

« |nstitutianal commissioning

To..

s Commisstoning for outcomes for service users
« Strategic partnerships

* Multi-service requirements

* Four to eight-year tender periods

+ (reater emphasis onworkforce development
« Integration of Care and nursing-led servicas

Our future growth

Care transformation

We are continuing to see the emergence of new commissioning
models that are long-term partnering onentated, focused on
improving quabty and cest over time and combining services
including heaith, care and even housing, into an integrated
approach while seeking to achieve better outcomes for users
at less averall cost to the pubbc purse

In many ways these are reflective of the way many of our Social
Housing contracts are commissioned in that thay are bringing

a more strategic approach which at the same time puts the service
user as the focal paint for achievements

Irrespective of the political composition of the next Government
we see policy supporting more thoughtful, joined up health,
care and housing services

Opportunities iIn more complex care services

As part of this move to integrate services at a local level we are
seeing Increasing opporturities to deliver more complex services
in peaple’s homes

This :s the case when there 1s an integrated approach to
commissioning invoiving the Local Authority and the NHS
Our Mears Nurseplus service, a 2013 acquisition, provides
us with the skills and expertise ta bud for services where
the involvement of nursing staff 1s required

We have added to our first Continuing Healthcare work
in England, which we secured last year, and we expect this
to be a significant source of growth over the next five years

www mearsgroup co vk
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Strategic report

Our strategic goals

Our strategy Is to be market leader in transforming

Social Housing and Care environments

Qur values

Woe value our customers

and communities,

putting the needs of our customers
at the heart of everything we do

We vatue personal responsibility,
setting and achieving consistently high
standards n our work and conduct

and not adopting a negative attitude

We value teamwork,
supporting each other, sharing ideas
and never excluding others

We value innovation,

being inventive (n our approach and
never allowing conventional thinking
or bureaucracy to get In the way

Read more about our key performance
indicatars on pages 14 to 15

Read about our nsk management
and principal risks on pages 22 to 25

Our strategic priorities are:

1 Deepen our client partnerships
in both core markets

We believe there remains significant opportunity to continue to
deliver strong growth in both our core markets of Social Housing
and Care in the Home As our chients’ needs have changed, they
have increasingly encouraged and supported us to develop a
broader service offering around these two core areas

As oneexample the impact of the welfare reforms and the need to provide
more Social Homes 1s making clients reconsider best value approaches
to housing management Housing management s a £4 billion apportunity
which is currently almost entirely in-sourced (n October 2014 we completed
the acquisition of the Omega Group, a leading private sector provider of
accommaodatton and management services to the Social Housing market
This acquisition enhances our ability to work more widely with housing
providers to improve the delivery of housing and asset management
services and toincrease the supply and management of housing n Line
with our strategy to grow and evolve our Housing management offering
We will continue to bring in and devalop new senior managemant who

are recognised as experts In these emerging fields

We are increasingly racognised by clients as an organisation that can not
onty effectively maintain properties but also partner with them in the
development of their overall asset management strategy In 2014, this has
included helping them find and indeed buitd on land that otherwise would
not have been fully utiised We seencreasing opportunities here for 2015

Secondly, the acquisition of ILS 1n 2013 increased the level of wark

in higher acuity serwvices During 2014 we have further increased our
capability to deliver more complex carewith the recruitment of ten new
technrcal case managers, which we ere confident will underpin strong
growth in 2015 Casa managers workdirectly with hospitals and eneble
people with oftan very complex conditians to be safely discharged and
locked after in their own homes We are seeing ncreasing opporturnities
from the NHS around more complex services beng delivered in people’s
homes given thensing and well publicised pressures on haspitals

We now have the opportunity to bid for services where the involvement

of nursing staff is required We were particularly pleased in 2014 to be
awarded the first single provider partnering contract for care and support
services in the UK, with the Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care
Trust This cantract will beginin April 2015 and will be an important
reference site for further contracts of this type

KPls

Social Housing new contract success rate
Order book growth

Revenue secured

Revenuse growth
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2 Maintaining quality
leadership

The success of Mears 1s intrinsically linked to maintamning
quality leadership in both our markets Farus, quality 1s a factor
not only of direct customer satisfaction but also of the broader
contribution we make to the markets we serve Service quality
remains our key differentiator and yields our competitive advantage
All our services are designed around the direct 1nput of tenants
and service users

During 2014, 91% of our customers rated our services as excellent We
operata an inngvative national Change Club, which invalves a network of
hundreds of tenants from across the UK who have met and communicated
with us on a reguiar basis throughout 2014 Their role 1sto help guide and
develop our service Improvements We are particularly pleased to have
seen the service tmprovement achieved on many of the acquired Morrison
contracts in 2014 Once again 2014 also saw Mears undertake hundreds
of local cammunity projects with aur staff and our supply partners often
volunteering their ime and resources for the benefit of local communities

Far our care and support business, we pay particular attention
to aur regulatory compliance levels, whnch have impraved throughout
2014 and now benchmark very strongly against cur major competitien

3 Developing
our people

For us this essentially means three things First that we have
the right structure and leadership team to achieve cur ambitions
2014 saw our biggest investment (n training for the future
leadership team since Mears first began This investment will be
increased 1n 2015 to reach middle and lower management levels

Second that we deliver on our responsibilities to recruit and develop local
peopts from the communities in which we work We were extremely proud
n 2014 to be awarded Social Mobility Champion status by the Office of the
Deputy Prime Mimister for our work in helping people from disadvantaged
backgrounds to develop skills and careers We are one of only twelva UK
companies to have achieved this status We are also one of the top 100
employers of apprentices We will further develop this area in 2015

for the benefit of chents and their tenants

Third, and critically, we have championed the need ta improve the terms
and conditions of cara workers Thisis vital to have the high quality and
sustainable workforce that 1s needed to cope with the rapidly increasing
demand for services Wa supported the work of the Burstow Commission,
an Alt Parliamentary Group which has set out clear recommendations for
how the system needs to imprave We have also invested heavily in the
terms and conditions of our own Care workforce in 2014 and will continue
this in 2015

KPls
Percentage of people rating our service as excellent
Number of customer complamts Jobs completed within time

KPIs

Number of apprenticestups and job expernience opportunities
Qutput from employee surveys

Output from reward ang recognition benchmarking

Read more about our case studies i
tha Dperational Review on pages 28 te 33
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Strategic report

Key performance indicators

QOur KPIs are our most important measures of success
They are divided between service delivery measures,
contract bidding measures and financial outputs

Service delivery

Key measure and description How we parformed Resulta fremthe year
1 Percentage of people rating our service as excellent e Out performance
Unlike the industry which uses gatisfactery , we measurethe We are delighted to have saan further service impravement 2014 91% 20161arget
parcentage of peopla who rata our service as excellent andwork (113 pleasing that the acquired Morrigon contracts arg all o
hard to maintain our servica leader status We conduct around now parforming strongly 2013 82% )90 A)
B0 000 surveys per year via phone and directly with the customer

|
via our operatives handheld devices 20472 80%
2 Number of customer complaints ety ontrack
whilst we achieve high levals of service excellence itisimportant  Following the acquisitton of Morrison our customer 2014 0 30% 2015target
that we momitor carefully the number of poor serwce incidents, that  performance metrics nevitably showed a slight worseming. o
we deal effectively witheachindividual complaint and that we learn  Howaver the acquisiian s now fully ntegrated and bedded 2013 031% (0-30 /O
from underlying trends down and it 18 pleasing 1o see the performance of the

enlarged Group now returning toits historical level 2012 0 29%

3 Jobs completed within time st On track
Delivering onour prormises is at the heart of Mears Each of aur Tomaintmin this perfarmanca measura at a consistently 2014 91% 2015target
contracts has specific targsts around job complation imabased on high level s a positive outcoma far the year We continue o,
the nature of the work Emergencyjobs are typically undertaken to focus upon training and developrment of our staff and 2013 92% >92 A)
game day while routrne workwill be scheduled Hawng agreed the we conunue 1o invest In our business systermns to maintamn
standards bytype of wark itis ebwvisusty important that we stick this performance level 20172 a2%

o them

Contract bidding

Key measura and descriptien

How we performed

Resulta fram the year

4  Social Housing new contract success rate

We typically tender £1-2 bithan of new opportunities each year
The average contract length s around six years in length Inorder

to achieve our argame growth farecasts wa monitar the preportion

of new contracts secured as a proportion of total tendered works

The apportunities available to the Groupover the tonger term
remain at histoncal levels The Socat Housing order intake
was impacted temporanty fram a quieter penod of new bidding
epportunities our conversion of new biddingopportunities
reperted an increase to 35% This s an impertant metric

onie thatwill serve vs well ance the bid pipeline picks up

5 Orderbook growth

We typically secure long-term cantracts with our chients Qur Social

Housing contracts averaga six years induration and our Care

contracts are typically shorter at around three years We unly place

avalue against erders whech are contractually secure and where
tha delivery of the works 1s mghty prebable

Qur order book has been nagatively impacted by alower
tevel of oppartunitses to bid in year However, in the shart term
tistharevenue visibility metne that 1s of primary importance
tn the madium to long tesm the order book has increasing
wpartance We are confident that the bidding oppertunities
available to the Group over the longar term remain at
historical levels

6 Revenue secured

The majority of our new contract opportunities follow the stnct
Giovernment procurement proceass The average tender will taka

arcund twelve months from initially being adveruised to the successful

party being formally awarded thework Inaddition theaverage
contract takes 13 weeks from award to contract comrnencement

Whilst §2% wsitality 1s excellent the time penod for bidding,
secunng and mabilising new work s slow and therefore we
would ideally Uike to have 95% visibility at the startof anew
year This shartfall to target represents an added challenge
to the Group # 1118 to hitits 2015 forecast

‘Therefore whilst we have goad visitnlity of opportunites, the process
for convertuing opparturities into secured revenue is siow We thergfore
require a high level of visibiity for the coming year as ruch of our bidding
actvitywill nowbe for the benefit of 2016 rather then 2015

:g;&t}zargﬂ Out performance
2014 35% ZOtEtn:et
2013 32% »33%
2012 32%

o™ s performance

201 A _13% 2015“:3!
2013 2% +10%
2012 31%

;%;t-rs« Under parformance
2014 a2% 2015“:5'
2013 92% 95%
2012 88%
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Financial outputs

Key meaaure and deaeription

How we performed

7 Revenue growth

Social Housing

Ravenueareprasents the amounts due for sarvices providad dunng
the year In order to measura organic growth we deductravenue
derved from assets that have been acquized We believe that
organic growth gives a better indication of business performance
as 1t1s a purar aggregation of market growth, success innew
contract bidding and contract retention

Care

Revenue represents the amounts due for gocds and services
provided during the year Our strategy inCare 18 to grow our
existing business organically whilst making further strategic
acquisitions 10 INcrease tha sarvices that we can offer to

our clients

Wa axpacted some raduction in Social Housing revenues
givan the narmalisatian of the Marnsen run-rate, however
the absenca of any matenal new contract mabilisations
resulted in a quieter periad than we anticipated

We significantly enhanced our future growth prospects
through the development of our Housing Management
business both throughthe acquisitton efOmega and
through organic iInvestment in people and systems

The Care dvision reparted revenue growth of 1% This growth
includes a full yearimpact fram ILS acquiredinApnl 2093
without which the underlying business would have reperted
areduction inrevenues Thé raduction of revenuas, taken
inisolation 15 disappointing Howaver significant progress
has been made in developing both the business and the wider
market The major hindrance to growthin Care ramaing our
ability to source sufficient Care workers of good quality

the challenge will enty increasa as we rmove forward and

1t1s essentsal that we find solutions to address this

8 Operating margin

Social Housing

Social Housing operating margin grves a strang indication
of prafitabulity We continually monitar our operating margn
and manage our cost base to ensure that our services
aredelivered efficientiy

Care

The Care aperating margn gives & strong indication of profitability
We continualty manitar gur eperating margm and menage our cost
base 10 ensure thatour services are delvered efficiently

Wa are delighted to see an increasen the operating margin,
driven primarily by the improving contract margins being
generated from the ex-Morrison business We are delighted
that within two years of cornpleting the Merriaon transaction
we have & portfolio of financially sound contracts our custormer
service has underpinned this turnaraund The marginis further
assigted by a reduced number of new contract start-ups which
ara typically logs makeng in therr initial mabilisation period

We ara pleased that the operatingmarg:n at 7 8% has been
maintained at the levals achieved in the prior year despite
our significant investment inimprowing the terma and condiions
of sur werkfarce We are commutted to improving the terms
and conditions of our carers notably our aspiration to increase
pay rates towards the lving wage and a movement away from
zero-hour centracts We stilt have a longway to goto achieve
this and we requira the commessioners of care to share

this amiition

9 Profitto cash conversion

The efficiency with which the Group manages working capital
remains a cornerstone of pur business The key measure 15 cash nflow
trom operating activities as a propor tion of EEITDA. Whilst we internally
target 100% our external target allows some leniency reflecting
anncreased working capital requirement to fund organic growth

This 15 an excellent outcome We have developed a cash
culture within the Group where the importancae of managing
our werking capital iswellunderstood Our busingss systems
are davelopad 10 Support this area

10 Normalised diluted EPS

Normalised earnings are stated befare exceptionzal costs
and exclude the amartisation of acquisition intangibles together
with an adjustment to reflect a full tax charge

We are pleased with this strong perfermance The turnaround
at Morrisan has underpinned this strang earnings growth
We cantinue to invest in both cperaticnal and finanicral
management and focus on sustainable contract opportunities

Resulta from the year
iﬂsié:tﬂfg"‘ Under performance
2014 -4% 2015!:5:)5“
2014 +10% +6%
2012 +19%
-2!'021;6:"&“ Under performance
2014 +1% ’°13':/“
2013 w0y TI70
2012 +4%

iné;ﬁurgtt Out parformance
2014 48% 2015‘]-:\!!
2013 4 5% 5.1%
2012 47%

;né;‘tugul On track
2014 7 8% 2015&.:“
2013 7 8% 7.8%
2012 83%

gg;::argm Out perfarmance

2015target
2014 96%
0,
2013 103% >75 /D
2012 108%

:210’:“:!'80‘ Out perfatmance
2014 15 0% 2015“:“
2013 10 0% >7 A
2012 6 7%
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Strategicreport

Our people

A major factor behind Mears’ success Is the commitment
to the training and development of our employees

Mears champions
social mobility

The Governmant has recognised Mears alongside elaven
ather of the UK's mast high prafile compamas for leading
the way n ensuring disadvantaged young people have

a better chance of getting on the jobs ladder

As a Champion, Mears 1s driving a new benchmark for
social mobtlity by committing to meet a set of strict
criteria over tha next twelve months, building on
existing work, including

s developing relatienships with schools and young people

= targeting efforts on insututions with above-average
levels of disadvantage,

* widening the geographical spread of opportunities, and

« offering well structured non-graduate entry routes and
driving forward recruitment practices that ehminate
barniers to social mability

The deputy prime mimster, Nick Clegg, launched the
Social Mabilesty Business Compact Champion Tier He said

1

Businesses know they need to find tha best talentin

order ta succeed This means searching beyend the usuat
recrustment methods and hinng young people with great
potenttel, whatever their background It s greatto see
leaders inindustry backing thss approach However many
businesses ara still missing out, and more companies need
to follow in the foctsteps of the Champions wa have announced
today if we are to achieve our aim of a stronger economy
and fairer society ™

Valuing diversity and creating opportunity

Maars has a diverse workforce of over 13,000 staff and almost 400
apprentices, the vast majority Live inthe areas that they work Indeed
we are now one of the top 100 employers of apprentices in the UK

Diversity and respect for atl are core to our tnduction programme
and our training on recruitment and customer care

Future leaders

This year saw Mears make 1ts biggest commitment yet to training
and developing employees at all levels in the Group from new
recruits thraugh to our most talented and experienced people

In 2014 we ran pilot management development programmes at
three lavels Qur Senior Leadership programme catered for those
with the potential to become future senior leaders and Directors
at Group and operating company levels Our Housing Branch Manager
and Supervisor programmes focused on the enhancing and strengthening
of skills in order to improve performance, as well as stretching delegates
who have the potential to take on more sentor rales in the future

The overwhelmingly positiva response from delegates and therr
line managers means that in 2015 we will expand our offering to
six programmes As well as new Housing Branch Manager and
Supervisor cohorts, we will replicate the same for the Care business
We will also run a Mixed Manager programme for those who work
outside of core operattonal Housing and Care roles

High standards from the start

Rewtalising the induction process for new employees aims to
increase the speed and efficiency with which new employees
become joh ready, as well as to make sure they get the best
possible first impression of Mears

We have improved our pracesses and increased our efficiencies in
captunng the traiming and development activities of the Group We
have increased the accessibility of emptoyee training data for line
managers, enhancing our defensibility in terms of ensuring legally
required training has been completed and maintained by the right
people at the right time

Qur Welwyn Garden Crty technical training centre has continued
to increase the number of hours of training delivered The centre
provides upskilling across a wide range of trade disciplines in

a cost-effective way Having reached over 200 people in 2013,
this rose to over 250 during 2014
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Onthe Care side of our business, training is designed not only ta meet
the needs of our service users and the requirements of the regulators,
but alsa to promote industry best practice In mandatory subjects
such as manual handing, safeguarding adults against abuse and
support with medicines management This training 1s supplemented
with a series of more specialised traiming workshops that provide

our staffwith insight into the specific needs of service user groups
including training an supporting peopte with dementia, learning
disabiities and epilepsy

Traming courses are continually reviewed to ensure that they are
inhine with Skills for Care standards and changes in legislation

Our approach means that we are well placed for the implementation
of the Cara Certificate in 2015 The provisien of good quality training
15 essential if we are to remain a high quality provider of personalised,
effective and responsive care Services

Engaged employees

During 2014 we have continued to developinitiatives to help all Mears
employees gain a broad understanding of the business they work
for and to ensure that every individual feels valued for the role they
perform and empowered to contribute to organisational decisions

Delivering integrated multi-directionat commumeations and engaging
with our thousands of care workers and housing operatives means
that managers nsed information, support and tools which enable
them to improve engagement locally and foster a team spint
Branch managers now participate in face-to-face briefing sessions
with the Executive Team The CEQ's weekly senior management
briefing keepe senicr managers Informed of current 1ssues and news
Iterns of general interest goes out as a daily Mears Matters ematl
to around 4,000 staff every morning with branches asked to pass
on relevant items to field staff

Inthe summer we ran a highly successful renge of communication
meetings around the country These combined reglonal cross-business
networking sessions that identified commaon Issues with an informal
‘social’ event for all staff with a health and wellbeing theme that
offered free health checks

Wa hold two family fun days, one in Scotland and one in England
These frea avents are designed to say thank you not only to our
emplayees but also to their famiies Over 2,000 people attended
1n 2014 across the two events at Drayton Manor and Blair Drurmnmond
Safari Park Feedback for these events 1s always enormaously
positive with many staff proactively wnting to thank the Group
for the day and praising the event organisation

Our Mears Advantage discount scheme enables our staff to save money
on their weekly shop, while Mears Assist enables staif to get free and
independent advice on a range of work and non-work related topics

Workforce makeup

All staff %
Male
Female
13,000 451
54 g emptoyees
Senior management %*
191 Male
Femeale
460
seniar * The Company s Board includes ning
Directors eight af whom are mala
management and one of whom s female
809

Celebrating performance

Individual or team success, good news stories and best practice
initiatives are shared with all staff through the quarterly staff
magazine and the \ncreasing number of branch newsletters
that combine local news with Group news

Mears Smile awards are incraasingly popular with an increasen
nominations All nominees are given a 'you'va been nominated’ card
by their manager and go through to the quarterly regional finals
Many branches are extendingthe programme locally with a Branch
Smile award and putting nominations togsther with compliments
onto a dedicated display board

In 2014 we launched the Reg Pomphrett Apprenticeship and Learner
Award to acknowledge and reward the achievements of our young
employees An overall Apprentice of tha Year and Mears Young
Learner of the Year were chosen from the outstanding candidates
nominated by the Housing and Care businesses As part of the
selection process the top ten candidates participated in areservists’
outward bound programme in Shrewsbury and won the Best
Team award

1ode. 21Ba38ulg |

www mearggroup co uk

Annual rapert and accounts 2014 MearaGroup PLC 17

SluaIgIR)S [RIOLBUILY A2UBLIAADR Bl‘EJGdJDD

UOITRW IO JBDOYRIBYG




Strategicreport

Corporate responsibility

Good customer service Is more than delivering an effective repairs
and care service We see It as our responsibility to make a long-term
difference to the sustanability of the communities in which we operate

Mears’ sustainability strategy has five guiding principles:

Long-term customer relationships

We focus on long-term customer relationships with
shared goals and trusted relationships We recogniss
that, for our customers, we have a responsibility
beyond just repainng a home or delivering a good
standard of personal care

Excellent employee experience

We believe we will not give a great customer
experience If the employee experience falls
short of this

Responsibility for the environment

We have worked in local communities for many years
and as such we have a huge responsibility to the
environment in which we operate

4

Responsible leaders

Our customers, staff and investors have aright to
expect respensible leaders and staff within Mears
who operate with clearly defined standards of
behaviours and fit-for-purpose governance

Diversity in our business

We see diversity as a strength

Read mare about our diversity policy
on pages 16 to 17
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Keeping communities safe

The Safer Homes project 1a a frae service provided by
Mears in partnarship with North Lanarkshire Councit
This multi-agency initiative invelving the police, the fire
brigade, Woman's Aid and Age UK has had over 1,200
referrals from agencies since 1ts launch in October 2012

The service 1s offered to householders who could benefit
from additional safety and security measures such as
door chains carbon maonoxide detectors, window and
door alarms home safety packs and spy holes Mears
Safer Homes 1s an innovative project designed to aid the
local community by carrying out a package of home safety
and security installabons to reduce the occurrence of
crime and the fear of crime and unintentional injuries In
and around the home Mears Safer Homes is currently
completing around 30 installations a week

Delivering this warthwhile service allows Mears to
highlight the dangers of bogus callers and provides
tepants with information and toals to help them keep safe
in their hernes Mears provides a dedicated tradesman
and apprentice to carry out horme safety and security
installations as well as an administrator to providea pomnt
of contact for all referrals from the agreed practitioners’
groups Mears also works closaly with the community
police and regularly attends service user events and
action days to pramote this worthwhile service

Valuing customers

Wae continue to priontise customer service and for the third yearin
a row our Housing business has been awarded the Government’s
highly coveted Customer Service Excellence award

Mears was the first repairs and maintenance contractor of iIts

size to achieve this standard, which was set up to encourage the
public, private and voluntary sectors to put customers at the heart
of service provision Since achieving the standard across our housmg
operations, four Care branches - Burton-on-Trent, Rotherham, Wallsend
and Wirral -~ have undertaken the assessment process and all have
achieved accraditation The process locked at every aspect of the
business including front ling’ visits where the assessar interviewed
care workers and tha service users about their care The assessment
awarded Compliance Plus' scoras in several areas, including the
professianalism of the branch management teams, our Smile Award
scheme, our STAR campaign, which created medication reminder
cards, and our approach of working in partnership with clisnts

The assessor said she was ‘bowled over’ by how genuinely caring
all the staff are and that she had been particularly impressed by
the front line staff's insight and personal approach to each
individual they cared for

Supporting communities

Mears has always believed that good custemer service 1s more
than just ensunng that we deliver an effective repairs and care
service Given the longevity of most of our contrects, we see it as
our respensibility to make a long-term difference to the sustainability
of the communities in which we operate In 2014 once again, over
500 local community projects were carried out by our staff From
North Lanarkshire to Falmouth and many places in betwaen, our
employees undertock a host of valuntary actvities that included
repaimting nursery schoo! playgrounds creating patio and garden
areas for sheltered housing schemes fund raising to improve
sporting facilities, organmising community fun days, and holding
music mentoring classes for school pupils

Loneliness 1s now known to be a bigger killer than smoking

The Mears Foundatien the independent charitable arm of Mears
Group which has been set up to harness the goodwill, talents
and skills within Mears, has created a fund to support grassroots
activittes which are tackling loneliness Thousands of pounds
have been raised due to the efforts of Mears employees, including
an auction of promises which featured prizes donated by 40 members
of our leadership team awvirtual bike nde which saw Mears staff
peddting hundreds of miles without leaving the offica, and our
‘Pennies from Heaven' initiative which asks staff to donate the
pennies from ther monthly paycheque Funds are targeted to those
projects that are enabling 1solated people to establish social networks

www maarsgrovp co vk
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Strategic report

Corporate responsibility continued

Providing employees with a safe working environment remains paramount,
which 1s why our accident rates continue to reduce year on year

Mears Interhub

Mears has made a commitmant to help address
the loneliness experienced by so many people

Mears hes joined forces with Gateshead College Newcastle
United FC Foundation, Sundertand FC Foundation of Light,
Age UK and Autism in Mind to setup a community interest
company In Gateshead The Interhub s designed to be 2
dynamic centre that focuses on finding solutrans for some of
the most persistent social problems such as social 1solation
and long-term unemployment The Interhub will provide
accessible, high quality sustainable sarvices for

peaple lving in the north east

The Interhub will offer inclusive intergenerational activities
and deliver 8 modular programma tailored to an indmdual’s
specific crcumstances Up to 30 clients a year wilt learn
essental skills such as how to write a CV and how to prepare for
aninterview Trarning and support witlbe given on appropnate job
searches and individuals will be given work experence to
help them gain confidence and become work-ready

Responsible business leaders

Wa are extremety proud of our health and safety performance and
it remains a priority for the Mears Board to review performance at
every Board mesting Providing our employees with a safe working
environment remains paramount, which 1s why our accident rates
continue to reduce year on year In 2014, we reduced our accident
frequency rates by 10% through preactive campaigns, training
and site iInspections

The year 2014 not only proved to be a safer year but we also
trained more operatives and managess New initiatives were
introduced including our STAR moving and handling campaign
which encourages staff (0 stap, think, act and review We are
particularly pleased to have retained our Royal Society for the
Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) Award, making this Mears'
twelfth consecutive Gold Award

Championing positive change for customers and staff

Maars provides a range of sarvices that help address scme of the
major challenges faced by British policy makers Our thought leader
programme brings sectar teaders together to design create, discuss
and roll out best practice in the Social Housing and Social Care
sectors Qur expertise means we are well placed to support and
influence policy makers both at a naitonal and a local level

Throughout 2014 we have continued to work with the Department of
Health and Local Authorities around the intraduction of outcome-based
commissioning models and we are delighted to see a number

of Local Authorities moving away from a task-and-time approach
We have also focused on what can be done to improve the status
of the care workforce, initiating and funding the Commission on
the Future of the Homecare workforce, which was chaired by the
Rt Hon Paul Burstow, MP Valuing our care workforce, offering
guaranteed hours and providing opportunities for progresston
are key for workforce retention and to drive up the standards

of care proviston

We have continued to speak out oni1ssues such as fuel poverty,
combining our frant line practical interventions, which are helping
people lower thesr fuel bills and increase energy efficiency, with
top-down influenemg in order to challenge measures which act

as a barrier to the elsmnation of fuel poverty Mears continues

to support the work of the Energy Bill Revolution, an alliance of
organisations including charities, environmental groups, trade
unions and husinesses that are committed to ensuring warm
homes and lower bills

We are developing our thinking around homelessness and tackling
the barniers which are deterring Local Authanities from building
the next generation of Social Homes
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Accident frequency rate (%) 2010 041
0 2 3 2011 036
" 2012 033
2013 03
2014 023

Providing our employees with a safe working enviranment remains
paramount Our accidentrates have reduced year onyear

Waste diverted from landfill (%) 2019 800
94 1 201 885
u 2012 90 3
2013 914
2014 941

We work hard to minimise the negative impact of our operations
on the environment Cur recycling rates have continued toimprove

Protecting the environment

In 2014 we have improved the level of waste diverted from landfill
from 91% to 94%

Mears recognises the impartance of measuring and addressing
its awn carbon footprint, which is why 1t operates an environmental
poticy accredited with 180 14001 We work hard to minimese the
negative impact of our eperations on the environment

Mears continues to operate a locat employment strategy with
approximately 90% of its warkforce Living within the postcode
district of their branch, meaning staff spend less time onthe roads
getting to work For staff who require a vehicle to carry out therr
roles, traiming in economical driving has been shown to reduce fuel
consumptton by up to 20% Eech of approximatsly 100 housing
branch offices throughout the UK has an Eca Champion, who 1s
instrumental in the promotion and exchange of information on
good practice and 15 supported with regular information, briefings
and advice {o develop green intatives localty

Mears' comritment to the environment extends beyond rts own
operations into the supply chain Approximately 85% of our £70m
annual spend is on matenals directly purchased with merchants
recognised for sustainable procurement Mears buys 100% FSC
approved timber from 1ts preferred suppliers

Mears continues to reduce carbon emissions as detatled below

yioderaifereng |

Units 2014 2013
Scope 1 Tonnes CO.e 21,039 16,787
Scope 2 Tonnes COze 1,467 1,715
Scepe 1 and Tonnes COe/
Scope 2intensity  £m Revenue 26 83 2138
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Strategic report

Risk management and principal risks

The effective management of risks I1s a key feature in the
continuing success of Mears We have a clear framework for
identifying and prioritising our risks together with a robust

mitigation process to reduce their impact

Risk management process
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Deteils of financral nsk management
and exposure to price risk ara given
innote 20 on pages 105t0 110

The Board

The Board has ultimate responsibility for the effectiveness of the
systems and processes of risk management and internal control

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 15 responsible for assisting the Board in
discharging its responsibilities The Audit Commitiee reports

to the Board on 1ts activities and makes recommendations and
escalates significant risks or matters to the Board as appropriate

The Senior Management Team

The Senior Management Team reviews and identifies the key risks
which may impact upon the achievement of the Group's strategic
goels and will cansider how these risks are developing with changes
in the oparations, markets and the regulatory environment

The nature of the risk 15 reviewed including the possible triggening
avents and the aggregated impacts before setting appropriate
mitigation strategies directed at the causes and conseguences
of each nsk The risk 1s assessed in relation to the likelhood

of securrence and the potential impact of the risk upon the
pusiness and assessed against a matrix scorng system which
15 then used to escalata risks within the Group as appropnate
The Senlor Management Team has responsibility for nanaging
the Group's key risks

Risk management function

The Group Risk Function supports the risk management process
by providing guidance, support and challenge to management
whilst acting as the central paint for coordinating, monitonng and
reporting on risk across the Group To ensure our risk management
process continues to drive improvement, the Group Risk Function
monitors the ongoing status and progress of mitigation plans on

a quarterly basis

The Group outsources elements of Internal Audit to external advisers

The control environment s underpinned by a detailed scheme of
delegated responsibilities that defines processes and procedures
for the epproval process in respect of decision making This ensures
that decisions within the orgarnisation are made by the appropriate
level of management

Read more about governance
measures on pages 38to 44

Read more about the Audit
Commities on pages 46to 49
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Risk management

We have endeavoured to simplify the
reporting of our key risks to ensure that
shareholders understand those principal
risks which we see as business critical
or potentially catastrophic

We have described in detail how we seek te manage and mitigate
those nsks We have also linked these risks to other areas of our
Strategic Report our business model our markets and our
strategic objectives

For completeness, we have also provided a list of other risks
Thess other risks continue to be closely monitored and managed
as the Board considers appropriate These other nsks may be significant
ata divisional or subsidiary level but are not considerad sufficiently
significant at Group level to warrant detailed disclosure within

our Annual Report

We consider these additional risks to be ‘business as usual

and wish to avoid giving them too much focus as to do so would
potentially detract from our shareholders’ understanding of those
principal risks which the Board believes represent the biggest
challenge to the Group delivering its strategic goats

We continue to drive improvements 1n our risk management
process We also review our business model, core markets and
business processes to ensure that we have properly identified
all nsks We continually review our mitigating actions to ensure
that they are sufficiant to minimise our residual risk

1todas oi@erens |

Principal nsks

Risk and description
Reputation

The ultimate success of Mears relies upon maintaining a
positive reputation An event, or seres of events, may cceur
that could damage our brand in the eyes of our customers

Poor service delivery would damage our reputation Bothour
Social Housing and Care markets are clese-knit communities where
examples of poor performance are quickly commurnicated widely

Furthermore, in Care we deliver services to pecple who are elderly
and vulnerabte A service delivery failure within our Carg division
could result in the physical harm ar, in the most extreme cases,
death of a service user

In the environment of canng for vulnerable people, there i1s a risk
of isolated incidences of abuse and neglect which nghtly receive
significant press coverage with the inevitable reputational damage

The abslity to tender contracts with public sector orgamisations 15
fundamental to the achievement of cur strategic objectives Cver
recent years we have seen negative press comment attachedtoa
number of companies involved within the arena of public sector
outsourcing where past actions could negatively impact upan the
ability of thaose argamisations to tender for future work

Performance measures
Dashboard of service delivery indicators, cusiomer excellence
complaints, jabs completed on time void turnaround

How we mitigate the nsks

# in house|T systam developed to provide operational managemant
with & real-time dashboard of service delivery Indicators

¢ Internal auditing of KPi reporting inctuding mystery shoppers

» Jointventure with the Tenants & Residents Organisations of England (TAROE),
which undertake independent audits

s Stnict process in place for vetting and approval of subcontractors

s We drive a culture of putung our customers first this is conunually reinforced
withininternal communications

= Well communicated policy for dealing with pregs enquiries
and incident management

» Carerisk plans for deeling with vilnarable custamers

* Compliance management of bribery and cerruption legislation
and whistleblowing palicy

* Wanduct and train all new starters This induetion ensures that all employees
understand cur values and it reinforces the Group's culture

« Wa ensura that staff are properly trasned for their roles We ensure that
wa deliver ralevant traimng and implement best practice

www mearsgroup co uk
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Strategicreport

Risk management and principal risks continued

Principal risks continued
Risk and description

People

Mears sees sound commercial management of contracts
and the business as a whole as essential to achieving its
objectives The success of the Group 1s underpinned by the
delivery of services profitably whilst exceeding our clients’
expectations and our contractual obligations

Notably in our Care division, recruitment and retention remains
the biggest inhibitor to achieving our growth aspirations

We have over 13,000 employees — the majority of these
employees are interacting with our customers on a daily basis

It 1s this day-to-day front line contact that 1s fundamental in
delivering a differentiated service and maximising customer
satisfaction It i1s therefore imperative that the Group's strategic
goals are well communicated and understood by all employees

Performance measures
Employee turnaver, employee traiming statistics, employee pay
benchmarking sickness records, grievance statistics exitinterviews

Health and safety

Mears' services and operations involve a series of high nisk
activities ranging from dealing with vulnerable customers
in need of our care, to our building related services, ¢ g
warking at height, working with gas and electricity and
dealing with asbestos

Failure to have robust and safe systems of work could lead to

serious personalinjury or a fatality In addition such a failure could

lead to financial penalties and significant reputational damage

Paerformance measures
Accident freguency rate reporiable incidents, continuous review
of insurance claims

How we mitigate the risks

* Weinduct and train all new starters Thisinduction ensures that all new
employess understand our strategy vision and values

* Waregularly review and benchmark our remuneration packages to ensure
that they remain competitive

* InCare the market s highly prica driven which has made it diffieult to provide
better rewards Our Local Authority clients will not typically commit to any
guaranteed wark volurme which has made zera-hour contrects commanplace
Wa hava canvassed the sector and Gavernmant to encourage cutcome-based
core contracts and associated incentives and rewards which can be shared
with aur frantline carers Our pigneeriag Wiltshire and our new Torbay
output-based contracts are hapefully ndicators or & significant shiftn the
way that Care contracts wili be commiasioned maving forward

» inCare, anincreasad level of rascurce and focusg s being appliad to recruitment
& more raust process in raspect of hangling preceasing and tracking applicants
is expacted to ncrease the voluma of quality carers Local Care branchesare
targeted on a monthly basis in the area of recruitment and retention

e Atthe senior end of the busineas we have increased cur focus on succession
planning and increased our nvestmentn senior management development
Our Sanior Leadership programma has identified a cross-section of the Group s
brightest talent that we would envisagewill play central roles in our future business

e Anannual apprassal process s completed for all employees to ensure that all
people receve feedback in respect of thair performance and to identify future
training and developmant requirements We holda national accreditation
as an Investor in Pecple

* Wa are continually looking to improve our position as an employer of chaice
by improving the lavel of engagement with aur employees through farmal
tammunIcations Bwards to recognise success local events and family fun days

* Wa ara continually monitoning of our future skilis requirementa

* Waregularly undertake employee surveys to gauge employee satisfaction
engagement and any barriers to high level performance

* We have invested signtficantly in single centralised HSE function to maintain
congistengy and quality

& Wg have comprehensiva safe syatemns of work which are well communicated
through a robust and coordinatad internal trawning regime

* We have rabust procasses far inducting new staff to ensure impartance
of health and safety 1s emphas:sed together with deteiled method statements
for working safely

» Regular HSE traiming and updates areheld predominantly delivered
by internal function

*  Significant resources have been invested to ¢lawns defensibility toensure
thatinvabid claims can be robustly defended

= |ntarnat SHE auditing takes place using third party validation

* Annual Giroup SHE strategy and plan are produced
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Additional risks

Our markets

Pages B to 11 detail both our core markets, together with what we see
aschange drivers and the elements that underpin our future growth
Both markets are subject to Government legislation and are impacted
by the political environment, local ar national, including public sector
policy and funding Any changes in policy could have a detrimental
effect on the Company’s business

Integrity, ethics, anti-bribery and corruption

The Company policy 1s well communicated to ensure that all employees
comply This has been reinforced by training of key staff We have a
whistleblowing process to ensure comprehensive Investigations are
completed and robust action taken for negative findings

Taxation, legal and regulatory

The Group I1s subject to numerous tax, legal end regulatory
requirements Policies and procedures are Issued and cantrols are in
place to ensure compliance Additional techrical support s sourced
as required to enhance the internal teams and to provide validation
as to our compliance

Business continuity

\We are reliant upon our infermation systems and technology platforms
Afailure of our IT systams would have a detrimental impact to our
ability to deliver our services, vulnerable people depend upon our
services, hence even a short period of downtime could cause severe
reputational damage Our networks are protected with antivirus and
firewall systems A procedure for regular system back-ups 1sn place
A Business Continuity Plan 1s in place for each business unitand with
particular emphasis upen our IT and Finance central support functions
which would provide the greatest challenge in the event of a system
failure or data loss

Liquidity
The Group has a revolving credit facility (RCF) The Group s cash flow
forecast indicates that there 1s sigruficant headroom in place to fund
the Group's strategic objectives The forecasts also indicate that the
business will ganerate strong free cash flow to reduce the future level
of debt We expect to bs able to rely on the debt market to refinance
the RCF at 1ts maturity in July 2018 The Group has entered intoan
interest rate swap to reduce the Group's exposure to interest rate
movements The Group transacts with the public sector, which means
there 1s little credit risk with our customers This area s considered
further in the going concern sectton of the Statement of
Directors’ responsibilities

Prioritising our risks

Key
Gross nsk Nat riak
Haalth and safety
People Reputation
Uquidity
People Reputaticn
o Hestth gnd
g Taxationand sefaty
@ ragulatory Integrty athics  puginess eendnulty
g antl-bribary and
3 sorruption
(%]
o
-~
o Taxation and Business continuity
o regulatery
Q
.g (ET
4
;-; integnty, sthics, ity
= antiebibery and
3 comepton Dur markets
Low Moderate Serious Cntical

Saverity of impact

fisks identified are documented within the Group s risk register
Risks are rated on a matrix sconng system based on their Lkelihood
and potential severity This severity can be measured using financiel,
life and Limb customer service growth, regulatory compliance
and reputational criteria Therefore, Mears measures more than
simply the financial mpact of the risk These scores are used

to escalate risks and ta drive the mitigation plans

The Senior Management Team has responsibility for managing the
Group's key risks These nsks are reviewed quarterly together with
the mitigation activities to ensure that sufficient actions are being
taken to reduce the net risk position

yodas 18a1805 |
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Strategic report

Review of operations

Service quality remains our key differentiator We are pleased
that both our operating divisions continue to achieve high
standards of service delivery

David Miles
Chief Executive Dfficer

In summary

Soctal Housing

The Secial Housing division made excellent
progress in 2014 Thefinancial turnaround of
the Morrison acquisition is now substantially
complete We have broadened the services
we offer across the sphere of Social Housing
in particular the Omega acquisition has
untocked a large number of new housing
management oppertunities We will look

to make further acquisitions to reinforce

our market-leading position

Care

The award of the Torbay and Southern Devon
NHS Trust contract 1s anather crucial milestone
In the evolution of the sector and far Mears'’
pasition within it Thisis another significant
move away from traditional ‘task and time'
based contracts to onesthat are more outcome
hased Wecontinue to see the trend towards the
Joint commussioning of NHS and Local Authority
services We believe that our market-leading
approach to service quality and innovation
threugh the application of technology puts the
Group In &strong position

Saciat Hausing Care Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Revenue 7147 7425 1240 1231 8387 B8656
Operating
profit* 344 335 96 86 441 432
Operating
margn* 48% 45% 78% 78% 53% 50%

* Beforeamortisation of acquisition intangibles, exceptional items and long-term incentives
Social Housing

The Social Housing business has delivered a solid performance
with ravenues of £714 7m (2013 £742 5m) As stated within our
2013 results, revenuas for the ex-Morrison business initially
benefited from a non-recurnng spike in the period immediately
following the acquisition These former Marnson contracts
delivered revenues in the year of £200m (2013 £235m} which
was In line with our expectations Moving forward, we would
expect these contracts to be maintained at the current level

We are delighted to see an increase in the cperating margin to

4 8% (2013 4 5%) driven primarily by the improving contract
margins being generated from the ex-Morrison business, these
margmns are ahead of our original expectations Arelatively quiet
period has allowed the Group to progress with margin imprevemnent
inhatives whilst there have been fewer contract start-ups, which
are typically loss-making during mobihsation

Service quality remains our key differentiator We are pleased that
our Social Housing division continues to achieve high standards of
service delivery The proportion of customers rating our service as
excelient has improved to 91% (2013 82%) Typically, othersin the
sector measure only satisfaction, whereas ocur drive has been for
excellence | am pleased that within two years of completing the
Marrison transaction, we have a new portfolio of financially sound
contracts with good levels of customer service

Social Housing — business development

The housing finance changes introduced in 2012 decentralised
decision making and empowered Local Authorities to determine
the future ofthe local housing offering they make to therr communities
In addition both Local Authorities and Housing Asscciations have
been impacted by the intreduction of welfare reforms which have
changed the relationship between tenants and landlords We
communicated these changes early and, as anticipated, they had

a posttive effect on the funding available to Registered Social
Landlords (RSLs), as evidenced by the large number that are
reporting surpluses A short-term negative, however, has been the
delays in new bidding opportunities resulting from thase changes
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Whereas, historically, the focus for the Housing Revenue Account
was In respect of maintaining the existing stock, the additional
funds available now giva nise to a varety of investment decisions
causing a number of RSLs to consider therr next steps over a longer
timeframe Whilst these detays have resulted in the absolute level
of opportunities to bid for in the year being lower than oniginally
anticipated, the bidding opportunities available to the Group over
the longer term remain at historical levels

We anticipated that 2015 would be an important period for
contract retention Three matenal contracts were expected to be
rebrd in the coming year However, In a similar way to aur recent
experience with new contract oppartunities the contracts have
nat been rebid but rather extended to Mears to beyond 2015

Over time, we have learned that i addition to excellent service
delivery, strict bidding practice and innovation 1s essential In Social
Housing We appreciate that clients and competitors are under
enormous pressure in an increasingly complex market with
challenging underlying needs We have become more aware this
year of a material number of contracts held by competitors that
are unsustainable either in terms of service delivery, financial
viability or both We ara confident that cver the next 18 months,
our patiznce wilt be rewarded and our differentiated model vindicated,
as these contracts reach breaking point This potnt s illustrated
by our appaintment by Sutton Housing Partnership {SHM), which
we mobilised over a penoed of two days in late December 2014
This contract was awarded on an emergency one-year basis after
the exit of the iIncumbent contractor The contract covers 6,000
homes in the London Borough of Sutton delivering responsive
repairs, voids and a planned maintenance programme The
contract mebilisation has gone extremely well, especially

given the short timescales, our new client has experienced

an immediate iImprovement in quality

Qur clients are looking to consclidate and transferm an array

of housing management activities, such as planning and asset
management, income optimisation lettings and the operation
ofrelated call centre infrastructure The market for these types
of white collar activities 1s significant at circa £4 billion per year,
and 1s largely untouched by the private sector An evolving Sacial
Housing market, following recent changes in the welfare system
and tenancy arrangements, over and above the ongong pressure
on budgets generally, has increased the pressure on our clients
to rethink how best to meet the needs of not only existing tenants
but also the 3 million potential tenants on long Sccial Housing
warting ists Recognising how Mears has worked in partnership
with them in the past to address more broad-based blue collar
challengas, we have bean encouraged to collaborate to tackle
the secter’s housing management (Ssues

During October 2014, Mears completed the acquisition of the
Omega Group (Omega) Omega Is a leading private sector provider

of residential lettings and management services to the Soctal Housing
market, with a portfolio of circa 1,700 properties and a client base
of 24 Locai Authorities and Housing Associations The acquisition
of Omega Is in line with the Group's strategic aim {0 continue growing
In the evolving Sccial Housing market, adding further innovation
to Mears' housing managementoffering and 15 sympathetic to our
partnership ethos

Mears Housing Management Services is a logical extension of the
services prowded within our Social Housing division it aims 1o add
value to the existing client base and to enhance our service offering
These new services have heen established to work with housing
providers to improve the delivery of housing and property management
services and to increase the supply and management of housing
Qur aim1s to provide housing and property management sarvices to
aur public sector clients, driving efficiency and better value

In targeted communities

Mears has a strong track record of turning around, integrating and
extracting substantial value from acquired businesses along with
an excellent reputation for service delivery As we look to broaden
the services we offer across the sphere of Social Housing we will look
to maks further ecquisitions to reinforce cur market-leading position

Social Housing

Revenue Operating profit* Operating margin*
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* Bafarg amortisation of ecquisition intangibles exceptional items.
and long term incentres

In focus
Mears'
acquisition of
Dmega lettings

In focus

Mears and North
Lanarkshire Council,
aunique JV

page 29 page 30
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Strategicreport

Review of operations continued

Social Housing — business development continued Local Authorities especially those that have retained their housing

The state of the housing market will feature highly nthe runup to
the General Election this year All major political parties recognise
that a correctly functioning housing market ts central to the economic
and social success of communities and the nation as a whole The
demand for affordable housing whether that be at a social rentora
near market rent, 1s very high with circa 1 7m households on warting

stock, have been propelled to centre stage as leading players in
bridging the gap caused by the national shortfall in housing supply
The revised financial settlement which came snto being in April 2012
has proved productive for Local Authorities and has given many
an increasing headroom for investment However, that headroom,
reflected n surpluses, has not yet generated major investment

lists 1n England and Wales Recent research has concluded that
circa 3m adults batween the ages of 20 and 34 stul Live with

their parents

Social Housing — new contract bidding

The Group has increased its historical Social Housing new contract win rate to 35% (by value) {2013 33%) and secured new work
with a total value in excess of £170m (2013 £420m) The most significant awards are detalled below

Contract

Sutton Housing
Partnership

Detall

Mears was awarded a contract to repair and maintain 6,000 homes Thus followed the termination of the previous
provider The contract s anticipated to be werth £4mn 2015

Medway Council

Mears was re-awarded & new five-year repair and maintenance contract for its 3,000 properties, with the new
contract starting in August 2014 The total contract value 1s estimated at£20m Works include response and void
rmaintenance together with modernisations and large maintenance projects such asnew kitchens and bathrooms

London Borough

Mears has won & housing management cantract to refurbish an ex-care home which has been unoccupied

of Suttan for severat years The contract entails the conversion of the ex-care home into 43 units of self-contained
accommodation for use as temporary accommodation Mears will provide lettings, housing management
security and temporary accommodation services over the ten-year lease period

Central Mears has won a contract to provide lettings, housing management and tem parary accommodation services in

Bedfordshire
Council

the Central Bedfordshire area This contract, which will support Central Bedfordshire Council by placing homeless
households into quality and affordable private sector rented accommodation, further strangthening Mears'
presence in the Home Counties

East Thames
Housing

Mears has been awarded a contract to lease, refurbish and manage a total of 210 properties in East London
earmarked for demolition and regereration The services will invalve refurishment, lattings housing management
and temporary accommodation services over the lease period The deal further strengthens Omega’s resolve

of bringing empty properties back into use to Increase the supply of affordable accommodation

Preferred

bidder status —
partner with
the Department
of Communities
and Local
Government
(DCLG)

Mears has been appointed preferred bidder with the DCLG for the commerciglisation of 1ts Planning Portal This
strengthens our housing management services and represents an exciting oppertunity to broaden our services
aswell as providing a further point of access Into every Local Authority in England and Wales The Planning Portal
1s a web-based one-stop shop for advice and guidance on planning, building regulations and appeals It 1s the sole
electronic means to submit a planning apphicatian, with inks to all Local Authorities in England and Wales Soeme
80% of planning applications go through the Portal and DCLG believes the Portal has cornmercial value as well as
opportunities to grow revenue It is an this basis that it approached the market to locate a partner to take on the
running costs of the service and further develop it into a truly commercial business

|n addition to the new contract awards a number of matenial contracts, which had ariginally been due to come up for renewal in 2015,
have been subject ta extensions, notably Gateshead (extended to 2017), Sedgefield (extension anticipated to 2016) and Birmingham

{extended to 2016}
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Mears working in partnership
with North Lanarkshire Council

Mears 1s currently in year four of a ten-year partnership
with North Lanarkshire Council, the fourth largest
Autharity in Scotland, delivering reactive and void repairs
tothe Councit's full housing and property portfelio

The housing stock consists of approximately 37 000 homes
including low, madium and high riseand a number of sheltered
housing developments with a repairs budget in excess

of £28m per annum

The non-housing stock consists of approximately 730 sites
including schools offices, care certres and recreational facilines

Mears also delivers around £8m of additional works
including Scottish Housing Quality Standard works ang
one-off capital projects such as

» kitchen and bathroom installations,
» office refurbishmant

« completion of a daycare centre and
« school boiler replacement

Since the start of the contract over 80 new apprenticeships
have been created

Our Social Housing strategy
We have maintained a consistent strategy aver the last 15 years,

which 15 summarised below

Strategicfocus

Dolivary

Differentiate on customer
service leadership as

the prime driver of
sustainable growth

Record level of custamer satisfaction
achieved in 2014

Support our clienis to
obtain maximum benefit
from the opportunities
presented by Government
and funaing

Provision of a full asset
management capability to ensure
appropriate (nvestment in housing
stock refurbishment The acquisition
of Omega further advances the
Group's capability

Focus on building
long-term partnerships

Retention of key client relationships
in 2014, including Thurrock and Octavia
and matenal contract extensionsin
Gateshead and Leeds Successful
development and introduction of

new partnership models such as

our joini ventures in Manchester

and Narth Lanarkshire

Drive iInnovation
to provide better
outcomes for tenants

Investment in the development of
housing management services and
further enhancement to cur Mears
Direct model, which provides solutions
for chients who wish to insource ther
maintenance services

Develop a skilted and
motivated workforce

Achieved top 100 employer status

in the UK for apprentices Extensive
investment in training and development
of staff at all levels

Consider acquisitions to
supplement cur capabiities
and support our Increasing
service breadth

Pipeline of potential housing
management acquisitions to reinforce
our leadership position but greater
focus 1s upon organic growth
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Strategic repert

Review of operations continued

Housing management

Through our acquisition in 2014 of Omega Lettings,

we received full planning parmission frorm the London
Borough of Sutton in December 2014 to canvert adisused
Council-owned building Into 43 setf-cantained flats
housing 123 people

The seheme 1s a partnership with the Council and
will pravide excellent lving conditians for farmilies in
emergency housing need whao would have ctherwise
been lving In bed and breakfast accommodation

The development s fully funded through existing hausing
benefit levels, meamng there 1s no cost to Sutton Coauncil
In fact, the conversion will generate efficiency savings as
the Council nolonger pays for the cost of bed and breakfast
accommaodaton for the resident familres the cost of
security at the empty building or the loss of council

tax on the property

Care

The Board 1s pleased with the performance of the Care divtsion
In terms of both the quality of service delivery and the solid
financial performance

The Care division reparted revenues of £124 Om (2013 £123 1m),
grawth of 1% This growth reflects a full-year impact from ILS,
acquired in Apnl 2013, without which the undertying business
would have reported a reduct:on in revenues The reduction,
takan in(solation, 1s disappointing Significant progress has,
however, been made in developing the business and in the wider
market The matn limitation to growih in Care remains in sourcing
sufficient care workers of good quality, this ehallenge will onty
increase as we move forward and we are focused on finding
solutions to address this There remains more work available
than we can responsibly service Maintaining both service
quality and margin remain the primary drivers for the Group

We are pleased that the operating margin at 7 8% has been
maintained at the levels achieved in the prior year, despite our
significant investment in improving the terms and conditions of our
workforce We are commutied to improving the terms and conditions
of our carers, notably our aspiration to increase pay rates towards
the lnving wags and a movement away from zero-hour contracts

We still have a long way to go to achieve this and further progress
will require the care commissieners to share this ambition

Care — business development

We entered the Care market in Z007 with & clear strategic vision
that the market would develop in a similar way to Social Housing
Notably, we expected to see a shift towards outcome-hased
contracts, whare vendor payments are based on the quality of
the outcame for the recipient rather than stmply based on the
ttme spent in delivering the service We also expected to see
customers move toward awarding contracts for longer terms
to fewer providers, who could provide broader services and who
could also assist In driving efficiencies within clients’ cost bases
We have positioned ourselves as a htgh quality business focused
upon servica delivery in readiness for the market change The
speed of change has baan slow, howaver strong momentum has
now built up which endorses our strategy

The award of the Torbay contract 1s ancther crucial milestone for
Mears and represents a further important develapment in the UK
Care market While still early days, there are indications now that

a number of other Local Authorities are looking to follow the lead
of Wiltshire County Council and now Torbay We share absolutely
the vision for Torbay and are committed to harmonising standards
integrating IT systems and achieving great outcomes for all clients
Local providers will continue to play an importantrole in the delivery
of care and support in Torbay

We are seeing a positive move In the structure of tendered
oppartunities, tn-line with our predictions at the time we entered
the Care market The majority of new opportunities are now leading
to a consolidation in the number of providers, with several Councils
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Mears driving up standards
in the home care workforce

In spring 2014, Mears inthiated a cross-party commission
to examine the future of the home care workforce
The Rt Hon Paul Burstow MP (the former Minister of State
for Care and Support) chatred tha commission, which
heard evidence from across the home care sector

The commussien launched itsreport in December 2014,
recelving a substantial amount of media coverage
The commssion calls for

« Keyworker status for home care workers and a living
wage Careworkers provide the hands-on care that is
the key to our social cere system They deservetobe
fairty compensated and have their contributions
recognised and rewarded

s Minlmum payments for contact hours Councils should
ensura that they are paying a sufficient rate for contact
hours which ensures that providers can cover travel
time and wa should be working towards the living wage
for care workers

+ Ashake-up of care commlssioning and better
oversight of existing cantracts Councils need to focus
maore on person-centred outcomes and be more proactive
in ensunng that their use of existing framework contracts
1S not contributing to the worst practices inhome care
such as call cramrung

« Atraining and career pathway for care workers
Care warkers in both health and social care need
minimum standards of training that can be developed
into pathways of specialism Arnore formalsed career
path would include apprenticeships alongside clear
career pathways

With the nght support and iavestment the crucial role that
care workers play can be recognised as a career of esteem
that will safeguard the future of our ageing population

adopting strategic partnering arrangements This change has
been driven by the need to deliver new service models through
greater integrated working with the NHS and by the need to
address financial challenges Contract lengths are also improving
from an average of 2 5 yearsn 2012, to over three years in 2014
Those locking at strategic partnerships typically have contract
lengths of five to eight years We anticipate this change wiil
continue at a pace over the next few years

Our higher acuity Nurseplus activities have made strong progress
since acquisition 1in April 2013, diven from securing new high acuity
packages with the existing Mears client base, which had not been
served previously The business has now been integrated fully and
the structure of the Care business has been further enhanced under
two divisional managers covening the nerth and south of the UK
together with an additional ten technical case managers, this

18 a significant investment in an area of Care which we expect

to deliver significant growth

Social Care continues to be a focus for society at large and,
consequently, further evolution of the market may be expected
Councils are striving to protect spending on adult care as their overall
budgets come under pressure due to the prevailing environment aof
austerity These financial pressures are being offset by a phased
programme of budget transfer from the NHS, announced last year,
to promote battar joint working between the ‘free’ at the point of
delivery NHS and means tested' local domicitiary and residential
care services The greater integration of the NHS can be seenn
the proportion of opportunitiss Invelving complex services, having
grown from one 1n four In 2012 to approaching one In two of all
tanders n 2014

Care
Revenue Operating profit*  Operating margin*
£ E £ E & R
; Q 0 W :: o
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+ Befora amortisation of acquisition intangibles exceptional items
and long-term incentrves

In focus In focus

Mears' Nurseplus A new commissioning
partnarship modelis transforming the
withthe NHS sector

page 32 page 31
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Strategic report

Review of operations continued

Partnership working
with the NHS

Mears Nurseplus)s already playing an active role in
helping to alleviate some of the pressures on demand
for hospital beds

After two years In an intensive treatment unit, Mr B was
assessed as fit for discharge from hospital Prear to
discharge, a multi-disciplinary team consisting of
consultants social services and Mears Nurseplus
was created to oversee the transition from haspital

to 24-hour home care

Before Mr B was able to return home minor adjustments
were required to the family home Mears Nurseplus met
with Mr B's wife and an architect to discuss the work
required and the practical adjustments needed for a
safadischarge

The Mears Nurseplus staff selected by Mr B began their
traiming programme by shadewing Mr B's named nursing
team and allied heelth professionals The home ventilation
team and the complex care team provided specralist
training to ensure that the Mears Nurseplus team was
competent in all aspects of Mr B's care regime

Following discharge, NHS staff and social workers visited
Mr B regularly to assess the care delivery Mr Bis now
happily settled back home and is starting to rebuild his life
with hiswife and three children

Our Care strategy

Qur Care strategy has evolved prudently over several years,
reflecting the often slow speed of change 1s now the sector The
positive movas we are seeing in the structure cftendered opportunities
are In ine with our predictions and the momentum of change 1s now
building and 1s positive Qur strategy seeks to reinforce this
momentum and ta benefit from it

Strategic focus Delivery

Our Wiltshire contract, which commenced
in 2013, 18 very much the flagship for
this development Within Wiltshire,

all care plans are written based upon
achieving specific autcomes for indndual
gervice users We agree a budget and
atimeframe to achieve thase outcomes
and payments are linked to our success

Focus on delivering high
quality care through the
development of ouicome-
hased working, as opposed
to the traditional care
focus on task and time

Debver sustainable pricing We are focusing on those contracts
that allow us to recruit a workforce
delivering a hugh quality service This
has resulted i a further tightening of
our bid/no bid decisions, which included
our not rebidding for one of our existing
relatively bigh velume, but low
priced, contracts

We have agreed new mimimum pay
levels for our staff which are set ahead
of national minimum wage with a further
significant enhancement for those
working within the London area We are
also investing further in training and a
range of other benefits We balieve this
investment 1s fundamental to help
reduce the staff churn rate as such,
this investment should be self-funding
over the longterm

Invest in the workfcrce
to ensure both motivated
and well trained

Increasing integration of NHS and
social services 1s growing the number
of people with more complex conditions
who need care at home Complex care
covers services such as spinalinjuries,
head injuries, end of life care, dementia
care and learning disabilities Given the
potential of this area, we will invest in
our own Mears Nurseplus infrastructure
and in a number of regional clinical leads
who can develop local relationships with
Climical Commissioning Groups (CCGs)

Evolve the breadth and
depth of service offering

Qur focus 15 onidantifying any complex
care businesses that can assistin the
scating up of a full national presence
We are loaking for quality operations
which, when combined with our own
orgamic investment, witl enable us to
build a teadership platform across

all levels of care In the home

Consider acquisttions to
supplement our capabiliies
and support gur increasing
service breadth
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Care — new contract bidding

In Care, the contract bidding success rate (by value) of ali contracts bid was 73%, amounting toa total value of £130m (2013 £96m, 69%),

including the amounts shown in the table below

Contract Datall

Torbay and Southern Mears Care has been awarded a5 + 3 year contract, estimated to be worth £50m Mears is the single prime contractor

Devan NHS Trust to deliver Living Well@Home Services across Torbay and Southern Devon
The innavative service delivery model integrates personal care and mare complex healtheare at homs (overseen by Mears
Nurseplus) and mental health and learning disability support senices, together with housing related and community
support Outcome-based payments will be Implemented as sacn as possible after the contract commencement date

NHS Rotherham Athrea-year contract worth £3 7m for domiciary care, end of life services and complex care for service users

CCaG with learning disabilities and/er physical disabilies, including spinal injuries and ventilated patients

Ptymouth Council

We have been awarded a three-year contract worth £5 5m Services include a two-hour rapid response service and support

for people with dementia, learning and physical disabilities The contract will also promote joint working with the NHS

Stirling and
Clackmannanshire

We have retained our major contracts with Stirling and Clackmannanshire, which came as part of the ILS acquisition
The two contracts are for four years of personal care and support services worth an estimated £18m over four years

Calderdale Council Mears was awarded a new three-year contract for perscnal care and support worth £8 5m over three years

Care — business development continued

The Better Care Fund 1s already having a significant impact at

a local tevel with all Councils drawing up plans with NHS Clinical
Commussioring Groups around the transfer of funds from the NHS into
community-based care and support The £5 billon+ Better Care Fund
wll start to have a more significant impact from the middle of 2015

Virtually all tenders now include an etement of outcame-based
reward (compared to 2012 when all tenders wera task and time
based) There are a number of such opportunities in the pipeline
in which outcome-based elements will be significant We are
working on an outcome basis in our Wiktshire contract

The Health and Sccial Care Act, which came into forceon 1 Apnil 2013,
established Health and Wellbeing Boards to premote this more efficient
and productive local integration This has now been re-enforced by
the Care Act 2014 which camesinto force this year and will see greater
focus on outcome-based reward, integrated working and prevention
activities The Care Act also provides for the introduction of the £72,000
care funding cast cap for ndniduals in 2016, following recommendations
from the Dilnot report This will increase the number of people
receiving public funded care

Positive outlook for the Group

We operate In robust and defensive markets where spend 1s
largely non-discretionary We continue to place great emphasis on
winmng high quality contracts that provide clear and sustainable
margins with good cash flow dynamics Qur dedication to providing
our clients with first class service and value remains undiminished

We expect our Social Housing business to continue to grow
through further contract wins Although we are the market leader
we deliver services to just 15% of the UK Social Housing stock
which leaves us significant further growth opportunities given
our differentiated market-leading positioning

We see the development of our housing managemant services
as an important extension of our Social Housing offering The
demand for affordable housing will previde opportunitias to work
with housing providers to improve the detivery of housing and
property management services and toncrease the supply and
management of housing through innovatian and partnership
Currently, this area s highly fragmented and undeveloped We
belteve the Group 1s well posiioned to progress and deliver strong
organic growth Where appropriate, we will make acquisitions
to develop the breadth of our services and enhance our scale

We are confident that further apporturnties in Care will grow from
health and socral care outsourcing and the implementation of new
localised commissioning modals Conseguently, we will continue
to move further up the acuity chain, with an increased focus upen
organic growth, extending our Nurseplus model across our clients
with this growth being supported by in-fill acquisitions

In closing, since theturn of the year, trading remains in line with
our expectations and we look forward to another year of progress
across the Group

DJMiles

N \Q\XJ‘
Chief Executive Officer
david miles@mearsgroup co uk

17 March 2015
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Strategic report

Financial review

This Financial Review provides further key information in respect
of the financial performance and financial position of the Group

Andrew Smith
Finance Directar

In summary

Earnings

« The normalised diluted EPS, which allows for
the potential diluting smpact of outstanding
share options increased by 15% to 32 20p
(2013 28 06p)

Diidend

« The Board has recommended a final dividend
of 715p per share which, combined with the
intenm dividend gives a total dividend for the
year of 10 00p (2013 8 80p) a 14% increase

Cash

+ The efficiency with which the Group manages
working capital remains a cornerstone of
its business The Group's conversion of
EBITDA to cash in the period was 96%
(2013 103%)

Read the Report of the Audit
Committee on pages 48to 48

Vigw tha primary statements
on pages 81 to 85

Group revenue Dividend per share
£838.7m 10.0p
(2013 £865 6m) (2013 8 80p)
Group operating profit* Cash conversion

— continuing activities

£43.0m 96%

(2013 £41 1m) (2013 103%)

+ Bafore acquisttion intangible amartisation and exceptional costs

Financial performance

This Financial Review provides further key informaticnin
respect of the financial perfarmance and financial position of
the Group, to the extent that this 1s not already covered within
the Chief Executive's Review of aperations

Acquisition of Omega Group

During October 2014, Mears completed the acquisition of the
Omaga Group (Omega), a leading private sector provider of
residential lettings and management services to the Social
Housing markat, with a porifolio of circa 1,700 properties and
aclient base of 24 Local Authorities and Housing Associations

The initial consideration for the acquisition was £20 Om in

cash, funded from Mears' existing banking facilities A further
consideration of £1 8m was paid to normalise the level of working
capital at completion Additional contingent consideration is payable
in instalmenits In the event that average EBITDA over a 36 month
pariod to 31 October 2017 exceeds £3 4m per annum The additional
consideration payable will be an amount based upon a multiple
of 6 8 applied to the average EBITDA, less the initial consideration
of £20m paid with total consideration capped at £41 8m Thedeferred
consideration will be satisfied using erither cash or shares at the
discretion of tha Cormpany
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Exceptional costs

It 18 pleasing to report a set of numbers where all transactions are
included within normal trading This followed the pravious year, which
had seen the Group dispose of 1ts non-core Mechanical & Electrical
business resulting I a less on disposal of £18 8m together with
Integration and restructuring costs of £8 6m following the acquisition
of Mornison Facilities Services Limited in late 2012 Whilst extracting
certain non-recurring itesns can at times be a necessity to ensure
the financial statements properly reflect underlying trading,

It has always been our strong preference to keep our normalising
adjustments to a mimmum

The Group inherited a number of financial challenges with

the acquisition of Morrisen which naturally brought with 1t an
increased level of uncertainty Our focus upen service delivery
and a commitment to (nvest in those contracts has enabled us
to resolve the key financial challengss pasitively and has placed
the ex-Morrison contracts on a sound facting The introduction
of the Mears systems and praven operational processes drove
through further improvements Inewitably there were some
positive and negative varances as Judgements and estimates
ware revised inthe light of changing circumstances however,
these combined to give a neutral impact to 2014 trading and
underlying trading remaing consistent

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles

A charge for amortisation of acquisition intangibles of £12 3m
(2013 £10 9m) arose in the periad This charge relates to a number
of acquisitions in both Social Housing and Care over recent years
The increase in the peried 1s pnincipally driven by the full-year impact
of ILS Group, acquired in May 2013, together with the impact of
the acquisition of Omega in October 2014, which generated an
identified acquisition intangible of £8 2m and which s to be
amortised over a period of batween five and twelve years

Net finance charge

A net finance charge of £1 3m has been recognised in the year
{2013 £1 8m)

The finance cost in respect of bank borrowings was £2 8m {2013 £3 2m)
The small decrease reflects the reduction in average debt The Group
has two Interest rate swaps which has fixed LIBOR at a blended
rate of 1 87% on the first £567 5m of its borrowing The remaining
debt bears a vanable LIBOR rate that has been in the region of

0 5% throughout the period The Group pays a margin over and
above the LIBOR which 1s subject to a ratchet mecharusim but
which 1s typically at the lower end of the range of 1 5% to 2 5%

Tha finance costs also include cther interest of £0 3m (2013 £0 4m)
relating to the discounting of trade receivables and provtsions
to properly reflect the time value of money

The net finance iIncame in respect of defined benefit pension
scheme was £18m (2013 £17m)

Share of profit in joint ventures

The acquisrtion of Cmega included two Joint ventures where the Group
has an interest in 50% of the share capital of the related entity
Whilst the Group has jaint control over their activities 1t does not
have outright control and therefore the resuits of the joint ventures
are not consolidated 1n the Group results and are incorporated
within a single entry on the face of the Group Income Statament
In the period since acquisition, the joint ventures generated a profit
of £0 6m of which half i1s recagnised within the Group Income Statement

Tax expense
2014 2013+
£m £m

Current tax recognised in Income Statement 47 34
Deferred tax recognised in Income Statement (03) 14
Total tax expenses recognised
in Income Statement 44 48
Profit before tax and before amortisation
of acquired intangibles 420 326
Profit before tax 297 217
Effective current tax rate 11 2% 10 2%

* Continuing activities

The tax charge for the year was £4 4m {2013 £4 8m) The headline
rate of corporation tax for the year was 21 5% (2013 23 3%) The
effective current tax recognised i the income 1s significantly lower
than the headline rate due to the utibsation of losses brought forward,
primarily associated with Morrison, combined with an annual
corperation tax deduction in respect of the exercisa of share options
For the samea reasan, the Group has also enjoyed a reduction in
the cash outflow from carporation taxof £2 3m (2013 £3 1m)

The headline rate of corporation tax will reduce to 20 3% mn

2015 in line with tax tegistation We anticipate the gap baetween
the headline rate and effective rate will narrow moving forwards,
however, corporation tax losses carried forwards together with an
annual corporation tax deduction In respect of the exercise of
share options, are likely to maintain an effective rate below the
headline rate over the medium term

The Group continues to follow a non-aggressive policy in respect
of taxation and this behaviour, combined with an excellent record
of tax compliance, continues to provide the Group the benefit

of an HMRC tow risk status
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Strategic report

Financial review continued

Earmngs per share (EPS)

2014 2013 Change
P [ %
Diluted earnings per share -
continuing activities 24 65 16 98 +45%
Normatised diluted earnings
per share — continuing actwvities® 3220 3008 +7%
Normalised diluted earnings
per share - all activities* 3220 28 06 +15%
Dividend per share 10 00 8 80 +14%

* Befora acquired intangible amortisation, exceptional costs with an adjustment
to reflect a full tax charge

The normalised diluted EPS, which allows for the potential dilutiva
impact of outstanding share options increased by 15% to 32 20p
{2013 28 06p) Normalised earmings are stated before exceptional
costs and exclude the amortisation of acquisiton intangibles
together with an adjustment to reflect a fult tax charge of 21 5%
{2073 23 3%) We believe that this normalised diluted EPS measure
better allows the assessment of operational performance, the
analysis of trends over time, the comparnison of different businesses
and the projection of future performance

Cash performance

2614 20713+
£m £m
Operating prafit** 430 411
Excepticnal costs with cash impact — {88
Depreciation 55 56
Adjusted EBITDA 48 5 379
Cash inflow from operating activities 46 4 389
EBITDA to cash conversion 96% 103%
Net cash/{debt) at balance sheet date 38 {0 4)
Average debt inyear 590 700
Cora debt at tha year end 750 700

*  Gontinuing activities
++ Bafore amortisation of acguisition intangibles and exceptional items

The efficiency with which the Group manages working capital
remains a cornerstone of our businass The Group'’s conversien of
EBITDA to cash in the perniod was 96% (2013 103%) The Group has
constistently set high standards of working capital management
and high levels of conversion of profit into cash Given the absence
of growth in the top Line1n 2014, the achievement of strong cash
conversion might be viewed as easy however cash collection

in a high volume, low value and public sector environment atways
represents a challenge and we are delighted at this continued

strang performance

Our net cash position at 31 December 2014 was £3 8m (2013 net
debt £0 4m) Whilst the year end cash position was pleasing
typically the accaunting period end has a low debt baiance when
compared to the rest of the year Afar more important metric 1s the
Group's daily net debt balances which provide a better indication
of working capital management The average net debt over the
year, excluding the Omega transaction, showed a reduction to

£59 Om compared to core debt in tha previous year of £70 Om

The Group has a £120m unsecurad revolving credit facility expiring in

2048 The Group continues to maintain a strong relatienship with
both of its bankers, Barclays and HSBC

Balance sheet

2014 2013
£m £m

Goadwill and intangible assets 227 4 1936
Investment in joint ventures 19 —
Property, plant and equipment 159 151
Inventories 85 105
Trade receivables 142 6 1516
Trade payables (187 1) (187 0)
Net debt 38 (0 4)
Deferrad consideration (210) (18)
Cash flow hedge (14) (12
Pension (net of deferred tax) 54 68
Taxation {15) 30

Net assets 194 5 1803
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Acquisittons and intangible assets

The value of goodwill and other identified intangibles carried
within the balance sheet s £227 4m (2013 £193 6m) The sigmficant
increase during the period was due to the acquisition of Omega,
which created an intangible asset of £8 2m and goodwill of £32 8m

Atotal of £12 3m (2013 £10 9m) of amartisation on acquisition
intangibles was charged to the Group Income Statement during
the period

Other trading balances

The Group capital expenditure of £4 5m (2013 £4 2m) relates

o IT hardware, other office aquipment and the refurbishment of
new office premises Pradominantly all our plant and machinery
1s hired and motor vehicles are subject to operating leases and
hance are not included within capital expenditure or recognised
as an asset within the balance sheet In addition, development
expanditure was incurred in developing the in-house IT platform
of £1 5m (2013 £1 2m) We would anticipate our caprtal expenditure
in property, plant and equipment be maintained at a similar level
in 2015 However, following our success In being awarded the pesition
as |oint venture partner to the DCLG, we would envisage development
expenditure recording a spike to around £3 5m in the three years
to 2017 before reducing to the historical level

Trade receivables and inventories decreased to £151 1m

{2013 £162 1m), which reflects a combination of reduced revenues
and strong working capital management Trade payables decreased
to £187 1m (2013 £197 0m} in ine with revenues

Total equity rose by £14 2m to £194 5m at 31 December 2014
The increase in net assets 1s driven by retaned prafits

Pensions
2014 2013
£Em £m
Pension asset 151 147
Pension liability (8 4) {61)
Net asset 68 86

yode) oiBerens I

The Group participates in two principal Group pension schemes
(2013 two) together with a further 28 (2013 30) individual defined
benefit schemes where the Group has received Admitted Body Status
In a Local Gevernmeni Pension Scheme At the point of tendering
for new contract opportunities, the Group seeks to minimise its
exposure to future changes In the required pension contribution
rates and to future Liabilities resulting from scheme deficits

We have experienced significant tightening in our pension assumptions
reflecting the changing market conditions and this has resulted
In anincrease in hatbities inthe current year

The Group's largest single scheme s the Morrison Facilities Pension
Scheme, which 1s predorninantly attached to aur North Lanarkshire
contract This scheme currently enjoys a net asset position of £15 1m
(2013 £14 7m) Whilst a small increase in the carrying value of the
asset s pleasing, the Board 1s mindful that valuations can fluctuate
Importantly, based on the latest tnenmial valuation, dated Apnil 2012,
the scheme reported a surplus of £4 8m utilising a more prudent
set of assumptions based on the statutory funding principles The
IAS 19 actuanial valuations for the other schemes as at December 2014
reported a deterioration following the increase in scheme llatilities,
with an increase intha net pension liability by £2 3m ta £8 4m

The Group continues to comply with a repayment plan agreed
with the trustees of the Mears Group scheme whareby the Group
will pay £1 Om per annum for a period of seven years with a view
to the schame being fully funded by 2020

ACMSmith
Finance Director
andrew smith@mearsgroup co uk

17 March 2015 &Q
L

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of

Directors on 17 March 2015 signed gts behalf by
JEEANN

D JMiles
Chief Executive Officer
david miles@mearsgroup co u
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Corporate gevernance

Introduction to corporate governance

We are committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance Effective corporate governance
Is essential to facilitate the success of the Company

Dear shareholder,

At Mears, we are committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance We seek to create a working culture where honesty,
openness and fairness are valued

We seek to maintain the highest standards of corporata governance
as this will help to facilitate the success of the Company and sustain
this over time Antmportant distinction between the managerment,
led by Dawid Miles, Chief Executive Officer, and the Board I1s that

the management are responsible for running the business while

the Board, acting under my leadership, provides the constructive
challenge to the management nacessary to create accourntatility
and drive performance This results inan environment that creates
and preservesvaluefor shareholders

The composition of the Board 1s vital to ensure that we hava the
right mix of skills and experience, ensuring that Board members
have sufficient knowledge of the Company whilst maintaining
therr independence and objectivity | am fortunate as Chairman
to be able to call upon a Board with a broad range of expertise
and specialisms

Performance evaluation of the Board, its Commuttees and
indvidual Directors takes place on an annual basis Thisyears
review was externally facilitated with an independent reviewer
meeting with all Board members individually The Directors were
asked for their views on a broad range of areas including Group
strategy, independence, experience, effectiveness, shareholders
and the Interaction between Board members Some improvements
wera proposed and implemented, but overall the Board was felt
to be working effectively

R Holt «
Chairman

bob holt@mearsgroup co uk
17 March 2015

The Board is responsible for the Group’s
system of corporate governance and is
ultimately accountable for the Group’s
activities, strategy and financial
performance The Board i1s dedicated to
upholding and achieving good standards
of corporate governance, integrity and
business ethics for all activities

Your Board has due regard for the benefits of diversity in its
membership, including gender and strivas to mamtain the nght
balance It comprises individuals with deep knowledge and
experience In core and diverse business sectors within local,
international and glebal markets, bringing a wide range of
perspectives to the business

Length of tenure of Beard

13+ years 3

10-12 years

7-9 years 4
4—B years 2

0-3 years

Non-Executive/Executive Directors

Executive 4

Nan-Executive 5

Read the Report of the Audit Commuttea
on pages 46 to 49

Read the Report of tha Namination Committea
on pagae 45
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Your Board

Bob Holt
Chairman

Age B0
Jenura 18years

Andrew C M Smith
Finance Director

Age 42
Tenure 15years

Michael G Rogers
Nan-Executive Director
Age 73

Tenura 7 years

Davld L Hosein
Non-Executive Diractor
Age 51

Tenure 7 years

Rory Macnamara
Nan-Executive Director

Age 60
Tenure 4 years

skills and experience Bob had a controlling
interest in Mears at the time of flotation In
October 1996 He has a background in
daveloping support service businesses He
has operated in the sarvice sector since 1981,
nitially in a financial capacity then moving
into general management

Skilis and experience Andrew joined Mears

1n 1998 and, prior to his eappointment to the
Board, was Finance Oirector covering all of the
Mears Group s subsidianss Andrew qualified
as a Chartered Accountant in 1994 and worked
in professional practice prior to joinmg Mears

Skills and experience Michael founded
Careforce in 1899 and has over 30 years’
axperience in healthcare services and care
provision In 1878 he joined Nestor Medical
Group Limited as Managing Director and went
on to becorme Chief Executive of Nestor
Healthcare Group ple from 1986 to 1986 From
1996 to 1999 he worked as a consultantto a
number of healthcare related organisations

Board Committees Remuneratien Committes

Skills and experience David has over 17 years
cansulting experence, the last five of which
have been at 0C&C Strategy Consultants
Luruted where David 1s a Partner David has
warked extensively inthe support services
sector for corporate and private equity clients
Previously, he was a partnern Arthur
Andersen He jomed Mearsin 2008

Board Committees Nommnation Committes

Shills and expenence Rory s a Chartered
Accountant with a wida range of corporate
finance transaction experience He was
previously Vice Chairman and Head of Mergers
and Acquisitions at Deutsche Morgan Grenfell
and latterly a Managing Director at Lehman
Brothers Heis currently a consultant to varnous
companies and holds a number of Directorships

Board Committees Remuneration Committes
Audit Committee
Namination Committee
{Chairman)

Bavid J Milas
Chief Executiva Officer

Age 49
Tenure 18years

AlanLong
Executive Dirgctor

Age 52
Tenure 9years

Pater F Dicks
Nen-Executive Daputy
Chairman and Seniar
Independant Directer
Age 72

Tenure 7 yaars

Davida Marston
ton-Executive Director

Age 61
Tenure &years

Ben Westran
Campany Secretary

Age 38
Tenure 11years

Skills and expenence Dawvid joined Mearsin
1996 and prior to his appaintment to the Board in
January 2007, was Managing Oiractor of the
Mears Social Housing dmision Prior to joining Mears
David held & senior position with the MITIE Group
His backgraund 1s in etectrical engineering

Skills and experience Alan joined Mears in
2005 and, prior to his appointment to the
Board n August 2009 he was Managing
Director of the Group's Care division having
previously held the postian of Group Sales and
tarketing Director Prior to Joimng Mears, Alan
held senior roles for Britanma Buitding Seciety
Mars and Smith and Nephew

Skills and experience Peter has been active in
the venture caprtal and investment fields far a
number of years He is currently a Director of a
number of companies He joined Mears in 2008
and s Chairman of the Remuneration Committes

Board Committees Remuneration Committee
{Charrman)
Audit Committee
Nornmination Committee

Skills and experence Davida had a career

n iniernational banking and has served as

a Non-Executive Director of several major
companies in the UK and overseas Current
board appointments melude Bank of Ireland and
Liberbank She has Soctal Housing experience
having chatred the audit and risk commuttee for
Midland Heart and its predecessor company,
Keynote, as well as servingon the audst
commuttee of Family Mosaic

Board Committees Audit Committee {Chairman)

Skills and experience Bents a Chartered
Accountant and, priar to his appointment
as Company Secretary, was Group Financial
Controller and Director to a number of the
Group's subsidiaries Ben joined the Group
1n 2004 having previously worked in
professional practice
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Carporate governance

Corporate governance report

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of corporate governance

and 1s ultimately accountabile for the Group’s activities, strategy and financial
performance The Board is dedicated to upholding and achieving good standards
of corporate governance, integrity and business ethics for all activities

Corporate governance framework

Responsibility for good governance lies with your Board
There 1s a strong and effective governance system in place

throughout the Group

Chairman, Bob Holt

The Chairman s responsible for the leadership of the SBoard and ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects
of its role The Chairman sets the Board s agenda and ensures that adequate time 15 available for discussion
of all agenda items in particular strategic 1ssues

Read mare on govarnance
on pages 41to 45

The Board

Audit Committee

The Audit Committes s
responsible for effective
corporate governance inrespect
of financial reporting agreeing
the scope of the external audit
the setting of therr remuneration
and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group's Intarnal controls
risk management and internal
audit processes

Commuttee members
* Davida Marsten {Charman)

« Peter F Dicks
* RoryMacnamara

Read the Audit Committea
Repart on pages 46to 49

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee
1s responsible for assessing and
making recommendations in
respect of Executive remnuneration

Comrnittea members
e Pater F Dicks (Chairman)

* RoryMacnamara
« Michael G Rogers

Read the Remuneratian
Committas Report on page 50

Nomination Committee

The Nemination Committee s
responsible for ensuring that the
Board comprises a high levet and
range of business experience
and skills to enable the Group

to he managed effectively

Committee members
* Rory Macnamara (Chairman)

« Peter F Dicks
* David L Hosein

Read the Nomination
Committee Raport an page45

Senior Management Team

The Senior Management Team comprises Senior Executives across each of the Group's operaticnal divisions
and support functions and 1s the principal forum for directing the operatienal and financial business of the
Group and for delivering the strategy set by the Boarg

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Exacutive Officer
manages the day-to-day
business operations of the
Group and recommends key
strategies and implements
those agreed by the Board

Read the Operational Raview
on pages 2610 33
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Introduction

The Board 1s committed to maintaining the Group's operations in
accordance with the hwghest standards of corporate governance
as set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code {the "Code)
issued 1n 2012 and has complied with all Cede principles

and relevant provistons throughout the year

The Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2014 the Board had nine members comprising
the Chairman thae Chief Executive Officer, the Group Finance
Director, the Executive Directer and five independent Nan-Executive
Directors P F Dicks s the Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director The Directors’ bicgraphical details are set out on page 39
These indicate the high level and range of business experience
which enables the Group to be managed effectively Thair mix

of skills and business experience 1s a majer contribution to the
propar functioning of the Board and 1its Committees, ensuring
that matters are fully debated

Read the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 4110 44

The Board's prime objective 1s to ensure the ongoing commercial
and financial success of the Group The Board provides entrepreneurial
leadarship of the Group within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enable risk to be assessed and managed The Board
sets the Group s strategic aims, ensures that the necessary financial
and human resources are Iin placs for the Group to meet s objectives
and reviews management performance The Board sets the Group's
values and standards and ensures that the Graup's obligations

to 1ts shareholders and others are understood and met

‘The Chasrman, R Holt, 1s responsible for the leadership of the
Board and ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects of its role

The Chairman sets the Board's agenda and ensures that adequate
time 1s available for discussion of all agenda items, in particular
strategic 1ssues The Chairman promotes a culture of openness
and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-Executive
Directors In particular ensuring constructiva relationships between
Executive and Non-Executive Directors The Chairman s also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive accurats,
timely and clear information

The dwvision of responsibilities between the Chairman and

the Chief Executive Officer 1s clearly established and agreed by
the Board The Chief Executive Officer, DJ Miles, manages the
day-to-day businass aperations of the Group and ensures that
the appropnate standards of corporate governance permeate
throughout the organisation Acentral part of his role includes
recommending key strategies and implementing thase agreed by
the Board, communicating to shareholders and empleoyees and
allocating decision making and responsibilities accordingly He
takes a leading role in the relationship with all external agencies
and in promoting Mears Group PLC

Chairman

- Responsible for the leadership of the
Board and ensuring its effectiveness

- Setsthe Board s agenda and ensuras
adequate time s available for
discussion of all agenda items

+ Promotes a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective
contribution of Non-Executive Directars

+ Ensures that the Directors recelve
accurate, timely and clear information

Division of
responsibilities
The roles of the Charrman
end the Chief Executive
Officer are ctearly
established and agreed
by the Board

Chief Executive Officer

« Maneages the day-to-day business
operatians of the Group

+ Ensures that the appropriate
standards of corporate governance
permeate throughout the organisation

+ Recommends key strategies and
implements those agreed by the Board

- Takes a leading role in the relationship
with all external agencies and m
promoting Mears Group PLC
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Corporate governance

Corporate governance report continued

Board responsibility

The Board maintains and regularly reviews a full list of matters
and decisions that are reserved to, and can only be approved by,
the Board These are reviewad annually and include but are not
imited to

« Group strategy and operating plans

» corporate governance and risk management,

« compliance with laws, regulations and the Cempany's code
of business conduct,

» the approval of budgets,
« changes ta the Group's debt and equity funding

« appointment, termination and remuneration of Directors
and the Company Secretary,

« financial reporting and audit, including interim and full-year
results announcements and dividends,

« approving significant acquisitions, disposals and new
business start-ups,

« values and ethics, and
« employee benefits including pensions and share-based payments

Whilst the Board has specific responsibility for those matters
reserved for its consideration, In certain areas, specific responsibility
1s delegated to Committees of the Board within defined terms

of reference The activities of these Committees are discussed

in more detail later in this report

Independence of our Board

The balance and independence of our Board 15 kept under review
by our Nomnation Committee

The Code suggests that the length of tenure s a factor to consider
when determining independence Thetable below shows tha length
of tenure for each Non-Executive Director

Length of tenure

Director

D L Hosetn 7 years

M G Rogers 7 years

P F Dicks 7 years

D Marstan 4years

R Macnamara 4years

The Board considers that each of the Non-Executive Directors who
served during the year 1s independent in terms of judgement and
character and free from any relationship that might materially
interfere with the exercise of independent judgement

Notwithstanding this and for the sake of completeness, below1s a
summary of relationships of which shareholders should be aware

+ DL Hosein s aDrector of OC&C Senvices Lirmted (OC&C) which has,
in the past, received fees for work carned out for the Group, and

» MG Rogers became a Director of the Group 1n April 2007, on the
acquisition of Careforce, where he continued as Chief Executive
Officer in a purely transactional role, focused on Careforce and
not involved in the Group business until 2008 when he became
a Non-Fxecutive Director of Mears

The Non-Executive Directors provide a strong independent
element to the Board and bring expenence at a senior level of
business operations and strategy, constructively challenging and
helping develop proposals on strategy A summary of the terms
and conditions of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors

1s available on request from the Company Secretary

All Directors act in what they consider to be the bestinterests w
of the Company, consistent with ther statutory duties

The Non-Exacutive Directors constructively challenge and
develop proposals on stratagy and scrutinise the performance of
management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor
the reporting of performance They satisfy themselves on the
integrity of financial information and that financial controls and
systams of nsk management are robust and defensible They
determine appropriate levels of remunaration of Exacutive Directors
and have a prime rote in appointing and, where necessary, removing
Executive Directors and (n succession planning

Board membership and Board and Committee
meeting attendance

All Directors are expected to allocate sufficient time to the Company
to discharge their responsibilities effectively and, where possible
attend all Board meetings Any time commitment matters would
be addressed by the Chairman and the Director concerned

Please see the table opposite

Board meetings

The Board maets regularly throughout the year as well as cn an

ad hoc basis, as required by tirme-cntical business needs The Board
receives detalled financial information and regular presentations
from Executives on Mears' business performance Directors are
supplied with an agenda and supporting papers for ell Board meetings
on a timely basts alang with minutes of previous Board and Committee
meetings This enables the Directors to make informed decisions '
on corporate and business issues under consideration When
Directors are unabla to attend a meeting, they are advised of the
matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make thew
views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting During the year,
ax scheduled Board meetings were held In addition, the Directors
attended two Group strategy days and several meetings regarding
potential acquisitions
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Board performance evaluation overview

The perfermance evaluation pracess included
a review of the arsas of Board responstbility,

= this year s review was externally facilitated
with an independent reviewer meeting with
all Board members individually

» thestructure and composition of the Board and its
Committees and the performance of the Committees,

« theguantity, guality and scope of information
provided to the Board,

« thecontent of Board mestings and presentations
to meetings and

« the openness of communications between the
Board members and Executive management

Board membership and Board and Committee meeting attendance

Board meetings continued

The Non-Executive Directors meet independantly without
the Chairman present, and also meet with the Chairman
independently of management, on a regular basis

The Directors delegate responsibilities for the day-to-day
operational and financial management of the Group tothe Semor
Meanagement Team, which comprises Senior Exeécutives across
each of the Group’s operational divisions and support functions
and 1s the principal forum for directing the operational and
financial business of the Group and for delivering the strategy
set by the Board

Evaluation of Board performance

Performance evaluation of the Board its Committees and
individual Directors takes place on an annual basis with the
support of the Cornpany Secretary The Board undertakes formal
evaluation of its own performance and the Beard Committees
assess their respective roles, perfermance and terms of reference
and report accordingly to the Board The Boerd assesses the
reviews of each Committee

This year's review was externally faciitated, with an independent
reviewer meeting with all Boardmembers ndividually The Directors
were asked for thewr views on a broad range of areas including Group
strategy independence, expenence, effectiveness, shareholders
and the nteraction between Board members Some improvements
were proposed but overall the Board was felt to be working effectively

The Chairman conducts iIndividual appraisals with all Non-Executive
Directors on an annual basis The performance of the Chairman
was raviewed separately in a process led by the Senior
Independent Directar

Following the performance evatuation of individual Directors,

the Chairman has confirmed that the Directors standing for
re-elaction at this year's AGM continue to perform effectively

and demonstrata commitmentto theirroles Likewisa the Senior
Independent Director has given the same canfirmation in respect
of the Chairman !n line with current practice, all Dirgctors will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election annually

Board Strategy days Audit Nomination Remuneration
Number of meetings Potential Actual Potential Actual Potantial Actual Potential Actual Potential Actual
R Holt 5 2 2 — — — — — —
DJ Miles 6 6 2 2 4 4 — — — —
ACM Smith 8 3] 2 2 4 4 — — — —_
AlLong B 6 2 2 — — — — — —
M G Rogers 8 5 2 2 — — — — 2 2
P F Dicks [ & 2 2 4 4 1 1 2 2
D LHosemn 6 6 2 2 — — 1 1 — —
D Marsten 6 6 2 2 4 — — —_ —
R Macnamara B 6 2 Y4 4 3 1 2 2
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Corporate governance

Corporate governance report continued

Evaluation of Board performance continued

In particular the Board 1s strongly of the opinion that by thetr
actions and conduct they demonstrate their independence

It 1S the Board's intention to continue to annually review its
performance and that of its Committees and individual Directers
A decision 1s taken each year on the performance evaluation
process to be used

Director development

Any Director, on eppointment and throughout their service,
receives an induction and 1s entitled to receive any training that
18 considered necessary to fulfil their responsibilities effectively
The Chairman regularly meets with each Director to review and
agree any training and development needs

All Directors have access ta the Company Secretary whois
respensible far ensuring that Board procedures and applicable
rules and regulations are observed

Board Committees

The Board delegates certamn responsibilities to its principal
Committees The Audit Committee ensures the integrity

of financial infermatian, the effectivenass of the financial
controls and the internal control and nsk management systems
The Nomination Committes recommends the appointment of
Directors and cenducts a review of succession planning at Board
and Operating Board levels The Remuneration Committee sets
the remuneration palicy for Executive Directors and detarmines
therr individual remuneration arrangements

The Chairperson of each Commuittes provides a report of any
meeting of that Committee at the next Eoard meeting Each
Committee comprises Non-Executive Directors only, as
required by the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012

The Chairperson of each Committee I1s present at the AGM
ta answer questions from shareholders

The Company and its shareholders

The Company places a great deal of impartance on communication
with shareholders The Board 1s committed to maintaimng an
ongoing dialogue with its shareholders through the provision of
regular Intenm and Annual Reports and regular trading reports

There s regular dialogus with individual institutional shareholders
throughout the year, together with the more formal presentations
after the interim and preliminary results Throughoutthe year the
Group arranged a number of site visits for sharehclders and other
Crty commentators with the aim of providing them with increased
exposure to our operations and management

The Executive Directors respond on a daily basis to queries raised
from both institutional and individual shareholders and analysts
The Senior Independent Director together with other Non-Executive
Directors, are available to meet shareholders upon request

Regular consultation takes place between tha Remuneration
Committee and mayor shareholders prier to the adoption of any
changes to incentive arrangements

The principal methods of communication with private nvestors remain
the Annual Report and Accounts, the interim statements, the quarterly
newslstters and the Group's website (www mearsgroup co uk),
where the Group highlights the latest key business developments

The Board encourages dialogue between the Directers and investors
Directors are avallable at each AGM and make themselves available
for direct discussions with shareholders Simitarly the Directors
meet Mears’ debt providers regularly and are always keen to allow
them significant access to Mears’ operatiens, systems and
management information The Group values its close relationship
with its banking partners, Barclays and HSBC

The Board receives a regular summary of shareholder feedback
communicated through the Company brokers The feedback
received over the last twelve months has generally been very
positive Aconsistent concern that has been raised by a number

of shareholders relates to the perceived high level of reliance
placed upon the Chief Executive Officer, David Miles The Board
has started to address this with the introduction of both divisional
Chief Operating Officers at nvestor meetings to provide shareholders
better visibility as to the strength in depth of the Mears Senior

P F Dicks /
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
peter dicks@mearsgroup co uk

17 March 2015
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Report of the Nomination Committee

introduction

There 1s a formal, ngorous and transparent
pracedure for the appointment of new Directors
tothe Board The search for Board candidatesis
conducted, and appointments made, on mertt,
aganst objective criterta and with due regard
to the benefits of diversity on the Board,
including gender.

Alt Directors are able to allocate sufficient time

ta the Company to discharge their responsibilities
The Board has ptans in place for orderly success:on for
appontments to the Board and to senior management
These ptans aim to matntain an appropriate balance
of skilts and experience within the Company and

an the Board and ensure progressive rafreshing

of the Board

R Macnamara

Nomination Committee Chairman
rory macnamara@mearsgroup o uk
17 March 2015

L aee

Rote of the Committee
The Nomination Commiuttee’s responsibilities include

« keeping under review the composit:on of the Beard and succession
to 1t and successton planning for sentor management positions
within the Greup

« making recommendations to the Board concerning appomniments
tothe Board, whether of Executive or Non-Executive Directors
having regard to the balance of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of the Board,

« making recommendations to the Board concerning the
re-appaintment of any Non-Execuive Director at the conclusion
of us/her specified term and the re-election of any Director
by sharehoclders under the retirement provtsions of the
Company's Articles of Association,

s managing a formal, rigerous and transparent procedure
for any appointments of new Directors to the Board,

« prior tothe appointment of a Director, requiring that the proposed
appointee discloses any other business interests that may result
in a cenflict of iInterest and report any future business interests
that could result in a conflict of interest, and

+ ensuning that, on appointment to the Board, Non- Executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out
clearly what s expected of them in terms of time commitment,
Commuttee sarvice and involvement outside Board meetings

The Committee formally met once during the year and all members

of the Committee were present at the meeting In add:tion, to 1ts
formal meeting there was regular contact between committee
members as well as ad hoc meetings with other Board members
and management Duringthe year, the Committee considered the
membership of each Board Committee and updated Its succession
plans for Executive and Non-Executive Directors and senior
management This year the Commuttee commissioned an externally
facilitated evaluation of Board members from Mr Sean O'Connor
{who 18 wholly independent of Mears and has carrnied out evaluations
for other listed companies) This was done in addition to the regular
apprassal process noted in the Corperate Governance Report The
evaluator Interviewed each Board member and also contacted
external advisers No major 1ssues were identifiad but 2 number
of action points were nated and are now being addressed We have
adopted a policy that such externally facilitated evaluations will be
undertaken at least every threeyears

The Board acknowiedges that diversity extends beyond the
boardroom and supports the management effort to build a diverse
orgamsation The Company believes in promoting diversity at all
levels of the organisation at prasent 20% of our senior managers
are female The Board s confident that this will increase over time
When considering the optimum composition of the Board, the
benefits of diversity are approprately balanced with their skills,
knowledge, experience and approach
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Corporate governance

Report of the Audit Committee

Introduction

The Committee has clearly defined terms of reference
adopted by the Board and which set out 1ts objectives and
responsibilities relating to financial reporting, internal
controls, risk management and the application of
appropnate accounting policies and procedures

In recent years a considerable focus has been placed anrisk
governance and the effectiveness of management oversight of
both risk and internal contrals In the early part of 2014, the Audit
Committee and management commissioned an external review
of both areas which recognised the excellent work undertaken
and made some recemmendations to assist management with
strengthening and enhancing the risk management and internal
audit function

The Audit Committee has oversight responsibility for the internal
audit function and approved the Internal audit programme We
have reviewed and updated the Group's risk register The senior
management teams play a central role In reviewing and challenging
the Group's risks The Group risk team presented risk management
training medules to all levels of the management development
programme to further increase our strong sk management ethos

During 2014 we engaged KPMG as our cutsourced internal audit
partner, which completed a detalled sudit programme on the
Group's financial risks Some improvements were proposed but
averall the control environment was generally considered to be
effective and processes currently in place are designed effectively
to prevent or detect material errors or fraud from occurring

We continue to review the external audit engagement on an
annual basis having carried out a tender exsrcise in 2013
The tender process resulted 1n the re-appointment of Grant
Thornton UK LLP and 1 arm delighted that it has brought
additional innovation and added value to the process

D Marston

Audit Committee Chairman

davida marston@mearsgroup co uk
17 March 2015

Role of the Committee

The Committee has access to the financal expertise of the Group
and 1ts auditor and can seek further professional advice at the
expense of the Group, if required

The Audit Committes 1s responsible for

» reviewing and recommending for approval by the Board
the annual and intenim financial statements,

- agreaing the scope and reviewing the results of the external
audit and the setting of the auditor's remuneration

= reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls
and risk management processes,

« gpproving the internal audit plan and monitoring the
effectiveness of the internal avdit function, and

« reviewing the ‘whistleblowing policy' by which employees
and other stakeholders may raise concerns regarding potential
impropriety in confidence and ensure that these concerns are
investigated appropriately

The Committea's terms of reference are available on the
Company's website and on request from the Company Secretery

The Committee 1s comprised of financially literate members with
the reguisite ability and experience to enable the Committee to
discharge 1ts responsibilities Two of the three members are
considerad as having recent relevant financial expenence

Committee meetings

The Committee met four imes durning the year with attendance

by all members These meetings were also attended by the
Group Chief Executive Officer, the Broup Finance Director and the
Chief Risk Officer as required The external auditor, Grant Thornton
UK LLP, was invited to all meetings There was also significant
dralegue outside formal meetings between Comrnittee members,
Executive Directors and the external auditor particularly during
the audrt process and the preparation of the Annual Report

The Audit Committae Chairman meets with the external auditor
regularly throughout the year

o v
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Main activities of the Committee durning the year
Financial reporting

The primary role of the Committee in relation to financial reporting

1S to review with both management and the external auditor the
appropriateness of the half-year and annual financial statements,
concentrating upon the reasonableness of the accounting policies,
adherence to accounting standards and sufficiency and clanty

of the information disclosed

The primary areas of judgement considered by the Committee in
relation ta the 2014 accounts, and how these were addressed, were

Impairment of goodwill

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped

at the lowest level for which there are separately identiftable
cash flows, these are termed as cash-generating units {CGUs)
Mears has identifiad two CGUs, being Social Housing and Care
Determuining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimate
of the value In use of each of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated The value-in-use calculation involves an estimate of the
future cash flows of the CGU and also the selection of an appropriate
discount rate to calculate present values Future cash flows are
estimated using the current one-year budget, extrapolated for five
years using specific rates with a general terminal growth rate being
used thereafter Estimated growth rates ovar each period are
based on past experience and knowledge of the individual
sector's markets The Directors consider that the estimates and
Judgements involved 1n determining the vaiue in use of the Care
CGU goodwll are the most significant to the Group and they have
therefore utilised the services of an external consultant to assist
with this iImpairment review The value in use s most sensitive to
changes In the terminal growth rate, the explicit growth rate
during the forecast pariod and the discount rate The sensitivity
to changes in these estimations s detailed in note 11

The Audit Committee addressed this area of jJudgementin the
following ways the Committee reviewed the key assumptions
proposed by management, notably forecast growth rate and
discount rate Given the importance of these twa assumptions
the Committee reviewed reports prepared by a third party valuation
expart, American Appraisal, which prowded validation te the
management proposals

« the Committee reviewed the asset valuation report prepared by
American Appraisal on behalf of managemant The Committes
gave particular focus to the sensitivity analysis which showed
tha tevel of changes in key assumptions that would be required
before tnggenng any impairment and

+ this area represented a prime area of audit focus and
Grant Thornton UK LLP provided detailed feedback
to the Committee

Defined benefit labilities

A number of key estimates have been made, which are given below
and which are largely dependent on facters outside the control

of the Group

« anflation rates,
+ mortality,
« discountrate and

« salary and pensionincreases

Details of the particular estimates used are included
in the pensions note

Where the Group has acontractual right to recever the costs of
making good any deficit pension scheme, the fair value of that
asset has been recognised and disclosed Theright to recover
costs 1s limited to exclude situations where the Group causes the
schemse to incur service costs in excess of thosa which would have
been Incurred were the members employed within Local Government
The Directors have made judgements In respect of whether any
ofthe deficit 1s as a result of such situations

The right to recaver costs is also Limited to situations where the
cap on employer contributions to be suffered by the Group 1s not
set so as to contnbute to reducing the deficitin the scheme The
Directors, in conjunction with the scheme actuaries, have made
judgements in respect of the predicted future service costand
contributions to the scheme toreflect this in the fair vatue

of the asset recognised

The Audit Committee addressed this area of judgement
in the following ways

« the Commuttee reviewed the key assumptions proposed by
management, notably assumptions i respect of discount rate,
RPI, CPl and futurs salary increases Given the matenality of
this area, the Committee reviewed a report prepared by Ernst
and Young LLP which validated the assumptions set by
management and provided a comparison with other
quoted companies, and

«+ given the technical nature of this area, the Committee placed
reliance upon the actuanal reports prepared by the respective
scheme actuaries in respect of each of the defined benefit
pension schemes
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Corporate governance

Report of the Audit Committee continued

Main activities of the Committee during the year continued
Financial reporting continued

Revenus recognition

Revenue Is recognised when the outceme of a job or contract can
be estimated rehiably, revenue associated with the transaction s
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of work at the
balance sheet date The outcome of the transaction is deemed to
be able to be estirnated reliably when all the following conditians
are satsfied

« the amount of revenue can be measured reliably

+ 1t1s prabable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow ta the entity,

« the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet
date can be measured reliably and

« the costsincurred for the transaction and the costs to complete
the transaction can be measured reliably

Full provision 1s mads for losses on all contracts in the year
in which the loss 1s first foreseen

The Audit Committee addressed this area of judgement
in the fallowing ways

» the Committee reviewed the key judgemenis report prepared
by management which provided a detailed explanation in respact
of thavaluation of unbilled works and the recognition of revenues

+ the Committee took comfort from the contract management
system which1s central in generating the valuation of works
{both billed and unbilled) and the integrated process thatis
fallowed to ensure an accurate cut-off to that revenue 1s
appropriately matched to cost Grant Thornton tested these
systems during its audit fieldwark and provided feedback
to the Committee en this crucial area, and

« this area represented a prime area of external audit focus
Grant Tharnton UK LLP carried out both controls based and
substantive testing of the amounts recoverable on contracts,
adopting a nisk based approach to sampling and provided
detailed feedback to the Commuittee In this area

Internal control and risk management

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires that the Directors
review the effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control
This extends the Directors’ review to cover all material controls,
including operational, compliance and financial controls and nsk
management systems The Directors are satsfied that procedures
are in place to ensure that the Group complies with the Turnbull
Committee guidance published by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and that the procedures

have been applied during the year

The Board 1s responsible for the Group's system of intesnal contral
and for reviewing its effectiveness The Board has delegated some
of these responsibilities to the Audit Committee which has reviewed
the effectiveness of the system of internal control and ensured that

any remedial action has been or 1s being taken on any identified
weaknesses The system of internal controls 1s designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement arloss It includes all controls
including financial, operational and comphiance controts

and nsk management procedures

The Board confirms that the Group has in place anongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group The Group endeavours to ensure that
the appropriate controls, systems and training are 1n place and
has established procedures for all business units to operate
appropriate and effective nsk management

The processes used to assess the effectiveness of the internal
control systems are cngoing, allowing a cumulative assessment
to be made, and include the following

« delegation of day-to-day rmanagernent to operational management
within clearly defined systems of control, including

«  the identification of lavels of authority within clearty
wdentified organisational reporting structures,

» the identification and appraisal of financial risks bath
farmally, within the annual process of preparing business
plans and budgets, and informally through cless monitoring
of operations

« acomprehensive financial reporting system within which
actuai results are compared with approved budgets, quarterly
re-forecasts and previous years’ figures on a monthly basis
and reviewad at both local and Group level and

+ aninvestmant evaluation procedure to ensure an appropnate
level of approval for all caprtal and revenue expenditure,

« discussion and approval by the Board of the Group's strategic
directions plans and objectives and the nisks to achieving them,
combined with regular reviews by management of the nsks to
achieving objectives and actions being taken to mitigate them,

« review and appraval by the Board of annual budgets, combined
with regular operaticnal and financial reviews of performance
against budget, prior year results and regular forecasts by
management and the Board,

« regular reviews by the Board and Audit Committee of dentified
fraudulent activity and actions being taken to remedy any
control weaknesses,

« regular reviews by management and the Audit Committee of the
scope and results of internal and external audit work across the
Group and the implementation of recommendations and

« consideration by the Board and by the Audit Committes of the
mayjor risks facing the Group and of the procedures in place to
manage them and to ensure controls react to changes in the
Group's averall nsk profile These Include health and safety, people,
legal compliance, quality assurance, insurance and security
and reputational, secial, ethical and enviranmental risks
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Main activities of the Committee during the year continued
Internal control and risk management continued

The Board has reviewed these proecedures and considers them
appropriate given the nature of the Group's operations The system
of internal control and risk management 1s embedded tnto the
operations of the Group and the actions taken to mitigate any
weaknesses are carefully montored

The key controls in place are

» adefined organisational structure and an appropriate level
of delegated responsibility to operational management,

« authonsation lmits for financral and non-financial transactions,
« written operaticnal procedures,
« arobust system of financial budgeting and forecasting,

« arobust system of financial reporting with actual results
compared to budget and ferecast results and

« aregular reporting of operatronal perfermance and risks
to the Board

At the end of 2013 and running into the early part of 2014 the
Audit Committee commissioned an independent review of internal
audit and our risk management to provide guidance as to the
strengths and weaknesses of the function and also Identify and
recommend changes and pragmatic action plans to iImprove I1ts
effectiveness Grant Thornton was appotnted to carry out this
review and utilise 1ts first-hand knowledge from warking with the
internal audit functions of groups of various sizes operating in

a diverse range of markets The Group’s Internal audit function
was benchmarked on a range of KPls to identify where performance
could be improved The review considered 1ssues mcluding audit
planning and delivery methodclogies the capabilities of the team
and the outputs provided to management and the Board

The Company has in place internal control and risk management
systems i relation to the Company s financial reporting process
and the Group's process for the preparation of consolidated
accounts The consolidated financial statements are produced by
the Group finance function, which 1s responsible for the review and
compilation of reports and financral results from each of the operating
subsidiaries in accordance with the Group reporting procedures
The consolidated financial statements are supported by detaited
working papers The Audit Committee 1s responsible for overseeing
and monitoring these processes, which are designed to ensure
that the Company complies with relevant regulatory reporting and
fiing provisions As at the end of the period covered by this report,
the Audit Committee, with the participation of the Chief Executive
Officer and Finance Director, evaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of disclosure controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed

in financial reports I1s recorded, processed, summarised

and reported within specified time periads

The Committee carried out a review of its effectiveness with input
from Comrmittee and Board members, management and the external
auditor Tha review conciuded that the Audit Committee members
had sufficient expertise and committed tme to discharge

their respensibilities

Additionally, in line with the UK Corporate Governance Code
the Group has arranged appropnate insurance cover In respect
of legal action against its Directors

External audit related services

The Committae 1s also responsible for monitoning and reviewing
the perfarmance, independence and objectivity of Grant Thernton,
the external auditor The external auditor has atso confirmed that
it has complied with relevant UK independence standards

The services providad by Grant Thornton are currently restricted
to audit related and corporation tax compliance This restriction
on the provision of non-audit services enahles the Committee to
be satisfied that Grant Thornton's objectivity and independence
as auditor has not been impaired

The fees paid to Grant Thornton duning theyear in respact of
non-audit services were £0 05m (2013 £008m) The total fees
for non-audit services represented approximately 14% of the
audit fees paid for the year (2013 22%)

Read more in the financial statements
on pages 71to 131
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Corporate governance

Report of the Remuneration Committee

Dear shareholder,

| am pleased to introduce the Mears 2014
Remuneration Report

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report
sets out the Company's remuneration policy
for Directors.

This policy was subject to a binding sharehelder vote
at the 2014 AGM and will remain unchanged fora
period of at least three years For completeness, the
poticy 1s detailed in full within this Annual Report

The Annual Repart on Remuneration sets out
paymants and awards mads to the Directors and
details the link between Company performance and
remuneration for the 2014 financial year This report
togetner with this letter 1s subject to an advisory
shareholder vote at the 2015 AGM

The Company’s remuneratton structure has been designed

to support the evolving business strategy and foster a pay for
performance culture helping us achieve aur corporate goals
The success of the Company Is driven by a continued focus
to drive shareholder value through

= growing revenues and earmings In a sustainable
and profitable manner,

« a progressive dividend policy closely tracking growth in earmings,

« generating streng level of cash flow to deliver returns
for shareholders and investment for future growth, and

» efficient and targeted investment of cash

These measures together with shareholder returns are captured in the
cornerstone of our remuneration structure, namely the Management
Incentrve Plan (MIP) The MIP together with the new shareholding
guidelings which we are introducingthis year, also ensuraes that

the interests of Executives continue to be aligned with those

of shareholders over the longer term

During the last twelve months the Company has continued to
grow earnings and generate cash flow at a profitable level despite
the challenging ecanomic environment This ts reflected in the
performance against the MIP targets for 2014 as follows

Performance measures® Target Maximum Actual
EPS growth 10% 15% 11 5%
TSR grawth 10% 15% (17 9%
Cash conversion {(underpin} 80% 107 2%
ROCE (underpin) 10% 18 2%

*  See pages 59 and 60 for definitions of performance measures and actuat
remuneration gutcomes

To reflect the shareholder sutcomes over the last year, the
Commuttee has decided that the MIP contribution for 2014 will
be made entirely in shares with no cash element being released
to the Executive Directors This will serve to further align their
interests with those of shareholders and focus them on
delivering strong performance in the coming year

The Committee was ¢isappeinted that a significant number of
votes were cast against the 2013 Directors’ Remuneration Report
We are committed to building investor confidence with regard to
our Executive remuneration arrangements and so have carefully
considered the 1ssues raised by shareholders and proxy voting
agencies In response, we have sought to clanfy the operation of
our remuneration policy with respect to the aspects noted below,
and having particular regard to revisions to the UK Corporate
Governance Code

« MIP contnbutions — in 2014, contributions for on-targst
performance were set at 20% of the maximem, down from 70%
1n 2013, 1n response to the views of shareholders and proxy
voting agencies This approachwill apply for 2015 and onwards

« Performance metnics will be setannually by reference to
internal budgets and markst expectations In the challenging
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Remuneration report

ecanomic and polttical environment in which the Company
currently finds itself this may mean that targets changeyear on
year Maximum payout of the MIP contributian will, however,
only be earned for exceptional performance The performance
targets for the 2015 MIP cycle are disclosed on page 62 of the
remuneration report

« Shareholding requirement - the Remuneration Committee has
formalised the shareholding requirement at a level of 200% of
salary for each of our Executive Directors, ta be bulltupover a
five-year period This ensures that the interests of Executives
are aligned with shareholders over the longer term

» Share Plan - the Remuneration Committee has removed the
discretion to grant existing Executive Directors share awards
and this has accordingly been removed from our remuneration
policy table

+ Malus/clawback - 50% of the accumulated plan account in the
first four years of operation i1s subject to forfeiture if a minimum
level of performance 1s not maintained The Committee believes
that this 1s a more stringent provision than current best practice
guidelines, which allow for malus enactment only in exceptional
circumstances, e g material misstatement/gross misconduct

The Committee also believes that the five-year length of the
MIP cycle {resulting in a longer period over which performance
15 assessed compared to the current market standard of three
years) and implicit holding pariods present through deferral

of MIP payments aver the cycle provide sufficient protection to
shareholder interests without implementing additional clawback
provisions to apply after a pre-defined period

Looking to 2015 and beyond, the Remuneration Committee 1s aware
that given the rapid grawth in the size of the business over the last
coupla of years, combinad with our disciplined and conservative
approach to remuneration, levels of pay fall significantly short of

Directors’' remuneration policy
Remuneration policy and philesophy

Ramunagration policy

market norms The Executive Directors are (n the lower quartile
against a comparator group of 20 quoted compames with simitar
corporate attributes to Mears when we assess their remuneration
{especially fixed remuneration which of course dnives total reruneration
levels) |am confident that our Executives will continue to work
conscientiously to detiver the business strategy but believe that it

15 1n the best interests of all stakeholders to address this shortfall
ovar the next couple of years

For 2015, the Committee has therefore increased base pay for

the Executive Directors by 10% and will consider similar increases
over the next two years, contingent on corporate and individual
performance, to ensure that an exceptional management teamare
paid fairly for their efforts Furthermore, thisis the first pay increase
that the Executive Directors have received for three years and 1s elso
Justified by the significant experience of the executive team and
performancs in role from appointment Itis impartant to note that
there will ba no change to the actual remuneration structure as the
Commuttee firmly believes that the unique nature of the MIP 1s the
optimal incentive mechanism te focus an exceptional management
team on sustaining strong year on year performance against those
corporate metrics which drive long-term sharsholder value

t hope that you find the infermztion in thes report helpful and | look
forward to your support in the forthcoming AGM 1 am always happy
to hear from the Company’s shareholders and you can contact me
direct, or via the Company Secretary, Ben Westran if you have any
questions on this report or more generally in relation to the

Company’s FWnW
I'd

PF Dicks

Remuneration Committee Chairman
peter dicks@mearsgroup ¢o vk

17 March 2015

How 15 this achieved?

Levels of remuneration should be appropriate
to retain and motivate the Executive talent required
to meet the Group's objectives

« By providing a threshold level of remuneration which reflects the indvidual's
experience role and contribution within the Group

+ Remuneration levels are reviewed annually with due consideration afforded

to Mears' remuneration policy and external benchmarks and market practices

Incentive arrangements for key individuals should + The Executive Directors' remuneration packages are designed to ensure that

be capable of providing exceptional lavels of total
payment if outstanding performance 1s achieved

variable components of an Executwve Director s total remuneration package
amounts to around one third for target performance and around two thirds

for stretching performance

The significant component of each Executive’s s At stretching parformance, around two thirds of the Executive Directors’ total

total compensation should be delivered thraugh
performance related pay

remuneraticn package s based on performance related pay

There should be a commitment to festerning a strong
performance culture that aligns an indvidual’s
rewards with the key corporate metrics that drive
shareholder value creation

Performance targets are set which are motivating and directly aligned
to the Group's strategic underlying performance

The Commuttee also ensuras that the remuneration package does not lead
toirresponsible behaviour and that it takes appropriate account of risk
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Corporate gavernance

Remuneration report continued

Directors’ remuneration policy continued

Executive Directors

The table below sets out the key elements of the policy for Executive Directors

Ob)ective and link to strategy

Oparation

Maximum epportunity

Parformance measures
and assessment

Base salary

The purpose of the base
salaryisto

+ help recruit and retain
key indwviduals,

» reflectthe indmmdual s
axperience roleand
contribution within the
Group, and

+ ensurefarr reward
for ‘doing the job'

The Committee reviews base salanes annually in April in arder
to ensure that Executive Directors remain competitively aligned
with external market rates

The Comrmittea wi} retain the discretion to increase an individual s
salary where there 1S a significant difference between current
levels and a markat competitive rate However, In determining
whether to increase lavels the Committes will take the following
inta consideration

the performance of the individual Executive Director

the indwidual Executive Director s experience
and responsibifities,

the smpact on fixed costs of any increase and

pay and conditions throughout the Group

When setting the salary levels for the Executive Directors n addition
tothe factors summansed above salary lavels paid by a number

of comparator comparues of a similar siza to Maars are taken

1hto account

The Committee's policy
15 to set base salary at
an appropnate level
taking into account
the factors autlined
inthis table

Net applicable

Other benefits

To prowide benefits that
ere valued by the reciprent
and are appropriately
competitive

The Executive Directors receve additional benefits including
a campany provided car or an allowance in lieu, life assurance
and private medical insurance Benefits-in-kind are not pensionable

Benefit values vary
year on year depending
on premiums and the
maximum potential
value s the cost of
thesa provisions

Not applicable

Management Incentive Plan (MIP)

The MIF provides a strong
link between reward and
corporate performance

In order to appropnately
retatn and motsvate the
Executive Directors and
senior management who
arecntical to executing
the business strategy

Align the interests of
Executve Directors and
SEMIOr Management more
closely with shareholders
over the longer term and
provide a greater exp osure
to share price movements
over this period

Participants have a plan account into which contributions
by Mears are made

Performance 18 measured by reference io targets over
the fingncial year

Contributions are made annually with payments made each year
to ensure an overlap with the next plan year depending on the
extent to which the performance conditions ara met

After contributions are made 50% of the plan balance s paid

in cash and 50% 1s deferred in shares Howaver, at the discretion
of the Remuneration Committee, the elament to be deferred can
be increased fram 50% but never decreased

No contribution 1s made to a participant’s plan account unless
the performance canditions and financial underpins set at the
begnning of the retevant year are satisfied Where anly one of the
financial underpins 1s met and the performance conditions are
met then the annual contribution will be reduced by 50%

50% of the plan accaunt is at risk of forfeiture each year
if muimemum level of performance 1s not met

Further detasls of the operation of the MIP including the performance
conditions for 2015 are set out on pages 58, 59 and 62

Annual contnbutions
made to Executive
Directors wilt be
capped at a maxmum
of 250% of salary

Target payments

will be at 20% of an
Executive Cirecter’s
maximum oppartunity

Contributions

wiil be based on

the satisfaction

of performance
candipons, for
example EPS end TSR
The Remuneration
Committee has
discretion to set
performance
measures and
welghtings on

an annual basis,

with performance
conditions forthe
next financial year set
outin the Statement
of Implementation

on pages 62 to 83
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Directors’ remuneration policy continued
Executive Directors continued

Objective and link to strategy

QOperation

Performance measures
Max|mum opportunity and assessment

Pension

To provide a framawork to
save for retirament thatis
appropriztely competitive

All Executive Directors receive a contribution into their
respective defined contribution plans, which are subject to
periodic review to ensure that they reman in Line with rates
applicable in the market Only the base salary 15 pensionable

Tha Executive Directors ~ Not applicable
receva a contnibution

of 15% of salary R Holt

raceives a contrbution

of 30% of salary

All employee share plan

Encourages employees
to own shares in arder
te increase alignment
over the longer term

Under theterms of the Sharesave Plan all employees can
apply for three ar five-year options to acquire the Company's
shares priced ata discount of up to 20%

£500 per month Not applicable
over a three-year
or five-year period

yiodal 2i3a180g

pougulancd alalodion

Shareholding requirement (new for 2015)

Ensures a long-term
locked-n alignment
between the Executive
Directors end sharehclders
ensunngthat they

build up and maintain
aminimum level of
shareholding throughout
their emptoyment with
the Cormpany

The shareholding requiremaent which has been formalised
by the Remuneration Commuttee for the first ume this year
wilt operate in the foflowing manner

» only shares unconditionally owned by the Executive
Director will count against the reguirement, and

s shares can be built up over a five year period from
implemantation of the poiicy through the vesting and
retention of share awards and/er MIP payments

Mimimum shareholding Not applicable
requirement 1s 200%
of salary

Provisions of previous policy that will continue to apply

Other Non-Executive
appointments

Executive Directors have an obligation to inform the Board,
specifically the Remuneration Commitiee, of any Non-Executive
positicns held or being contempiated and of the asscciated
remuneration package The Remuneration Committee will
consider the merits of each case and carefully consider the work
and tme commitment required to fulfil the Non-Exacutive
duties and the patential benefit to the Group and then determine
whether the rernuneration should be retained by the Executive
or passed over to the Group

Not applicable Not applicable
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Corporate governance

Remuneration report continued

Directors’ remuneration policy continued

Notes to the future policy table

Reasons for selecting performance targets

The Comrmittes believes that the EPS growth performance condition
for the MIP 1s directly alsgned to the Company’s strategic objectives
over tha long term and 15 also transparent fully understood by
participants and 1s an externally audited metric over which they
have line of sight Total shareholder return has been selected as a
performance condition for the MIP as it provides an unbiased indicaior
of value created for sharehalders and creates a strong link with
executive reward Targets are set on a sbding scale based on internal
growth expectations of the Company and market forecasts Maximum
targets are helieved to incorporate an appropriate amount of stretch
which would reflect excellent performance in current market conditions
Two financial underpins, based on threshold levets of cash conversion
and return on capital employed, have also been set which impact
the level of contnbutiori under the EPS performance condition Given
that no contribution will be made in respect of the EPS condition
unless these underpins ara achieved, this ensures that the quality
of earnings 1s protected and overall corporate performance 1s strong
before a contribution to the plan accounts 1s made

Where there are multiple underpins, failure to achieve one of the
underpins will result in a reduction of the annual contrnibution by
arelevant proportion For example, if there are two underpins and
one 1s not met then the annual contribution will be reduced by
50% If both underpins are not met then there will be no

annual contribution

Changes to remuneration policy from previous policy

The Remuneration Committee would bke to ctarify the operation
of the following aspects of the policy

Management Incentive Plan (MIF) — The Remuneration Committes
would like to ctarify that target payments under the MIP wili be at
20% of an Executive Director's maximum opportunity, as for the
assessment of MIP contrnibutions in 2014 {rather than 70% as
previously disclosed)

Shareholding requirement - It has bean previously communicated
that Exacutive Directors would be required to build up a meaningful
stake in the Company The Remuneration Commuittee has hence
formalised the operation of the shareholding requirement as
disclased in the policy table

Share Plan - The Remuneration Cammittee has removed the
drscretion to grant existing Executive Directors share awards
under this plan

Differences in remuneration policy for all employees

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors is now more
heavily weighted towardsvariable pay than for ather employees with
alarge proportton of their overall package dependent on successful
and sustained execution of the business strategy over the longer
term The ocbjective of such a policy is to create a strong link betwaen
pay for Executive Directors and the value created for shareholders

Committee discretions

The Committee witl operate the MIP and Share Plan according to
their respectiverutes The Committee retains discretion consistent
with market practice, in a number of regards to the cperation and
admnistration of thase ptans These include, but are not imited to,
the following in relation to the MIP and Share Plan

s the participants,

« the timing of grant of an award,
e thasize of an award

» the determination of vesting

= discretion required when dealing with a change of control
or restructuring of the Group,

« determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules
of the plan and the appropriate treatment chosen,

« adjustments required in certain circumstances {e g nghtsissues
corporate restructurning events and special dividends) and

« the annual review cf performance measures and waighting
for the MIP and exercise conditions {if any) for the Share Plan

Thesa discretions, which in certain circumstances can be operated
in both an upward and downward manner, are consistent with market
practice and are deemed necessary for the proper and fair operation
of the schermes (n order to achieve their original purpose It is the
Committee's policy, however that there should be no element of
reward for failure and any upward discretion will only be applied

in exceptional circumstances
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Directors’ remuneration policy continued
Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is set at a level
sufficient to atiract iIndimduals with appropriate knowledge and
experience Itis determined by the Board and 1s within the imits
set by the Articles of Association Assistance is also available from
the Group’s remuneration advisers No additional fees are paid for
Committee membership or other normal duties and Non-Executive
Directors do not participate in any incentive, pension or bonus
arrangements Current fee levels are set autin the statement

of implementation of remuneration policy on page 63

Approach to recrurtment remuneration

In the evant that the Company recruits a new Executive Director
{either from within the organisation or externally), when deterrmining
appropriate remuneratton arrangements, the Commiitee will take
into consideration all relevant factors (including but not Limited to
quantumn the type of remuneration being offered and the jurisdiction
the candidate was recruited from) to ensure that arrangements are
inthe best interests of both the Company and 1ts shareholders
without paying mare than I1s necessary to recruit an Executive

of the required calibre

The Committes would generally seak to align the remuneration of
any new Executive Director following the same principles as for the
current Executve Directors {set out in the table on page 51)

The elements that would be considered by the Company for inclusion
in the remuneraticn package for a new Director are in line with those
offered to existing Directors {see policy table on pages 52 and 53
for more details)

« salary and benefits including defined contribution pension
participation or a salary supplement in lieu of pension provision,

« participation in MIP of up to 250% of salary,

« ncertain circumstances, participation in the Share Plan of up to 200%
of salary and all employee share plans operating at that time, and

« costs relating to but not imsted to relocatran, legal, financial,
tax and visa advice and pre-employment meadical checks

The Committee may make awards on appointing an Executive
Director tc ‘buy out’ remuneration arrangements forfeited on leaving
a previous employer The Committee would take 1nto account both
market practice and any relevant commercial factors in considering
whether any enhanced and/or ‘one-off’ annual incentive or long-term
ncentive award was necessary Awards made by way of cormpensation
for forfetted awards would be made on a comparable bas:s, taking
account of performance achieved {or hkely to be achieved), the
propartion of the performance period remaming and the form

of the award Compensation could be in cash or shares

The Committee s policy 1s for all Executive Directers to have rolling
service contracts with a notice period of twelve months, unless on
an exceptional basis to complete an external recruitment successfully,
when a longer intmial peried reducing to twelve months may be used
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Mimimum On-target Maximum
Along
800
5]
S §7%
5 600 £480
c
% 400 Annual variable
2 26% £96 Fixed
g 200 100% 71% 33%
P £231 £23N £231
Minimum On-target Maximum
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Corporate governance

Remuneration report continued

Directors’ remuneration policy continued
Service contracts and payment for loss of office

Date of contract/ Notice penod
Directar letter of appointment by Company or Director
Executive
R Holt June 2008 6 months
DJ Miles June 2008 12 months
ACMSmith June 2008 12 months
Along August 2009 12 months

Non-Executive

D LHosen June 2008
M G Rogers June 2008
P F Dicks June 2008
D Marston June 2010
R Macnamara June 2010

Rolling 6-month appointment
Relling 8-month appaintment
Rolling 6-month appointment
Rolling 6-month appointment
Rolling B-month appointment

All Executive Directors’ contracts are rolling and, therefore, witl
continue unless terminated by written notice In the event of the
termination of an Executive Director’s contract, salary and benefits
will be payable duning the notice period There will, however be no
automatic entitlement to bonus payments or share incentive grants
durning the period of notice

The rules of the MIP and Share Plan set out what happens to
awards If a participant ceases to be an employee or Director
of Mears before the end of the vesting period Generally, any
outstanding share awards will lapse on such cessation except
In certain circumstances

If the Executive Director ceases to be an ermnployee or Director

as a result of death, injury, ill health, redundancy, retirement, the
sale of the business or company that employs the indmdual or any
other reason at the discretion of the Committee, then they will be
treated as a good leaver’ under tha plan rules

Under the MIP, a good leaver's accumulated plan account

(as measured at the date of cessation of employment) will be paid
to them The Committee has discretion to determine the amount,
if any, of any contribution to be made to therr plan account In the
year of cessation which will then be pro-rated by the ime elapsed
from the start of the year to the date of cessation This amount
would then be paid to the participant

On a change of contrel, the accumulated plan accounts of all
participants {as measured at the date of change of control) will
be paid to them

Under the Share Plan, a proportion of a good leaver's award will
vest on cessation of employment by reference to the time elapsed
from grant to cessation The Committee has discretion to determina
the period during which the good leaver may exercise their award
after cessation

On a change of control, all awards under the Share Plan will
vest immediately

llustrations of application of remuneratien policy

We estimate that ths level of remuneration received by each
Executive Director for the first full year :n which the policy applies
will be, Indicatively at three different levels of performance

« minimum performance 1s where only fixed pay (salary, benefits
and pension) 1s payable and no performance related pay accrues,

« on-target performance is the level of performance required 1o
delver 20% of the maximum annual contribution to the MIP, and

« maximum performance wauld result in the maximum annual
banus eontribution te the MIP

Fixed salary 1s base salary for 2015 plus the value of pensicn
and other benefits

The charts on page 55 demonstrate the balance between fixed
and variable pay for mimmum on-target and maximum performance
for Executive Directors’ remuneration in 2015 in tine with the
relevant policy

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere
in the Company in developing policy

The Company sets terms and condttions for employees which
reflect the different legislative and labour market conditions
that operate in each of our Jurnisdictions We will atways meet or
exceed national minimum standards for terms and condiions
of employment in each of our business areas Pay arrangements
In our businesses also reflect local performance with personal
increases based on achievermnent, ndividually assessed Mears
believes in the value of continuous improvement, both for the
indvidual and for the Company The Company did not consult
with employees in drawing up the Directors’ remuneration policy

When determining the remuneration of Executive Directors,

the Remuneration Committee takes into account business unit
performance, including both financial performance and safety
improvements in the year Due to the wide varety of labour market
conditions and the markats 1n which we operate, pay rates are not
normally considered when considering Executive Director base
pay reviews

The Remuneration Committee reviews and notes the saianes of
Senior Executives within the Group Share awards and bonus plans
are cascaded down betow Executive level to senior management,
aligning the Senior Management Team to deliver value for the Group

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee 1s committed 1o an ongeing dialogue with
shareholders and seeks shareholder views when any significant
changas are being made to remuneration arrangaments We
remain sensitive to the views of shareholders and sought to
consult many of our largest shareholders during the changes
we made to the remuneration structure in 2013
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Directors' remuneration policy continued
Conslderation of shareholder views continued

The Committee was disappointed with the number of votes agamst our 2013 Directors’ Remuneration Report and liste

ned closely to the

views of aur major shareholders and proxy voting agencies to understand the reasons why Our response to specific views included the
removal of the Share Plan from our policy (with no further awards being granted ta the existing Exacutive Directers under this plan) and
reduction in MIP contributions for on-target perfarmance, together with other clanfications to policy {see the Annual Statement for

mora details) and the introduction of farmal shareholding guidelines

The Company will continue to moniter shareholder comments and retain an open dizlogue as necessary

Annual report on remuneration

This section of the Remuneration Report centains details of how the Company’s remuneration policy for Diractors was implemented

during the financial year

Single total figure of remuneration {audited)
Executive Directors

The remuneration of Exacutive Directors showing the breakdown between elements and comparative figures 1s shown below Figures

provided have been calculated in accordance with the Regutations

Taxable Annual
Executive Director (£ 000) Year Salary benefits incantives Pension Total
R Holt 2014 250 20 —_ 75 345
2013 250 20 — 75 345
DJ Mites 2014 330 32 — 50 412
2013 330 32 413 50 825
ACM Smith 2014 220 6 - 33 259
2013 220 ] 275 33 534
Along 2014 180 11 — 27 218
2013 180 12 225 27 444
Non-Executive Directors
The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors showing the breakdown between elements and comparative figures 1s shown below
Figures provided have been calculated in accordance with the Regulations
Basic Additianal Total
Non-Executive Director {E 000) Year faes faes QOther fees
DL Hosen 2014 45 —_ —_ 45
2013 45 — — 45
M G Rogers 2014 45 — 1 46
2013 45 — 2 47
P F Dicks 2014 45 — — 45
2013 45 — — 45
D Marston 2014 45 — — 45
2013 45 — — 45
R Macnamara 2014 45 — — 45
2013 45 — — 45
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Corporate governance

Remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued
Additionat details in respect of single total figure table (audited)

The outcome of the MIP for the year ended 31 December 2014, being year twoon the schematic 1s set out on page 60

The following schematic Hlustrates the operation of one cycle of the MIP

Start of year 1 Year1 Year 2 Year3

Measurement date at the end of each plan year

Contribution Contribution

Contribution or deduction or deduction

Partictpants’ plan account

50% of closing balance paid at the end of each plan year
Unpaid balance deferred in shares

Year 4 Yearh

Contribution
or deduction

100% of closing
balancein plan
paidin shares
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Annual report on remuneration continued
The performance measures and targets for the MIP for the year ended 31 December 2014 are detailed below

Description Weighting Calculation Targets
Earnings per 80% « Growth in diluted EPS Diluted EPS s + Threshold
share (EPS) stated before exceptional costs, share-based o o
payments and the costs relating to the 10% EPS growth leads to 20% maximum centribution
MIP and amortisation of acquisition « Maximum
ntangibles and 15 adjusted for a narmatised 5 o
tax charge from 1 January 2014 to 15% EPS growth leads to 100% maximum contribution
31 December 2014 + Straight-line contribution between 10% and 15% growth
Base figure of 29 80p to be used
Absolute total  20% Growth in ahscluta TSR from 1 January 2014 « Threshold
shareholder to 31 December 2014 (Using an averaging " N
return (TSR) period of 30 days for both dates) 10% TSR growth leads to 20% maximum contribution
Starting shareprice = £4 58 * Maximum
15% TSR growth leads to 100% maximum contribution
s Straight-line contribution between 10% and 15% growth
Cash N/A Cash inflow from operating activitiesas ¢ Athresholdlevel of cash conversion of 80% must be achieved
conversion a proportion of operating profit before . -
(underpin) acquisition intangible amortisation Icf;:a;I:Jrgg:c:\lfulz\éeflos;sfglc:;gch1eved. 50% of anyannusal
measured at 31 December 2014
Returnon N/A Operating profit before acquisition + Athreshold level of ROCE of 10% must be achieved
capital intangible amortisation and exceptional | o
employed costs/(total assets — current babilities E::tli;:rte:g:ﬁﬁllg\ﬁlc:ffgIcz(tegchleved 50% of any annual
(ROCE) less ail balances relating to bank
{underpin) borrowing and overdraft classified within

non-current liabilities) at 31 December 2014
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Corparate governance

Remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued
The actual performance achievement 1s summarised below

% of target
Performance measures Actual sansfied
EPS growth 11 5% 44 3%
TSR growth {17 1%) 0%
Cash conversion (underpin) 107% Achieved
ROCE {underptn} 18% Achieved

The Remuneration Committes was also satisfied that a minimum level of corporate perfarmance had been exceeded and so no forfeiture
of the accumulated plan accounts was nascessary

The resulting payments and unpaid balance deferred in shares are summarised below

DJ Miles ACMSmith Alang
2013 closing batance brought forward (shares) 90 065 60,043 49,126
2013 closing balance brought forward (£)* 338,194 225,461 184,468
2014 contnibution () 292,490 194,994 159,540
% of salary 89% 89% 89%
2014 cash elemant released _ — —
2014 closing balance {deferred into shares) of parncipants’ plan account (£) 630,685 420 455 344,008
Number of shares represented by closing balance** 169,237 112 824 92,311

* Using share price as at 31 December 2014 = 375 5p
**Using the average 30 day share price to 31 December 2014 = 372 7p

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)
Directors’ share interests are set out below

Share interests

Conditional  Vested but
unvested unexercised

Number of Total

beneficially Share interests

awned awards/ held at

Dirgctor shares optians Options year and
R Holt — — 150,000 150,000
DJ Miles 175020 371,818 80,730 607,568
ACM Smuth 110,000 247878 — 367,878
Along 36,230 202,809 — 239,039
D LHosen —_ — — -—
M G Rogers 50,000 — — 50,000
P F Dicks 33,298 — — 33,298
D Marston 16,342 — — 15,342
R Macnamara 10,000 — — 10,000
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Annual report on remuneration continued
Statement of Directors' shareholding and share Interests (audited) continued
The following table sets out the details of the vested options exercised during the year

1edes 28mBng

aaueusanod elelodion

Exercise
price Market
of exarcised value of Gainan

Type of Exerciged optians exercisa exercige
Date of grant award during year P p £*
ACMSmith
21 Apnit 2006 Approved 10000 300 493 19,300
21 Apnil 2006 Unapproved 6,087 300 493 11748
28 October 2009 LTIP 13,880 1 493 68,782
24 August 2010 LTIP 42,9800 1 493 211,068
Along
28 October 2009 LTIP 9,088 1 493 44,713
24 August 2010 LTIP 33.000 1 493 162 360

* Gain on exercise 15 stated bafora income taxes The gain also excludes the Liability of the Director to reimburse the Company in respact of Emplayers National Insurance
tniggerad at the paint of exarcise

Shareholder ditution The table below shows the Chief Executive Officer’'s remuneration
In accordance with the Association of British Insurers” guidelines,  Package over the past five years, together with incentive payout/
the Company can 1ssue a maximuim of 10% of its issued share ~ Vestingas compared to the maximum opportunity
capitalin a rolling ten-year period to employees under all its share

plans In add:tion, of this 10% the Company can 1ssue 5% to satisfy Long tarm
Banus incentive
awards under discretionary or Executive plans The Company Single figure pay out vesting
operates all its share plans within these guidelines of total (8s% rates(as%
remuneration maxnmum) maximum
Performance graph and table Year Name (£000} opportunity  oppartunity)
The graph below shows the Group's performance, measured 2014 DJ Milses 412 — 35%
by TSR compared with the constituents of the FTSE All Share 2013 DJ Miles 825 _ 100%
Support Service Sector over the last five years The Index s the -
most relevant to compare the Group s performance against 2012 DJ Miles 409 0% —
is peers 2011 DJ Miles 384 0% —
200 2010 DJ Mites 270 0% —
R Holt 800 0% —
180
160 ay .
// \ Percentage change in Chief Executive Officer's remuneration
140 ~ The table below compares the percentage change in the salary of
120 / / the Chief Executive Officer's with the wider employee population

mné\ / Satary

80 \ / Salary Benefits Bonus

o0 Chief Executive Officer 0% 0% —
Office salaries +2% 0% 0%
40
0 Under the MIP, an annual contnbution for the year ended
31 December 2014 was delivered at 89% of salary This will be
o delvered entirely in shares which will be released over a period of
Dec 09 Dac 10 Dec 11 Dec12 Dec 13 Dec 14 three years, no cash bonus is paid in respect of the 2014 financial

Mears Group PLC year If 50% of the MIP plan balance had been taken incash, then the
FTSE All Share Support Services  20NUS would have reflected a 24% reduction on the previous year
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Corporate governance

Remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued
Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below sets out the relative importance of spend on pay
in the financial year and previous financial year compared with
other disbursements fram profit

iabursaments Disbursements

The 2015 MIP performance condit:ons are as fallows

Payout rangs
(threshold ta

from profit from prafit

in financial In previgus
Significant year  financialyear %
distnbutions £ 000 £000 change
Total Directors’ pay 1,460 2,375 -39%
Profit distnbuted by way g 252 8,116 +14%
of dividend
Underiying profit
before tax 42,000 36,630 +15%

Statement of implementation of remuneration policy
In the following financial year

Executive Directors

Salary

The salaries for the farthcoming year are set out betow

Conditien Waighting maximum contribution
Earnings per share 80% 8%-13% from baseline
(EPS) diluted narmalised EPS of 33 Op

{pre share-based payments and
the costs relating to the MIP)

Total shareholder 20% 10%-15% from baseline
return {TSR) share price of £3 73
EBITA cash N/A  Cash conversion target of 80%
conversion If this measure underpinis not
{underpin} met {but the other 1s) then the
annual contribution, if any will

be reduced by 50%

ROCE {underpin) N/A ROCE target of 10% Ifthe

underpin ts not met (but the
others) then the annual
contribution 1f any, will be
reduced by 50%

Executiva Director 2015 2014 chan;:

R Holt £250,000 £250 000 -—

DJ Miles £363,000 £330 000 +10%

ACM Smith £242,000 £220 000 +10%

Along £198,000 £180,000 +10%
MIP

Detalls of the maximum and target MIP opportunities potentials
along with the performance measures and their respective
waightings for the year ended 31 December 2014 for Executive
Directors {excluding R Holt) are set out below

Parformance measura

MIP oppartunity weighting (% award)

EPS and TSR are considered kay indicators of the Company's
performance and success - the former as it 15 directly aligned to
the Company's strategic objectives over the longer term and the
latter as it provides a direct measura of the value created for
shareholders Financial undarpins will also be implemented in
order to ensure that overall corporate performance is satisfactory
and the Company's financial healthis stable befare contributions
are made Amimimum level of performance will also be considered
to ascertain whether any deductions in relat:on to the accumulated
plan accounts ts necessary

In setting these targets, the Committee I1s taking under
consideration {amongst other itams)

» the Company's 2015 business ptan

« consensus forecasts for the Company, and

+ alignment with the Company's business strategy

Pension

Totel  Datails of pension contributions for the year ended 31 December 2014

Targst Maximum Earnings shareholder el

(% of salary) (% of salary) per share return  aresetoutbelow

50% 250% 80% 20% Executwa Director Pension
R Holt 0%
DJ Miles 15%
ACMSmith 15%
Along 15%
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Statement of implementation of remuneration policy

in the following financial year continued
Non-Executive Directors

The following table sets out the fee rates {for the
Non-Executive Directors

%

2015 2014 change

B L Hoseln £45,000 £45,000 —
M G Rogers E£45,000 £45,000 —
P F Dicks £45,000 £45,000 —
D Masston £45,000 £45,000 —
R Macnamara £45,000 £45,000 —

Role of the Committee and activities

The Committee determines the total indvidual remuneration
packagas of each Executive Director of the Group and certain
other senior employess (and any exit terms) and recommends to

the Board the framewark and broad policies of the Group in relation

to Senior Executive remuneration The Committee determines the
targets for all of the Group's performance related remuneration
and exercises the Board's powers i1n relation to all of the Group's
share and incentive plans

There 1s a formal and transparent procedurs far developing policy
on Executive remuneration and for determining the remuneration
of indvidual Directors

The Remuneration Committee 1s responsible for
« determining and agreemng with the Board the broad

remuneration pelicy for

+ the Chairman, the Execuiive Directors and senior
management, and

+ the Executive Directors' remuneration and other benefits
and terms of employment, including performance related
bonuses and share options, and

« approving the service agreements of each Executive Directar,
including terminat:on arrangements

No Director 1s involved in determining hus/her own remuneration

Statement of voting at general meeting

Annual overview

The Committee has continued to work to build investor confidence
with regard to its Executive remuneration policies and remains
committed to the following actions

improve the leve! of cpenness and transparency in remuneration
reporting through a detailed annual Rermuneration Report,

operate a structured bonus arrangement with clear financial
perfaormance targets for each year,

undertake a reguiar review of the remuneration policias for
Executive Directors and other Senior Executives within the
Group to ensure that they remain appropriate to retam and
motivate such individuals,

take into account the changes to principles proposed by the
Walker Review and other pronouncements by regulatory bodies
and institutional shareholders and their representative bodies

consider pay pobeies within the Group as a whole when
determining Executive Directors remuneration packages

encourage Executive Directors and Senior Executives to build
up a meamingful sharehalding in the Company to more closely
align the interests of shareholders and Executives, and

to be kept fully aware and informed on developments and best
practice In the field of remuneration and corporate governance
from external advisers, institutional shareholders and thetr
representative bodies

Notwithstanding the above, the Committee recognises that

the success of the Group 1s dependent upon the efforis of key
individuals and that they should be farly rewarded for their efforts
and contributions in making Mears the success it 1s The following
section details how remuneration 1s structured and the factars
taken Into account when dewvising the remunsaration policy

Adviserstothe Committee

In 2014, the Committee contued to engage PwC and recewved
wholly independent advice on Executive compensation PwCis

a member of the Remuneration Consultants' Group and complies
with its code of conduct which sets out guidelines to ensure that
its advice 1s independent and free of undue Influence Fees paid to
PwC in respact of these services n the year ended 31 December 2014
were £19,000

The table below shows the advisory vote on the Directors' Remuneration Report together with the resolutions in respect

of the Remuneration Future Policy

Votes Votes Votas
tem for % against % withheld
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report 46,877,022 59 33,209,784 41 750
To apprave the Remuneration Future Policy 73,170,260 e} 7,350,317 9 3,688

The total number of ordinary shares eligible to vote at the AGM was 101 060,781
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Corporate governance

Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report together with the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of a range of
outsourced services to the public and private sectors The principal
activity of the Company 1s to act as a holding cempany

Business review

The Company s required to set out a fair review of the business of
the Group during the reporting pertod The information that fulfils
this requirement ¢an be found in the Strategic Report, Review of
Operations and Financial Review The results of the Group can be
found wrthin the Consolidated income Statement Infermation
required to be disclosed in respect of emissions and future
developments 1s included within the Strategic Report

Dividend

The final dividend 1n respect of 2013 of & 30p per share was paid In

July 2014 Aninterim dividend in respect of 2014 of 2 85p was paid

to shareholders in November 2014 The Dirsctors recommend a final

dividend of 715p per share for payment cn 2 July 2015 to shareholders
on the Register of Members on 12 June 2015 This has not been
included within the consolidated financial statements as no
obligation existed at 31 December 2014

Corporate governance

Details of the Group's corporate governance are set out
on pages 38 to 44

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

We focus on a range of key indicators to assess our performance
Our performance indicators are both financial and non-financial

and ensure that the Group targets 1ts resources around Its customers,
amployees, operations and finance Cellectively they form an integral
part of the way that we manage the business to deliver our strategic

goals Our primary performance indicators are detailed on
pages 14 and 15

Directors

The present membership of the Board 1s set out with the biographical

detail on page 38

In bine with current practice, all of the Directers will retire and, being

eligible, offer themselvas for re-election at the AGM in June 2015

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company

at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are detalled within
the Remuneration Repoert on page 60

The process governing the appomtment and replacement of Directors
1s datailed within the Report of the Nominatien Committee on page 45

Amendment to Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association can be amended only

by a special resolution of the members, requiring a majority of
nat less than 75% of such members voting in person or by proxy

Appcintment of Directors

Directors are appointed by ordtnary resolution, or the existing
Directors may appoint a person as a Director to either fill a vacancy
or as an addittonal Director provided that the number of Directors
does not exceed the maximum permissible Any person appointed
by the Directors must retire at the next AGM but will be sligible
far re-election at that meeting

Share capital authorisations
The 2014 AGM held in June 2014 authorised

« the Directors to allot shares within defined irmits The Companies
Act 2006 requires Directors to seek this authority and, following
changes to FSA rules and institutional guidelines, the authornty
was limited to one third of theissued share capital, a total of
£336,481 plus an additional one third of 1ssued share capital
of £336,481 that can only be used for a nghts 1ssue or similar
fund raising, and

« the Directors to 185u@ shares for cash on a non pre-emptive basis
This authority was iimited to 5% of the 1ssued share capital of
£50,472 and 1s required to facilitate technical matters such as
dealing with fractional entitlements or possibly a small placing

Further details of these authornsations are avallable in tha notes
to the 2014 Notice of AGM Sharehclders are also referred to the
2015 Notice of AGM which contains similar provisions in respect
of the Company’s equity share capital as detalled below

AGM

The 2015 AGM will be held at the offices of Buchanan, 107 Cheapside,
lLenden EC2V 8DN on 3 June 2015 at 9 30am and a formal Notice
of Meeting and Form of Proxy are enclosed The ordinary business
te be concducted will include the re-appointment of all Directors

The special business will comprise the following resolutions

« toauthornse the Directors to allot shares within defined imits
The Companies Act 2006 requires Directors to seek this authonty
and following changes to FSArules and institutional guidelines,
the authority, as in previous years, will be limited to one third of
the 1ssued share capital a total of £338,997 plus an agditional
one third of 1Issued share capital of £338,997 that can only be
used for a rights 1ssue or similar fund raising,

« toauthorisathe Directors to 1ssue shares for cash on anon
pre-ampitve basis This authority s limited to 5% of the 1ssued share
capital of £650,847 2nd 1s required to facilitate technical matters such
as dealing with fractional entitlements or possibly a small placing,

« 1o avthorise the convening of general meetings (othar than an
AGM) on 14 days notice This results from a European Union
Directive that became effective on 3 August 2010 and wilt override
Section 307 of the Companies Act 2006 where the requirement
to give 21 days' notice for certain meetings has been amended and
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AGM continued

« toamend the Company s memorandum of association which
places a restniction on the authorised share capital of the Company
The requirement for a company to have an authorised share
capital was removed when the Comparnies Act 2006 came into
force and the Directors believe that itis no longer appropriate
for the Company s share capital to be imited in this way

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk 1s an accepted part of doing business The Group's financial
risk management s based upon sound economic objectives and
good corporate practice The Board has overall responsibility for
risk management and internal control within the context of achieving
the Group's objectives Qur process for identifying and managing
risks 1s set out in more detail within the Corporate Governance
Statement The key risks and mitigating factars are set out on
pages 22 to 25 Details of financial risk management and exposure
to price risk, credit risk and Liguidity nsk are given in note 20

on pages 105to 110

Contracts of significance

The Group 18 party to significant contracts within each segment

of its business The Directors do not cansider that any one of those
contracts Is essential in 1ts own right to the continuation of the
Group’s activities

Payment policy

The Company acts purely as a holding company and as such s
non-trading Accordingly, no payment policy has been defined
However, the policy for Group trading companies 1s to set the terms
of payment with suppliers when entennginto a transaction and to
ensure suppliers are aware of these terms Group trade creditors
during the year amounted to §7 days (2013 58 days) of average
supplies for the year

Capital structure

The Group 1s financed through both equity share capital and debt
Detatls of changes to the Company s share capital are given in note
22 to the financial statements The Company has a single class of
shares — ordinary 1p shares — with no nght to any fixed income and
with each share carrying the right to one vote at the general meetings
ofthe Company Under the Company s Articles of Association holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to participate in any dividends pro-rata
to their holding The Board may propose and pay interim dividends
and recommend a final dividend for approval by the shareholders
atthe AGM A final dividend may be declared by the shareholders
in a general meeting by ordinary resolution but such dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the Board

Substantial shareholdings

As at 2 March 2015 the Company has been notified of, or 1s aware
of the shareholders holding 3% or more of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company, as detailed 1n the table adjacent

Fund manager City Number [m) %
Majedie Asset Management London 96 94
Heronbridge Investment Management Bath g2 81
Fidelity Woridwide Investment London 57 56
Legal & General
Investment Management London 56 55
Invesco Perpetual London 42 41
Artemis Investment Management Edinburgh 39 38
Denver Investment Advisors Denver 33 32
Neptune Investment Management Londen a3 32
Wellington Management Boston 32 32
Teachers RS of Georgla Atlanta 31 31
Otd Mutual Global Investors London 31 31
Threadneedle Investments London 31 31
562 553

Disabled employees

Applicaticns for employment by disabled persons are always fully
considered, beanng in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concerned
In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effortis
made to ensura that therr employment with the Group continues and
that appropnate traming 1s arrangsd 1t)s the policy of the Group that
the training career development and promotion of disabled persons
should, as far as possible be identical to that of other employees

Employee information and consultation

The Group has recewved recognition under the ‘Investors in People’
award The Groupcontinues to invoive Its staff in the future development
of the business Information 1s provided to employees through a
daily news email, a quarterly newsletter posted out to ali staff, the
Group website and the Intranet to ensure that employees are kept
well informed of the performance and abjectives of the Group

CREST

CREST 15 the computensed system for the settlement of share
dealings on the London Stock Exchange CREST reduces the
amount of documentaticn raguired and alsc makes the trading of
shares faster and more secure CREST enables shares to be held
in an electrontc form Instead of the traditional share certificates
CREST 1s voluntary and shareholders can keep their share
certificates if they wish This may be preferable for sharehalders
who do not trade inshares on a frequent basis

Auditor

Grant Thornton UK LLP offers itself for re-appointment as auditor
in accardance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006

On hehalf of the Board

B Westran b

Company Secretary
ben westran@mearsgroup co uk
17 March 2015
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Corporate governance

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
In respect of the Directors’ Report and financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report, the Remuneration Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicahle
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required to
prepare Group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union and have elected to prepare the Company financial statements
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and Applicable Laws)
Under company law the Directors must not approva the financial
statements unless they are sausfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the Group and the
Company for that period In preparing these financial statements,
the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

= state whethar applicable accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unlass it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
Company s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group and the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements and Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the
IAS regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors confirm that

« sofaras each Director 1s aware there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, ang

« tha Diractors have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant avdit information and to establish that the auditor
18 aware of that information

The Directors are respansible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the Cempany’s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other junsdictions

To the best of my knowledge

« the financial statements, prepared In accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view
of the assets, labilitigs, financiat position and profit or loss of
the Company and the undertakings included in the conselidation
taken as a whole, and

« ths Annual Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face

The Directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report in
accordance with appticable taw and regulations The Board considers
the Report and Accounts, taken as a whote, as fair, balanced and
understandabte and that it provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business
model and strategy

Going concern

We principally operate in robust defensive markets Social Housing
and Care, where spend 1s largely non-discretionary and our
contracts tend to be long-term partnerships

The Group had net cash of £3 8m at 31 December 2014 The core
debt required to satisfy the day-to-day requirements of the business
1s In the region of £79m This represents significant headrocm
against the £120m unsecured revalving credit facility, with an
additicnal accordion mechanism allowing the facility to be
increased to a maximum of £160m, maturing in July 2018

After reviewing the Group's and Company’s budget for the next
financial year and longer-term plans, the Directors consider that,
as at the date of approving the financial statements, it 1s appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

By order of the Board

ACMSmith

Finance Director

andrew smith@mearsgreup co uk
17 March 2015
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Mears Group PLC

Our opinion on the financial statements 1s unmodfied
Inour cpinion

s thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affaws as
at 31 December 2014 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been praperly prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union,

s the Parent Company financral statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generatly
Accepted Accounting Practice), and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS regulation

What we have audited

Mears Group PLC's financial statements ccmprise the Group principat
accounting policies, the Consolidated income statement, the
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income the Consolidated
balance sheat, the Consolidated cash flow statament, the
Consolidated statement of changes in equity and the related Group
netes, the Company principal accounting policies, the Parent
company balance shaet and the related Company notes

The financial reporting frarmewark that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements 1s applicabte law
and IFRSs as adopted by the Eurepean Union The financial
repcrting framewark that has been applied in the preparation
of the Parent Company financial statements 1s Urited Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

Our assessment of risk
Without modifying our opinion we highlight the fellowing matters

Audit nsk

that are inour judgement, likely to be most important to users’
understandeng of our audit

How we responded to the risk

Revenua recognition of Soclal Housing contracts

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to

The Group's accounting policy on revenue recognition
and disclosure of related cnitical jJudgaments are
included 1n the Group principal accounting polictes on
pages 74 to 78 and 79 respectively The Audit Committee
Chair has also commented on this areain her report

on page 48

The revanue from the Group’s Social Housing contracts
represents 85 2% of the Group's total ravenue of £838 7m

Revenus 1s recognised throughout the Group at the fair
value of consideration receivable in respect of provision
of services Provision s made for expected contract
losses as soon as they are foreseen

Determining the amount of revenue and profit to be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
depends on the terms and conditions of the indvideal
contract and can involve key Judgements such as the
recoverability of work in progress and the credibility
of assumptions underpinning the estimated future
performance of contracts that are currently

loss making

We therefore identified revenue recognition relating
to these cantracts as a significant nsk

an evaluation of the methodology by which the Directors determine the
amount of revenue and profit to recognise based on each type of contract
as disclesed n the accounting policies This included assessing whether
the accounting policies adapted by the Directors are In accordance with
the requirements ¢f International Accounting Standard (1AS) 11 and I1AS 18,

testing key controls where applicable over the recognition of revenue
and the allocation of costs to the contracts, including invoicing, cost
approval and cost allocatien,

selecting a sample of contracts in progress at the year-end by reference
to materiality and other risk factors including those requiring significant
estimates by management those contracts that are currently loss making
and contracts with significant aged work In progress and debtor balances,

for the sample selected we have assessed whether the revenue and profit
recognised were In accardance with the Group s accounting policies by
agreaing iNputs to coniract terms, re-performing rmanagerment's calculations
and assessing management's assumptions and assertions underpmning their
forecasts for contract’s future performanca by reference to supporting
documentation and discussions with key operations personnel,

reviewing contracts that were loss making in the year and challenging
management's assumptions and assertions relating to the future profitability
of those cantracts by reference to supporting evidence such as management s
plans to address the position, forecast madels previous history of turning
around toss making contracts the opinions of key operational personnel
and correspondence with clients where appropriate We also physically
visited a number of loss making sites during the year in order to further
understand the operations, and

mnvestigating the recoverability of recevables and work in progress
balances by reference to post balance sheet cash collection, certificaticns
and correspendence from customers, and examining the Group’s historical
experience of recovery
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Corporate governance

Independent auditor’s report continued

To the members of Mears Group PLC

QOur assessment of risk continued
Audit Risk

How we responded to the risk

Assessment of goodwill impairmentinrelation
to the Care division

Qur audit work included, but was not restricted to

The Group's accounting policy on impairment reviaws
and disclosure of related critical judgements are included
in the notes and in the Group principal accounting
policies on pages 73 and 80 respectively The Audit
Committee Chair has also commented on this arean
her report on page 47 As more fully explained in those
policies the Directors are required to make an anncal
assessment to determine whether the value of goadwill
of £192 Om, of which £88 Om relates to the Care
division, 1s impaired

The process for measuring and recognising impairment
under IAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets 1s complex and
judgemental, particularly in relation to the Care division
which 1s cantinuing to develop its business offering

We therefore identified the impairment review in
relation to the Care division as a significant nsk

obtaining management's discounted cash flow forecast for the Care dmision
used (n the impairment review and comparing it to our understanding of the
division and recalculating the anthmetical accuracy of those calculations

challenging the assumptions uttlised inthe impairment models including
the growth rates, discount rates and forecast profitability We involved cur
specialist valuation team to consider whether the assumptions and the
model used were appropnate to the division and, where possible,
benchmarked these assumptions against wider industry data

challenging management's sensitivity analysis performed In respact
of the key assumptions such as the growth rates and discount rates
to ensure the assumptions were not overly aggressive, and

testing the accuracy of management's forecasting through a comparison
of budget to actual data and historical variance trends and reviewing the
cash flows for exceptional or unusuai items or assumptions

Valuation of defined benefit retrement
scheme obligations

Our audit work included, but was not restricted te

The Group's accounting policy on defined benefit
penston scheme accounting 1s included in the Graup
principal accounting palicies on pages 76 and 77
The Audit Committee Chair has also commented

on this area in her report on page 46

The Group has a number of defined henefit pension
plans At 31 December 2014 the defined benefit pension
schames had combined a combined net surplus of

£24 5m, of which £8 8m 1s recogrised in the financial
stataments The gross value of the pension assets and
chligations which form the net surplus amounted

to £462 9m and £438 4m respectively

Tha measurement of the ebligation in accordance with
1AS 18 (Revised)} 'Employee benefits’ involves significant
Judgement and their valuation 1s subject to complex
acivanal assumptions Small variations tn those actuarial
assumptions can lead to a matenally different value of
pension liabilities being recognised within the Group
financial statements

We therefore identified the valuation of the defined
benefit obligations as a significant risk

testing the appropnateness of the valuation methodologies and their
inherent actuanal assumptions by benchmarking key assumptions such
as discount rates, wages and salary growth rates and mortality rates to
available market data We also utilised the expertise of our actuanal
specialists (n order to review the appropnateness of the assurnptions used
in the calculation methods employed in the calculation of the obligation,

testing the accuracy of underlying membership data utilised by the

Group's actuaries for the purpose of calculating the scheme Liabilities by
selecting a8 sample of employees and agresing key standing data such as
date of birth, gender and date of membership to underlying records, and

considering the appropriatenass of the recognition of any scheme
surpluses by reference to the schame rules
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Our application of materiality and an overview

of the scope of our audit

Materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing
our audit, In evaluating the effect of any identified misstatements
and in forming our cpinion For the purpose of determiming whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement we
define materiality as the magnitude of a misstatement cr an omission
from the financial statements or related disclosures that would make
It probable that the judgement of a reasonable person relying on
the information would have been changed ar influenced by the
misstatement or cmission We also determine a level of performance
materiality, which we use to determine the extent of testing needed
to reduce to an appropriately low level the probahility that the
aggregate of uncorrected misstataments exceads materiality

for the financial statements as awhaole

We determined matenality for the Group as a whole to be £2,100,000,
which 1s approximately 5% of profit for the year before tax, exceptional
costs and the amortisation of acquisttion intangibles, as this 1s a key
performance measure used by the Board of Directors to report to
tnvestors on the financial performance of the Group We set an
underlying performance materiality threshold of 75% of Group
materiality to direct and focus our audit testing We chese this
threshold based on our assessment of the control environment
obtained during our risk assessment procedures The audits
undertaken for Group reporting purposes of the components
noted below were carried cut to a materniality level that did not
exceed our level of performance matenality We also determine

a lower level of specific materiality for certain areas such as
directors remuneration and related party transactions

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report

to them misstatements above £105,000 identified during our
audit, which represents 5% of Group matenabty We would also
report misstatements identified below that amount (f there
ware qualitative factors that would warrant the attention of
the committee

Overview of the scope of our audit

We conducted our audit :n accordance with International
Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Responsibilities for
the financial statements and the audit section of our report We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

We are independent of the Group 1n accordance with the Auditing
Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with those
Ethical Standards

Our audit approach was based cn a thorough understanding of the
Group's business and I1s risk based In order to address the risks
described above as (dentified during our planning procedures, we
perfoermed a full scope audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Parent Company, Mears Group PLC, and of the Group's
operations throughout the United Kingdom

The components of the Group were evaluated by the group audit
team based on a measure of matenality considered as a percentage
of total Group assets, revenues and profit before taxes, to assess
the significance of the component and to determine the planned
audit respense For those components that we determinad were
significant, either a full scape or targeted approach was deterrmined
based on then relative materiality to the Group and our
assessment of audit risk

For significant compenents requiring a full scope approach an
intenim visit was conducted before theyear end to undertake
substantive procedures In advance of the final visit and to evaluate
the Group’s internal control environment including its IT systems
We then evaluated and tested controls over the financral reporting
systems identified as part of our risk assessment, reviewed the
sccounts production process and addressed critical accounting
matters We sought wherever possible, to rely on the effectivenaess
of the Group’s internal controls in order to reduce substantive testing
We then undertook substantive testing on significant transactions
and maternal account balances, including the procedures outlined
above inrelation to the key risks For the components where we took
atargeted approach a similar testing strategy was applied, focused
an the significant transactions and material account balances

The operations that were subject to either full scope audit
procedures or a targeted approach make up over 90% of
total revenues

The remaining nan-significant compenents of the Group were
subjectto analytical procedures over their nformation packs after
taking into account the risks identified above and the significance
of the component te the Group
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Corporate governance

Independent auditor’s report continued

To the members of Mears Group PLC

Other reporting required by regulations

Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act
2006 1s unmodified

In our opinion

= the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 and

« theinformation given in the Strategic Report and the Reportofthe
Directors for the financial year for which the financial staterments
are prepared 18 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nathing to report in respect of the following

tnder the ISAs {UK and Ireland), we are reguired to report to you if
in our opinion, information in the Annual Report:s

» matarially inconsistent with the informatien in the audited
financial statements ar

« apparently matenally incorrect based on or matenally
incensistent with, our knowladge of the Group acquired
in the course of performing cur audit, or

* otherwise misleading

In particular we are required to report ta you if

« we have identified any Inconsistencies between our knowledge
acquired during the audit and the Directors statement that
they consider the Annual Report is fair balanced and
understandable or

« the Annual Reportdoes not appropriately disclose those matters
that were communicated ta the Audit Committee which we
consider should have been disclosed

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you I,
1N Qur opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

« the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directars’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of Oirectors' remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

+ we have not recewved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules, we are required to review

« the Directors' statement, set out on page 66, inrelation
to going congern, and

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Report relating to
the Company's compliance with the ten provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

Responsibilities for the financial statements
and the audit
What an audit of financial statements involves

Adescription of the scope of an audit of financial statements
15 provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www fre org uk/auditscopeukprivate

What the Directors are responsible for

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Respons:bilities set out on page 66, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view

What we are responsible for

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards requirs
us to comply with the Audting Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Who we are reporting to

This repart 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Company's members those mattars we are reguired to state
tothem i an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this repert, or for the opinions
we have formed

Simon Lowe

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Bristol

17 March 2015
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Principal accounting policies — Group

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with |IFRS as adopted by the European Union
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention

The accounting policies remain unchanged from the previous year except for the adoption of IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements’,
1AS 28 (Rewvised) 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’, Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’, IFRS 10
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’, IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in Other Entities’ and Amendments
to |AS 39 'Financtal Instruments Recognition and Measurement — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’

The adoption of these amendments and new standards has had no matenal effect of the Group's financial statements

The Directors consider that as at tha date of approving the financial statements, there (s a reasonable expectation that the Group
and Company have adeguate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern basts in preparing the financial statements The Directors have discussed the principal nisks and
uncertainties of the business in the Risk Management section on pages 2210 25

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Balance Sheet includes the assets and liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries and 1s made up to 31 December 2014
Entities aver which the Group has the ability ta exercise control over financial and operating policies are accounted for as subsidiaries
Contral 1s obtained and exercised through voting rights so as to obtain benefits from the subsidiaries’ activities Interests acquired in
entities are consolidated from the effective date of acquisition and interests sold are consolidated up to the date of disposal

A joint venture Is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have the nghts to the net assets of the arrangement
Investments in Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting Under this method the Group’s share of
post-acquisition profits or losses 1s recognised in the Conscldated Income Statement the cost of the investment in a given joint
venture, together with the Group's share of that entity’s post-acquisition changes to sharehotders’ funds, 1s included in Investments
within the Consolidated Balance Sheet

All significant intercompany transactions and balances between Group enterprises, including unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated on consolidation no profitis taken on sales between Group companies

Business combinations

Business comhbinations are accounted for using the acquisition method The acquisition method invelves the recognition at farr value
of ell identifiable assets and Liabilities, including contingent habilitres of the subsidiary at the acquisition date, regardless of whether
or not they were racorded In the financial statements of the subsidiary priorto acquisition Oninitial recognition, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the bases for subsequent
measurement In accordance with the Group accounting polictes Goodwillis stated after separating out Identifiable intangible assets
Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition

Where applicable the consideration for an acquisition includes any assets or Labilities arising from a contingent consideration arrangement,
measured at fair value at the acguisition date Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition
where they result from additianal information obtained up to one year from the acquisition date about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date All other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as an asset

or llability are recognised in accordance with 1AS 38, erther in the Consolidated Income Statement or Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income
Costs relating to acquisitions in the year have been expensed

Any business combinations prior to 1 January 2010 were accounted for In accordance with the standards in place at the time, which
differ in the following respects transaction costs directly attributable ta the acquisition formed part of the acquisttion costs, contingent
consideration was recognised If, and only if, the Group had a present obligation, the econemic outflow was more Ukely than not and
a reliable estrmate was determinable, and subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as part of goodwall
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Financial statements

Principal accounting policies — Group continued

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, net of depreciation Histornical costincludes expenditure that

15 directly attribUtable to the acquisitian of the items Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised

as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 1t 15 probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow inte the
Group and the cost of the rtem can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during
the financial period in which they are ingurred

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Depreciation on other assets is calculated to wriie down the cost less sstimated residual value over
their estimated useful economic lives The rates generally applicable are X

Freehold buildings - 2% p a, straight-line

Leasehold improvements - over the period of the ease, straight-line
Plant and machinery - 25% p a ,reducing balance

Fextures fithings and equipment - 25% p a reducingbalance

Motor vehicles - 25% p a, reducing balance

Residual values are reviewed annually and updated if appropnate The carrying value is reviewed for impairment in the period If events
or changes In circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable An asset's carrying value 1s written down immedsately
to Its recoverable amount If tha asset's carrying amount 1s greater than 1ts estimated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within administrative
expenses In the Income Statement

Intangible assets

In eccordance with IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinaticns', an intangtble asset acquired in a business combination i1s deemed to have
a cost to the Group of its fair vaiue at the acquisition date The fair value of the intangible asset reflects market expectations about the
probability that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Group Where an intangible asset might be separable,
but only together with a retated tangible or intangible asset, the group of assets 1s recognised as a single asset separately from goodwilt
where the individual fair values of the assets in the Group are not reliably measurable Where the individual fair value of the complementary
assets are reliably measurable, tha Group recognises them as a single asset provided the individual assets have similar useful lives
Intangible assets are amortised over the useful aconomic Life of those assets

Development costs incurred on software development are capitalised when all the following conditions are satisfied

« completion of the software module 1s technically feasible so that it will be avallable for use,

« the Group intends to complete the development of the module and use it

» the software will be used 1n generating probable future economic benefits

« there are adequate techmical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use the software, and

« the expenditure attnbutable to the software during its development can be measured reliably

Costs incurred making intellectual property avatlable for use (including any associated borrowing costs) are capitalised when

all of the following conditions are satisfied

« completion of tha data set s technically feasible so that it will be available for use,

« the Group intends to complete the preparation of the data and use it

«+ thedata will be used in generating prabable future economic benefits,

» there are adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the data set and ta use it, and

» the expenditure attributable to the intellectual property during its development can be measured reliably

Devalopment costs not meeting the criteria for capitalisation are expensed as incu rred Careful judgement by management 1s apptied
when deciding whether the recognition requirements for development casts have been met This 18 necessary as the economic success
of any development 1s uncertain and may be subject to future technical problems at the time of recognition Judgements arg based on

the informaticn available at each balance sheet date In addition, all internal activities related tathe research and development of new
software are continually menitored by management
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Intangible assets continued

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all direcily attributable costs necessary to create, produce and prepare
the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management Directly attributable costs include employee costs
incurred on software development

Amortisation commences upon completion of the asset and 1s shown within other administrative expenses Until the asset s available
for use on completion of the project the assets are subject to impairment testing enly Development expendrture 1s amortised over the
period expected to benefit

The identifiable intangible assets and associated periods of amortisation are as follows

Order book - over the period of the order book, typically three years

Client relationships - over the period expected to benefit, typically five years

Development expenditure - 25%p a, straight-line

Intellectual property - over the period of usefulness of the intellectual property. typically five years
Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents any excess of the cost of the acquired entity over the Group’s interest
1n the fair value of the entity's identifiable assets and labilities acquired and 1s capitalised as a separate item Goodwillis recognised
as an intangibie asset

Under the business combinations exemption of IFRS 1, goodwili previously written off directly to reserves under UK GAAP1s not
recycled to the Income Statement on calculating a gain or loss on disposal

Impairment

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there ars separately Identfiable cash
flows cash-generating urits (CGUs) As aresult, some assets are tested indimdually for impairment and some are tested at CGU level
Goodwill 1s allocated to thosa CGUs that are expected (o benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent
the lowest level within the Group at which managernent moniters the related cash flows

Goodwill, other individual assets or CGUs that include goodwill and thosa intangible assets not yet avallable for use are tested
for impairment at least annually All other individual assets or CGUs are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

Animpairment loss (s recognisad in the Income Statement for the amount by which the asset or CGU's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use
based on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which goodwill has been allocated,
are credited inially to the carrying amount of goodwill Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro-rata to the other assets in the
CGU With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previcusly
recognised may no longer exist

Inventories
tnventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Costis the actual purchase price of matenals

Work 1n progress

Work in progress 1s included In Inventories after deducting any foreseeable losses and payments on account not matched with revenuve
Waork In progress represents ¢osts incurred on contracts that cannot be matched with contract work accounted for as revenue Work

In progress 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises materials, direct labour and any subcontracted work
that has been incurred in bringing the inventories and work in progress to therr present location and condition

Amounts recoverable on contracts
Amounts recoverable on contracts are included in trade and other receivables and represent revenue recognised In excess of payments
on account
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Financial statements

Principal accounting policies — Group continued

Accounting for taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferrad taxation

Current tax assets and/or llabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period that are unpaid at the balance sheet date They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicabla
to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year

Where an item of iIncome ar expense i3 recognised in the Incoms Statement, any related tax generated i1s recognised as a component
of tax expense in the Income Statement Where an item 1s recognised directly to equity or presented within the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensiva Income any related tax generated s treated simiiarly

Deferred taxation 1s the tax expected to be repayeble or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities
in the financial statements and corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and 1s accounted for using the
balance shest tiability method

Deferred taxation liabilitres are generally recognised on all taxable temporary differences in full with no discounting Deferred taxation
assets are recognised to the extent thatitis probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised However, deferred tax s not provided on the initial recognition of goadwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset

or Liability, unless the related transaction ts a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit

Deferred taxation 1s calculated at thetax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the liability i1s settled or the asset 1s realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the batance sheet date The carrying value of deferred taxation assets s reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaitable against
which taxable temparary differences can be utiised Deferred tax s charged or credited ta either the Consolidated income Statement,
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income or equity to the extent that it relates to items charged or credited

Revenue

Revenue s measured in accordance with IAS 18 ‘Revenus’ and IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ at the fair value of the consideration
receved or receivable, for gooeds and services provided in the normal course of business, net of rebates and discounts and after
sliminating sales within the Group

Soclal Housing

Revenue ts recognised when the outcome of a job or contract can be estimated retiably revenue associated with the transaction
18 recoghised by reference to the stage of completion of work at the balance sheet date The outcomne of the transaction 1s deemed
to ba able to be estimated reliably when all the following conditions ara satisfied

« the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

« 1t1s probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity,

» the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably, and

« thecosts incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably

Whilst all Social Housing contracts can fit within the guidelines taid down for revenue recognition as detalled above, the alternative
contractual pricing mechanisms do result in different methods of assessing the stage of completion The Group has therefore
recognised revenue dependent on the nature of transactions in line with IAS 18

There are some contracts where we are entitled to a fee to reimburse the costs relating to a new contract start-up This fee1s sometimes
paid on commencement or paid 1n instaiments over an extended periecd Where the contractual entitlemant to this iIncoma crystallises
upon commencement the revenue s recognised All costs relating to pre-commencement and mobilisatton are written off as they are incurred

Schedule of Rates (SOR) contracts
There are numerous contractual pricing mechanisms but one can broadly divide these into three types

There is an element of SOR In the majonty of contracts At tender stage we enter a price for each of the numerous tasks carried out In respect
of property mamtenance Typically we price far uplift or a discount against a pre-priced schedule This price will, in some cases, be an
all-encompassing price for the cost of direct works, the local site overhead, central overhead and profit contnibution In other instances,
the SOR tendered may only recover direct works with an alternative mechanism to recover the other elements Wheraver possible, we
saek to identify all works tickets received individuaily and capture costs and billing at the individual work ticket level In so doing, this
allows revenus to be recognised with a high degree of accuracy Typically, reactive maintenance works are invoiced within a month of
comptetion, hence the majority of revenue recognised has already been valued at the individual work ticket level and the significant
majonty has been subsequently settled The only element of revenue or profit recognition that requires judgement Is aganst those
Jobs that are part complete or those completed works that have not been subject to a final valuation
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Revenue continued

Social Housing continued

Schedule of Rates {SOR) contracts continued

For part completed works, consideration needs to be given as to whether the Group will recover the transaction costs incurred
Whether the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably needs to bs considered contract by contract based on histaric
outcomes and knowledge of any events that may affect future joh profitability Where the outcame of the transaction cannot be estimated
reliably revenue 1s recognised only tothe extent that the costs incurred are anticipated to be recovered Where the outcome of the transaction
can be estimated reliably, an element of anticipated profit 1s recognised within revenue to the extent that historic outcomes adjusted
for knowledge of any events that may affect future job prefitability support such recognitien

For completed but not yet valued works, the outcome of the individual valued work tickets is not reviewed individually for the purposes
of profit and revenue recognition However, given the high volume of historical data to provide an accurate indication of underlying contract
margin at a particular site, the Group considers that the application of an anticipated profit margin on cost to all completed and unbilled
works produces areliable measure

For completed and valued works the likely autcome for the individual work ticket can be determined individually for the purposes of profit
and reverue recognition The Group considers that the recognition of the anticipated profit for the individual job within revenue 1s approprate

Open book contracts

Typically the open book element of contracts relates to the local site overhead A priced overhead model s usually provided to a client
at tender stage and the client pays the Group a fixad sum for mamntaining this local site This 1s typically an agreed fixed price Revenue
1s recognised in Line with cost incurred and similarly the attributable profit recognised against that cost

Any aver or underspends are typically at the risk of the Group The actual overhead spend is often subject to an open book review which
1s then used as the basis for agreeing future pricing

On the rare occasions that a contract does recover costs under a pure ‘cost plus’ arrangement, revenue 1s recognised In line with cost
incurred and similarly the attributable profit recegmsed agamnst that cost

Lump sum contracts

This type of contract is becoming more commonplace To avoid the onerous burden of administenng a high velume, low value activity,
the pricing mechanism is reduced to either a price per ticket or a price per property Historically many gas servicing and brezkdown
contracts have been procured on a lump sum basis However, 1t1s now becoming increasingly common within the reactive maintenance
ernvironment There is typically an exclusions list for works that are not considered repairs and not deemed te fall within the lump sum price
It 1s normal for this excluded element of the works to be billed under an SOR arrangement

For practical purposes In the majonty of lump sum contracts revenue is recognised ona straight-line basis over the contract term
There 1s not a matenal impact of seasonality in a client’s reactive mamntenance spend {in terms of ether volume or value of orders
received) In terms of the lump sum element of the contract, the revenue 1s split evenly across the twelve manthly reporting periods
Na element of revenue ;s either advanced or deferred

There are a small number of lump sum contracts where recognising revenue on a straight-line basis would be inapproprrate These are
contracts where the phasing of the works over the contract term varies matenally over the period of the contract and there 1s a mismatch
between the delivery of works and the timing of invoicing agamnst those works For these contracts, the Group has historically reverted
to recognising revenue based on the proportion of costs incurred to date compared with the estimated total costs of the contract

Rental income
Rental income 1s recognised :n the Income Statement on & straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Care

Revenue Is recognised when the actual care has been delivered Revenuerelatingto care delivered and netinvoiced 1s accrued and
disclosed under trade and other recewvables as amounts recoverable on cantracts Revenue attnbutable to any unused capacity under
block contracts where the Group 1s able to invoice for contracted services not provided, 1s recognised when the recovery of income

is considered virtually certain There 1s minimal scope for jJudgement based on the care process

Mears Care utilises rostering systems to manage care These systems allow far planning a rota for each staff member, together with
tha corresponding pay and bill rates for the particular service type, length of service and time of delivery These results are very accurate
in the calculation of billable time, iIncome and corresponding employee pay for a particular contract, branch ar region

Accrued income is determined by applying an average historical billing rate to the number of unbilled heurs delivered at the balance
sheet date Variances are reviewed 1n the following month once actual billing 1s known The rostering systems allow unbilled hours to be
calculated based on planned, rostered and actual visits along with the corresponding pay and bill rates for the particular service type,
langth of service and time of delivery These results ara very accurate in the calculation of billabie time, income and corresponding
employee pay for a particular contract, branch or region

www maarsgroup ca vk Annual report and accounts 2014 Mears Group PLC 75

1odesai8eleng

ssuBularnd gjelodio]

SluaLRRls |BIaUBUI4

upljBULI0UI 13PI0YaIRYG



Financial statements

Principal accounting policies — Group continued

Revenue continued

Construction contracts

Revenue from the Mechanical & Electrical {M&E) sector reflects the contract activity during the year and 1s measured at the fair value
of consideration receved or receivable When the outcome can be assessed reliably, contract revenue and assoctated costs are recognised
as revenue and expenses respactively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date The stage
of completion of the contract at the balance sheet date s usually assessad by companing the proportion of costs incurred to estimated
tatal contract costs Where this s not representative, contract milastonaes are used as a basis of assessing the stage of completion
Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated rebably revenue s recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it 1s probabte will be recoverabte and contract costs are recognised as an expense in the perniod in which they are incurred

In the case of a fixed prnice contract the outcome of a construction contract 1s deemed to be estimated reliably when alt the following
condrtions are satisfied

« t1s probabls that economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Group,

* both the contract costs to complete the contract and the stage of completion at the baiance sheet date can be measured relrably, and

« the contract costs attributable to the centract can be clearly identified and measured reliably so that actual contract casts incurred
can be compared with prior estimates

The gross amount due from customers for contract work 1s presented as an asset for all contracts in progress for which costs incurred,
plus recogmised profits (less recognised losses), exceed progress bilings The gross amount due to custemers for contract work 1s presented
as a hability for all contracts in progress for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less losses)

Full provision ts made for losses on all contracts in the year in which the loss is first foreseen

Segment reporting
Segment information 1s presentad in respect of the Group s operating segments based upon the format that the Group reparts
to its chief operating decision makers

The Group considers that the chief ocperating decision makers are the Executive Directors and Senior Executives of the business

Exceptional costs

Exceptional costs are diselosed on the face of the Consolidated Income Statement where these are material and considered necessary
to explain the underlying financiat performance of the Group They are either one-off in nature or necessary elements of expenditure
to derive future benefits for the Group which have not been capitalised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Costs of restructure are only considered to be exceptional where the restructure 1s transformational and the resultant cost 1s sigmficant

Acquisition costs are only considered to be exceptional where the acquisition is significant and the resultant cast 1s significant

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit obligations
The Group aperates both defined benefit and defined contripution pension schemes as follows

1} Defined contribution pensions
Adefined contribution planis a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into an independent entity The Group has
no legal obbigations to pay further cantnbutions after payment of the fixed contribution

The contributions recognised in respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as they falldue biabilities and assets may be
recognised If underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included i current hiabilities or current assets as they are normally
of a short-term nature

The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund

1) Defined benefit pensions
The Group contributes to defined benefit schemes which require contributicns to be made to separately administered funds
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Employee benefits continued

Retirement benefit obligations continued

11} Defined benefit pensions continued

Adefined benefit plan 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary The legal obligations for any benefits from this kind of pension
plan remain with the Group even f plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside

Scheme Liabilities are measured using the projected unit funding method, applying the principal actuanal assumptions at the Balance
Sheet date Assets are measured at marketvalue In accordance with IFRIC 14, the asset that s recognised Is restricted to the amaunt
by which the IAS 19 (Revised) service cost s expected, over the lifetime of the scheme to exceed funding contributions payable

in respect of accruing benefits

Where the Group has a contractual right to recover the costs of making good any deficit in the scheme from the Group’s client, the

fair value of that asset has been recognised and disclosed The right to recover costs 1s imited to exclude situations where the Group
causes the scheme to incur service costs in excess of those which would have been incurred were the members employed within Logal
Government The right to recover costs 1s alsc bmited to situations whera the cap on employer contributions to be suffered by the Group
1s not set so as to contribute to reducing the deficit in the scheme

Actuarial gains and losses are taken to the statement of comprehensive iIncome as incurred For this purpose, actuanal gains and
losses comprise both the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments ansing because of differences
between the previous actuanal assumpticns and what has actually occurred

Other movements in the net surplus of deficit are recognised in the Income Statement, including the current service cost, any pastservice
cost and the effect of curtailments or settlements The interest costs less the expected return on assets s also charged to the Income
Statement The amount charged to the Income Statement in respect of these plans in included within operating costs

The Group's contributions to the schemse are paid in accerdance with the rules of the schemes and the recommendations of the actuary

Share-based employee remuneration
All share-based payment arrangements that were granted after 7 November 2002 and had not vested before 1 January 2005
are recognised in the cansolidated financ:al statements in accordance with IFRS 2

The Group cperates equity-settled share-based remuneration plans for its employeas All employee services received in exchanga for
the grant of any share-based remuneration are measured at thewr fair values These are indirectly determined by reference to the farr
value (excluding the effect of non-market based vasting conditions) of the share options awarded Their value 1s determined at the date
of grant and 15 not subsequently remeasured unless the conditions on which the award was granted are modified The fairvalue at the
date of the grant is calculated using the Binomial and Monte Carlo option pricing medels and the costis recognised on a straight-line
basis over the vesting penod Adjustments are made to reflect expected and actual forfeitures during the vesting period For SAYE plans,
employees are required to contribute towards the plan This non-vesting condition is taken into account in calculating grant date farr value

All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense 1n the Income Statement with a corresponding credit
to the share-based payment reserve

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds receved net of any directly attributable transaction costs up to the nominal value
of the shares 1ssued ara allocated to share capital with any excess being recorded as share premium

Leases

In accordance with IAS 17 'Leases’, the economic ownership of a leased asset s transferred to the lessee If they bear substantially all
the risks and rewards related to the ownership of the leased asset The related asset 1s recognised atthe time of inception of the lease
at the far value of the leased asset ar, if lower, the present value of the lease payments plus incidental payments, if any, to be barne by
the lessee Acorresponding amount s recognised as a finance leasing Liability, Irrespective of whether some of these lease payments
are payable up front at the date of inception of the lease

Subsequent acceunting for assets held under finance lease agreements, 1 e depreciation methods and useful ives, correspond to those
applied to comparable acquired assets The corresponding finance leasing liability 1s reduced by lease payments less finance charges,
which are expensed to finance costas Finance charges represent a constant penodic rate of Interest on the outstanding batance of the

finance lease hability

All other leases are treated as operating leases Payment on operating lease agreements i1s recognised as an expense on & straight-line
basis over the lease term Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred

The Group does not act as a lessar
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Financial statements

Principal accounting policies — Group continued

Financial instruments
Financial assets and Liabilities are recogrised in the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument The principal financial assets and liabilities of the Group are as follows

Financial assets
When financial assets are recognised iitially under |AS 39 ‘Financiat Instruments Recognition and Measurement’, they are measured
at fair value, net of transaction costs other than for financial assets carned at fair value through the Income Siatement

The Group's financial assets are included in the Balance Sheet as current assets, except for those maturing more than twelve manths
after the balance sheet date, whereupon they are classified as non-current assets The Group's financiat assets comprise ‘Trade and
other recelvables’, Amounts racaverable on cantracts’ and ‘Cash at bank and in hand’ in the Balance Sheet

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, amounts recoverable an contracts and cash at bank and in hand are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market They anse when the Group provides money goods or services directly
to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables Trade receivables and amcunts recoverable on contracts are initially recorded
at fair value net of transaction costs beng invoiced value less any provisional estimate for imparment should this be necessary due
to & loss event Trade receivables are subsequently remeasured at nvoiced value, less an updated provision for impairment Any change
in their value through impairment or reversal of impairment s recognised in the Income Statement

Provisions against trade recevables and amounts recoverable on contracts are made when abjective evidence s received that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts dueto it in accardance with the onginal terms of those receivables The amount of the write down
1s determined as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows Individually
significent balances are reviewed separately for impairment based on the credit terms agreed with the customer Other balances are
grouped into credit nisk categories and reviewed in aggregate

Cash and cash equivatents include cash at bank and 1n hand and bank deposits available at less than 24 hours notice Bank overdrafts
are presented as current liabilities to the extent that there ts no right of offset with cash balances

Following initial recognition, financial assets are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Financial llabhihities
The Group's financial liabilities are overdrafis, trade and other payables and finance leasing labilities They are included in the Balance
Sheet ling 1tams ‘Short-term borrawings and averdrafts’, Non-current financial liabilines’ and ‘Trade and other payables’

All interest related charges are recognised as an expense In ‘Finance cost’ in the Income Statement with the exception of those
that are directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset which are capitalised as part of that asset

Bank and other borrowings are Initially recognised at fair value net of transaction cosis Gains and losses ansigon the repurchase,
settlement or otherwise cancellation of Labilities are recognised respectively in finance revenue and finance costs Borrawing costs
are recognised as an expense in the period In which they are incurred with the exception of those which are directly attributable

to the construction of a qualifying asset which are capitalised as part of that asset

Finance lease liabiliies are initially measured at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the mirimum
lsase payments as determined at the inception of the lease Thenitial value 1s reduced by the capital element of lease repayments over
the penod of the lease

Trade payables on normal terms are not interest bearing and are stated at their far value on initial recegnition and subsequently
at amortised cost

Contingent consideration 1s initially recognised at fair value and 18 subsequently measu red at fair value through the Income Statement
Denvative financial instruments
The Group uses derivative financial Instruments to hedge 1ts exposure to interest raie risks arising from operational and financing activities

Derwative financial Instruments are recognised imtially and subsequently at fair value, with mark-to-market movements recognised
In the Income Statement except where cash ilow hedge accounting ts applied

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the balance
sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterpartios
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Derivative financial instruments continued

In accordance with 1ts treasury policy, the Group does not held or Issue derivative financial instruments for trading purpases However,
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments Mark-to-market movements on these
dervatives are shown In the Income Statement

Hedge accounting for interest rate swaps

Where an interest rate swap 1s designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of an existing or highly probable forecast loan interest
payment, the effective part of any valuation gatn or loss an the swap instrument 1s recogrused 1n ‘Other comprehensive income’ In the
hedging reserve The cumulative gain or loss 1s removed from squity and recogmised In the Income Statement at the same time as the
hedged transaction The ineffective part of any gain or loss 1s recogmised in the Income Statement immediately

When a hedging instrument or hedge relationships terminated but the hedged transaction is still expected to occur the cumulative
gan or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs [fthe
hedged transaction s nolonger probable the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity 1s recognised in the Incorme
Statement immediately

Nature and purpose of each reserve In equity
Share capital 1s determined using the nominal valus of shares that have been 1ssued

Share premium represents the difference between the nominal value of shares tssued and the total consideration recewved

Equity-settied sharad-based employee remuneration is credited to the share-based payment reserve until the related share options
are exercised Upon exercise the share-based paymant reserve s transferred to retained earnings

The hedging reserve represents the effective part of any gain or loss on a cash flow hedge which has not been removed from equity
and recagrised In the Income Statement

The merger reserve relates to the difference between the nominal value and total consideration in respact of the acquisition
of Careforce Group ple, Supporta ple and Morrison Facilities Services Limited where the Company was entitled to the merger
relief offered by the Companies Act

Dividends
Dmwvidend distnibutions payable to equity sharehalders are included in ‘Current financial iabilities® when the dividends are approved
in a general meeting prior to the balance sheet date

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts

of assets and llabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of iIncome and expenditure during the reported period The estimates and associated judgements are based on historical
experience and vanous other factors that are beheved to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making jJudgements about carrying values of assets and liabilibies that are not readily apparent fram other sources

The estimates and underlying judgements are reviewed on an ongoing hasis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revisicn affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revisicn affects both current and future periods

In the preparation of these consalidated financial statements, estimates and jJudgements have been made by management concerning
the selection of useful Lives of property, plant and equipment, provisions necessary for certain liabilitigs, when to recognise revenue
on long-term contracis, actuarial judgements discount rates used within impairment reviews, the underlying share price volatility
for valuing equity-based payments and other similar evaluations Actual amounts could differ from those estimates

Critical judgements In applying the Group's accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s racogmsed based on the stage of completion of job or contract activity As described in the Revenue section on pages 74 to 76,
certain types of Soctal Housing pricing mechanisms and Care require minimal judgement, howsver, Scecial Heusing lump sum contracts
and construction contracts do require judgements and estrmates to be made to determine tha stage of completicn and the expected
outcome for the individual contract
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Financial statements

Principal accounting policies — Group continued

Use of judgements and estimates continued

Joint arrangements

The Group participates in a number of joint arrangements where control of the arrangement 1s shared with another party A joint
arrangement 15 classified as a Jjoint operation or as a joint venture, depending on management’s assessment of the lega! form and
substance of the arrangement

The classification can have a material Impact on the consolidated financial statements The Group's share of assets, Liabilities, revenue,
expenses and cash flows of joint operations would be included in the consolidated financial statements on a Uine-by-line basis, whereas
the Group s investment and share of results of joint ventures are shown within single Line items in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and
Consolidated Income Statement respectively

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwnll1s impaired requires an estimate of the value In use of the CGUs to which goadwill has been allocated
The value-tn-use calculation involves an estimate of the future cash flows of the CGUs and also the selection of appropnate discount
rates to calculate present values Future cash flows are estimated using the current one-year budget forecast, extrapolated for a future
growth rate The estimated growth rates are based on past experience and knowledge of the individual sector's markets Changes in the
estimated growth rate could result in vanstions to the carrying value of goodwill The Diractors consider thet the estimates and judgements
invalved in determining the value in use of the Care CGU goodwill are the most significant and have therefore utilised the services
of an external consultant to undertake this impairment review The estimated cash flows and future growth rates are based on past
experience and knowledge of the sector The value n use 1s most sensitive to changes in the terminal growth rate the explicit growth
rate and the discount rate The sensrtivity to changes in these estimations 1s detailed in note 11

Defined benefit Labilities
Anumber of key estimates have been made, which are given below, which are largely dependent on factors outside the control of the Group

« Inflation rates,
« martality
« discountrate, and

« salary and pension increases
Details of the particular estimatas used are included in the pensions note Sensitivity analysis for these key estimates 1s included in note 25

Where the Group has a contractual right to recover the costs of making good any deficit in the scheme, the fair value of that asset has
been recognised and disclosed The nght to recover costs 1s limited to exclude srtuations where the Group causes the scheme to incur
sarvice costs in excess of those which would have been incurred were the members employad within Local Government The Diractors
have made judgements in respect of whether any of the deficit s as a result of such situations

The right to recover costs 1s also imited to situattons where the cap on employer contributions to be suffered by the Group s not set
30 as to contribute to reducing the deficit in the scheme The Directors, in conjunction with the scheme actuaries, have made judgements
in respect of the predictsd future service cost and contributions to the scheme to reflect this in the fairvalue of the asset recognised

New standards and interpretations not yet applied
Improvements to IFRS 2011-2013 Cycle The Group s expacted to apply these improvements for the Group's 31 December 2015
financial statements

Accounting far Acquisitions of Interests in Jaint Operations Amendments to IFRS 11 The Groupis expected to apply this amendment
for the Group’s 31 December 2016 financial statements

Clanfication of Acceptable Methads of Depreciation and Amortisatian, Amendment to IAS 16 and I1AS 38 The Group 1s expected to apply
these amendments for the Group's 31 December 2016 financial statements

IERS @ ‘Financial Instruments’ specifies how an entity should classify and measure financial assets, including some hybrid contracts
The Group 15 expected o apply this standard for the Group's 31 December 2078 financial statements, sulject to endorsement by the EU

IFRS 15 Revenue from Centracts with Customers' This standard introduces a new revenue recognition model that recognises revenue
either at a point in time or over time The maodel features a contract-based five-step analys:s of transactions to determine whether, how
much and when revenue s recognised The Group is expected to apply this standard for the Group's 31 December 2017 financial
statements subject to endorsement by the EU
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013

Note £'000 £000
Continuing operaticns
Sales revenue 1 838,740 865,574
Cost of sales (613,699) (641,115)
Gross profit 225,041 224,459
Other administrative expanses {182,046) (183,344)
Exceptional costs & — (6,663}
Amaortisation of acquisition intangibles 12 (12,328) (10860)
Total admlmistrative costs (194,374) (200 887)
Operating profit before exceptional costs and amoruisation of acquisition intangibles 42,995 41,115
Operating profit 30,667 23592
Share of rasults of equity accounted joint ventures 299 —
Finance income 3 2,315 2,119
Finance costs 3 (3,604) (3,966}
Prafit far the year befaore tax, exceptional costs and the amortisation of acquisiticn intangibles 42,005 39 268
Profit for the year before tax 29,677 21,745
Tax expense 7 (4,442) (4,757)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 25,235 16 988
Discontinued operations
LLoss for the year before exceptional costs and before tax from discontinued operations 8 — (2,638)
Excepticnal costs from discontinued operations 8 —  (18,830)
Tax income from discontinued operations 8 — 3,307
Loss for the year after tax from discontinued operations — (18,161)
Profit/({loss) for the year from continuing and discontinued operations 25,235 (1,173)
Attributable to
Owners of the parent 25,286 {942)
Non-controlling interest (51 (231)
Profit/(loss) for the year 25,235 {(1173)
Earnings per share
Basic 10 25 03p (1 21p)
Diluted 10 24 65p (117p)

The accampanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements

www mearsgroup ca uk

Annualreport and accounts 2014 Mears Group PLC 81

ueda) 218meng

83UBUIBAOE Mp0dI0)

FIUALLIBIRIE ||IDUBUILY

uoIBULIO)UI JBPOLBIBYS




Financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 23
Noate £'000 £ 000

Net profit/(loss) for the year 25,235 (1.173)
Other comprehensve income/{expense)
Which will be subsequently reclassified to the Income Statement

Cash ftow hedges

- (losses)/gains arising in the year 20 (841) 593

- reclassification to Income Statement 20 722 791

Increase/{decrease) in deferred tax asset in respect of cash flow hadges 20 5 (319)
Which will not be subsequently reclassified ta the Income Statement

Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension scheme 25 {(3,290) (2 196)

Increase In deferrad tax asset in raspect of defined benefit pension schemes 21 694 577
Other comprehensive expense for the year {2,710) (5b4)
Total camprehensive iIncome/(expense) for the year 22,525 (1,727}
Attributable to
Owners of the parent 24,302 (1 496)
Non-controlling interest (1,7277) (231)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 22,525 (1,727)

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note £'000 £000
Assets
Non-current
Goodwill 11 192,003 157,945
Intangible assets 12 35,375 35,648
Share of net asset of joint ventures 14 1,856 —
Property, plant and equipment 13 15,880 15 068
Penston and other employee benefits 25 15,131 14,731
Deferred tax asset 21 8,573 10,5670
268,818 233,960
Current
Inventories 15 8,468 10,452
Trade and other receivables 16 142,616 151,683
Cash at bank and in hand 66,634 79,552
217,718 241,697
Total assets 486,536 475,607
Equity
Equity attnbutable to the shareholders of Mears Group PLC
Called up share capital 22 1,011 1,007
Share premium acceunt 56,714 56,082
Share-based payment reserve 1,653 1,060
Hedging reserve (962) (848)
Merger reserve 46,214 46 214
Retained earnings 92,179 77,366
Total equity shareholders' funds 196,809 180 8§71
Non-centrolling interest (2,347) (570)
Total equity 194,462 180,301
Liabilities
Non-current
Long-term borrowing and overdrafts 20 57,500 56,000
Pension and other employee benefits 25 8,372 6,107
Deferred tax habilities 21 9,418 9 764
Financial labilities 18 788 7™
Other habilities 19 25,956 1278
102,034 72,850
Current
Short-term barrewings and overdrafts 20 5,300 25,000
Trade and other payables 17 182,098 196,975
Fiancial liabilities 18 580 478
Current tax Liabilities 2,062 53
Current Llabilities 190,040 222,506
Total liabilities 292,074 295,356
486,536 475,657

Total equity and habilities

& financiat statements were approfed and aytRprised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors and were signed an its behalf on 17 March 2015

.FJ“
RHolt A CM Smith
irector Director

Company number 03232863

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial staternents
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Financlal statements

Consolidated cash flow statement
FFor the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2012
Note £'000 £ 000

Operating activities
Result for the year before tax 29,677 21,745
Adjustments 23 20,191 18,558
Change in inventories 2,195 1291
Change In trade and other recevables 11,967 9,242
Change in trade and other payables (17,595) (11,920
Cash inflow from operating activities of continuing operations before taxation 46,435 38 916
Taxes paid (2,285) (3,099)
Net cash inflow from operating activities of centinuing operations 44,150 36 817
Net cash outflow from operating activities of discentinued operations — (3,632)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 44,150 32,185
investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment (3,962) (3,660)
Additions to other intangible assets {1,484) {1,169)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 106 6
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, net of cash (22,221) (238617)
Interest received 78 2
Net cash outflow from investing activities of continuing operations (27,483) (2B,438)
Net cash autflow from investing activities of discontinued operations — {1,390
Net cash outflow from investing activities (27,483) (29,828)
Einancing activities
Proceeds frem share 1ssue 636 21,260
Discharge of finance lease Liabibty (62) —
Interest paid {3,707) (3,565)
Dvidends peid (9,252) (81186)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities of continuing operations (12,385) 9,579
Net cash outflow from financing activities of discontinued operations -_ —
Net cash (cutflow)/inflow from financing activities (12,385) 9,579
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year (448) (12,384)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalients 4,282 11,936
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3,834 (448)
Cash and cash equivalents comprises the following
- cash at bank and (n hand 66,634 79,552
- borrowings and overdrafts (62,800) {80 00C)
Cash and cash equivalents 3,834 (448)

The accompanylng accaunting policies and notes form anintegral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable to equity sharehalders of tha Company

Share Share-based Non-
Share premium payment Hedging Merger Retained  controlling Tetal
capltal account reserve reserve reserve earmings interest equrty

£000 £000 £000 £00¢ £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1.January 2013 319 34,910 1,685 (1,913) 46 214 87,342 (339) 168,818
Net result for the year — — — — - {942) (231) (1,173)
QOther comprehensive income/{expense) — — -— 1,065 — {1819} —_ {554)
Total comprehensive Income/{expense)
for the year — — — 1,065 — {(2,561) (231) (1727)
Deferred tax on share-based payments — — — — — (589) — {599)
'ssue of shares 88 21,172 — — — — — 21,260
Share option charges — — 665 — — — -— 865
Exercise of share options — — {1,300) — — 1,300 — —
Dividends — — — — — {8118) — (8,116)
At 1January 2014 1,007 56,082 1050 (848) 46,214 77,366 {570) 180,301
Net result for the year — — — — — 25,286 (51) 25,235
Other comprehensive expense — — - (114) — {870) {1,728) (2,710)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year — - - (114) — 24302 (1,777) 22,525
Deferred tax on share-based payments — — — — — (418) — {418}
lssue of shares 4 632 — — — — — 636
Share option charges — — 670 — — — — 670
Exercise of share options — — (67) — — 67 —_ —
Dividends — — — — — {9,252) — (9,252}
At 31 December 2014 1,011 56,714 1,653 (962) 46,214 92,179 (2,347) 194,462

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements

www mearsgroup ¢o uk

Annual report and accounts 2014 Mears Group PLC 85

1odaiodaleng

eoueuUeAcE sescdlon

|

§1UBLLIAIRIS |BIGUBLIY

UOHEL I0juUl 13pjoYaleys



Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1 Segment reporting
Segment information 1s presented in respect of the Group's operating segments Segments are determined by reference to the internal
reports reviewed by the Board

The Group operated two operating segments during the year

« Social Housing - services within this sactor comprise a full repairs and maintenance service to Local Authorities and other
Registered Social Landlords, and

« Care - services within this sector comprise personal care services to people in their own homes

All of the Group’s activities are carned out within the United Kingdom and the Group s principal reporting to 1ts chief operating decision
maker 1s not segmented by geography

The principal financial measures used by the chief operating decision maker and the Board to review the performance of the operating
segments are that of revenue growth and operating margins in baoth the core divisions of Social Housing and Care The operating result
utilised within the key performance measures s stated before amortisation of acquisition intangibles, exceptionat costs and costs
relating to the long-term incentive plans

2014 2013
Social Socual

Houslng Care Total Housing Care Total
Cperating segments £'000 £'000 £000 £ 000 E 000 £ 000
Revenue 714,733 124,007 838740 742,479 123,095 865574
Operating result pre amortisation of acquisition intangibles,
exceptional costs and long-term Incentive plans 34,410 9,641 44,051 33,630 9,623 43,153
Operating margin pre amortisatien of acquisition intangbles,
excaptional costs and long-term incentive plans 4 81% 7 78% 5 25% 452% 782% 4 99%
Long-term incentive plans (1,056) — (1,056)  (2,038) — (2,038
Operating result pre amortisation of acquisition intangibles
and exceptional costs 33,354 9,641 42,995 31,492 9,623 411156
Exceptional costs - {6,663)
Amortisation of acquisition (intangibles (12,328) (10,860)
Finance costs, net (990) (1,847
Tax expense (4,6442) (4,757)
Profit for the year from continuing activities 25,235 16,988

Alirevenue and all non-current assets anse within the United Kingdom All of the revenue reported 1s extarnal to the Group Norevenue
in respect of a single customer comprises more than 10% of the total revenue reported
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1. Segment reporting continued

In addition, the following disclosures have been provided in respect of segmental analysis required by IFRS 8 'Operating Segments

2014 2013
Saocial Socal
Housing Care Qther Total Housing Care Qther Total

Operating segments £'000 £'900 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000
Segment asseis 365,824 120,712 — 486,536 349,860 125,797 — 475,657
Segment liabiliues (237,474)  (54,600) — (292,074) (238,975) (56,381) — {295 356)
Property, plant and equipment additions 4,203 333 — 4,536 3,762 431 22 4,215
Depreciation 3,631 71 —_ 4,362 4,128 620 176 4,924
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 6,069 6,259 _— 12,328 5,955 4,905 — 10,880
Share of result of joint venture 298 _ _— 299 — — — —
Finance income 2,303 12 — 2,315 2,051 68 85 2,204
Finance costs {1,942) (1,662) _— (3,604) {2 596) {1,370) — (3,966)
Profit/{loss) before tax 27,945 1,732 — 29,677 18,328 3416 (21,468} 277
2. Operating costs
Operating costs, relating to continuing activities, include

2014 2013

£'000 £000
Share-based payments 670 665
tong-term incentives 386 1,373
Depreciation 4,362 4,748
Amortisation 13,480 11,904
Loss on disposal of property, ptant and equipment (3) {215)
Hire of plant and machinery 5916 4,944
Other operating lease rentals 24,705 24,644
Fees payabie for audit and non-audit services during the year were as follows

dos  co
Fees payable to the auditor for the audit of the Group's financial statements 58 56
Other fees payable to the auditor in respect of
- auditing of accounts of subsidiary undertakings pursuant to legislation 228 214
- taxation compliance fees 45 33
- taxation advice fees 18 17
- internal audit effectiveness review —_— 25
Total auditor s remuneration 347 345
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. Finance income and finance costs

2014 2013

£'000 £000
Interest charge on overdrafts and short-term loans {1,975) {2,401)
interest charge on hedged items (sffective hedges) (722} (791)
Interest charge on hedged items (insffective hedges) {70) —
Other interest (B80) —
Finance costs on bank loans, averdrafts and finance leases (2,847) (3,192)
Interest charge on defined benefit asset (428) {401
Unwinding of discounting (331} {373
Total finance costs {3,604) (3,966}
Interest income resulting from short-term bank deposits 10 2
Interest income resulting from defined benefit asset 2,238 2,117
Other interest income 67 —_
Finance income 2,315 2,119
Net finance charge on continuing operations (1,289) (1,847)
Net finance Income on discontinued operations — 85
Net finance charge (1,289) (1,762)
Gains and losses on hedged items recognised In other comprehensive income
(Losses)/gains ansing in the year (841) 593
Reclassification to the Income Statement 722 791
Changes in mark-to-market of interest rate swaps (effective hedges) (119) 1,384
4, Employees
Staff costs during the year were as follows

2014 2013

£000 £000
Wages and salanes 262,730 274,617
Social secunty coste 22,061 23,968
Qther pension cests 11,387 10 480
Total continuing operations 296,178 309,035
Discontinued operations —_ 5,181
Total continuing and discontinued operations 296,178 314,218
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4, Employees continued
The average number of employees of the Group during the year was

2014 2013
Number Number
Site workers 4,133 4,358
Carers 5,944 6 060
Office and management 2,888 2,974
Total continuing operations 12,965 13,392
Discantinued operations —_ 140
Total continuing and discontinued operations 12,965 13,532
Remuneration in respect of Directors was as follows
2014 2013
£'000 £000
Emoluments 2,189 21980
Gains made on the exercise of share options 536 5,139
Pension contributions to personal pension schemes 185 185
2,910 7514
During the year contributions were paid to personal penston schemes for four Directors (2013 four)
During the year two Directors (2013 three) exercised share options
5. Share-based employee remuneration
As at 31 December 2014 the Group maintained five share-based payment schemes for employee remuneration
Detalls of the share options outstanding are as follows
2014 2013
Weighted Waeighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
*000 p '000 p
Outstanding at 1January 2,420 40 5,186 63
Granted 1,205 414 524 1
Forfeited/lapsed {159} 260 {856) 28
Exercised (472) 135 (2,434) 86
Outstanding at 31 Decernber 2,994 223 2,420 40

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercrsed during the period was £1 35 At 31 December 2014
13m options had vested and were still exercisable at prices between 1p and 414p These options had a weighted average exercise price

of 144p and a weighted average remaining contractual Iife of seven years

The fair values of options granted were determined using the Binomial and Monte Carlo cption pricing models Significant inputs into
the calculation inciude the market price at the date of grant and exercise prices Furthermore, the calculation takes into account the

future dividend yield, the share price volatility rate and the risk-free interest rate
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Financial statemants

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

5 Share-based employee remuneration continued

The underlying expected share price volatidity was deterrmined by reference to historical data The Company expects the volatility of its
share price to reduce as it matures The nisk-frea interest rate was determined by the implied yield available on a zero-coupan Gavernment
bond at the date of grant Adjustments are made to reflect expected and actual forfeitures during the vesting period due to fallure to
satisfy service canditrions In the case of the SAYE schema the expected forfertures take account of the requirement ta save throughout
the life of the scheme There were 1 2m options granted during the year and 0 2m options lapsed during the year The market price

at 31 December 2014 was 375 5p and the range duning 2014 was 328p to 525p

All share-hased employee remunaration will be settled in equity The Group has no legal obligation to repurchase or settle the options

The Group recognises the foltawing expenses related to share-hased payments

2014 2013
£'000 £000
LTIP {134) 202
SAYE 146 79
Share Plan 658 384
670 665

In total, £0 7m of employee remuneration expense has been included in the Consolidated Income Statement for 2014 (2013 £07m),
which gave rise to additional share-based payment reserves No liabilties were recognised duato share-based payment transactions

The Mears Group PLC Long-term Incentive Plan {LTIP)
The LTIP was introduced in October 2008 following shareholder approval The award of options 15 offered to a smali number of key
senior management The principal terms of the LTIP are detailed below

Principal terms of LTIP

Number of options Maximum award imit under the plan will be 200% of salaryp a
Exercise price 1p

Performance penod 3years

Perfoermance conditions There are two performance targets attaching to the LTiP Award

75% of the LTIP Award will relate to an EPS growth target The other 25% of the LTIP Award relates
to the Company’s TSR against the return of the FTSE All Share Support Services Sector

Expiry conditions Opttons are forfaited if the employee leaves the Group before the options hava vested

Performance conditions of LTIP {2010 1ssue}

EPS growth target TSR target
Performance levels Leve! of vasting Performance levels Level of vesting
80% 10% Below index return 0%
10 0% 30% Equal toindex 30%
10% cutperformance
12 5% 100% of the indexp & 100%
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5. Share-based employee remuneration continued

Approved share option plan

Options are exercisable at a price equal to the average quoted market price of the Company’s shares on the three dealing days prior to
the date of grant The vasting penod 1s three years If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant,
the optians expire Options are forfeited if the employee leaves Mears before the options vest

Unapproved share option plan

Cptions are exercisable at a price equal to the average guoted market price of the Company s shares onthe three dealing days prior to
the date of grant Thevesting periad Isthree years If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant,
the options expire Options are forfeited if the employee leaves Mears before the options vest With the introduction of the LTIP in 2008
the Remuneration Committee has decided that no further awards will be made under the unapproved share option plan

Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme

Options are available to all amptoyees Options are granted for a penicd of either three or five years Options are exercisable ataprice
based on the quoted market price of the Company's shares at the time of iInvitation discounted by up to 20% Options are forfeited
ifthe employee leaves Mears Group before the options vest which impacts on the number of options expected to vest If an employee
stops saving but continues in employment, thisis treated as a cancellation which results in an acceleration of the share-based
payment charge

Special Incentive Plan 2007 (S1P)

The SIP was introduced in 2007 to reward the then Chief Executive Officer, Bob Holt, with premium priced options linked to long-term
performance Tha terms and conditions were subsequently amended on 3 July 2009 If the options remain unexercised after a perod
of ten years from the date of grant, the options expire There was a single award and no further awards will be made under this plan

The Mears Group PLC Share Plan (2013)

The Share Plan was introduced in June 2013 following shareholder approval The award of options s offered to a small number
of key semor management The principal terms of the LTIP are detailed below

Principal terms of LTIP

Number of options Maximum award limit under the plan will be 200% of salaryp a

Exercise price 1p

Vesting period Three-vear (future awards under this plan will be subject to a five-year vesting period)
Performance conditions None

Expiry condrtions Options are forfaited If the employee leaves the Group before the options have been vested

6. Exceptional costs
Exceptional costs incusred in the period which are considered non-trading or non-recurring in nature are detalled below

2014 2013

£000 £'000
Costs of acquisitions - 200
Costs of integration - 6,463
Total continuing operations —_ 6,663
Total discontinued operations (see note 8) — 18,830
Total continuing and discontinued cperations —_ 25,483

The costs of acguisition in the prior period relats to the acquisition of ILS Group Limited
The costs of integration in the prior period relate to the integration of the Morrnison and Mears Social Housing businesses

Exceptional costs on discontinued activities In the prior peried relate to the loss on dispasal and associated costs of disposals
of Haydon Mecharucat & Electrical Limited
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

7. Tax expense
Tax recognised in the Income Statement

2014 2013

£'000 £000
United Kingdom corporation tax effective rate 18 2% {2013 15 5%) 5,410 3 360
Adjustment 1n respect of previous periods (721) (23)
Total current tax recognised tn Income Statement 4,689 3,337
Deferred taxation charge
- on defined benefit pensian obligations 285 533
- onshare-based payments (130) 524
- on accelerated capital allowances 293 {200)
- on amertisation of acquisition intangibles {2,127) {2,364)
- on shart-term temporary timing differences 2,285 178
- oncarperate tax losses {674) 2,655
- impact of change in statutory tax rates {179) 94
Total deferred taxation recognised in Income Statement (247) 1,420
Total tax expense recognised in Income Statement on continuing operations 4,442 4,757
Total tax credit recognised In Income Statement on discontinued operations —_ (3,307}
Total tax expense recognised In Income Statement 4,442 1,450
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the result for the year as follows

2014 2013

£'000 £ 000
Resuits for the year hefore tax 29,677 21,745
Result for the year multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom
for the periad of 21 50% (2013 23 25%) 6,381 5,068

Effect of
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes 473 687
- depraciation in excess of capital ailowances 302 71
- tax relief on exercise of share options {275) {1,127)
- statutory tax rate changes {179) 93
- small company tax rate (6) -
- tax logses ncluded within loss from discontinued operations —_ (3,307
- temnporary tming differences not previously recognised in deferred tax (773) —
— tax losses not previously recognised in deferrad tax (760) —
- adjustment in respect of prior parieds (721) (23)
4,442 1,450

Actual tax expense
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7. Tax expense continued
Tax recognised In the Income Statement continued
The following tax has been charged to other comprehensive income or equity during the year

2014 2013
£'000 £000
Deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive income
- an defined benefit pensian obligations (658) (461)
- on cash flow hedges (38) 269
~ impact of change (n statutory tax rates 3) (66)
Total deferrad taxation recognised in other comprehensive income (699) (258)
Deferred tax recognised directly In equity
Deferred taxation charge
- onshare-based payments {359) 425
- impact of change in statutory tax rates (59) 174
Total deferred taxation recognised in egurty (418) 599
Total tax
Total current tax 4,689 30
Total deferred tax (1,364) 1761

8 Discontinued operations

On 5 November 2013 the Group entered into a sale agreesment to dispose of Haydon Mechanical & Electrical Limited, which undertock
design and build M&E services The disposal was completed on 21 November 2013 The results of the operations, which have been
included in the cansolidated financial statements, are as follows

2014 2013

£000 £000

Sales revenue e 32 632

Costof sales —  {29,131)

Administrative expenses — (6,224)

Finance income, net, — 85

Loss for the year before tax on discontinued operations —_ (2,638)

Loss on disposal and other associated costs —  (18,830)

Tax on discontinued operations — 3 307

Tax on loss on disposal —_ —

Loss for the year after tax on discontinved operations — (18.181)
Operating costs include

2014 2013

£000 £000

— 176

Depreciation
Amortisation —_ 202
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment —
Hire of plant and machinery _ 17
Other operating lease rentals — 644
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

The loss on disposalin respect of discontinued activities 1s all atinbutable to the equety hotders of the parent

9. Dividends
The following dimdends were paid on ordinary shares in the year
2014 2013
£000 £ 000
Final 2013 dividend of 8 30p {2013 final 2012 dividend of 5 70p) per share 6,370 5817
Intenm 2014 dwidend of 2 85p (2013 intenim 2013 dividend of 2 50p) per share 2,882 2,499

9,252 8,116

The proposed final 2014 dividend of 715p per share has not been included within the consolidated financial statements as no obligation
existed at 31 Cecember 2014

10. Earnings per share
Basic (continuing

Bagic (continuing) Basic (discontinued) and discontinued)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
] p p P P p
Earnings per share 2503 17 50 —_ (18 71) 2503 (121)
Effect of amortisation of acquisition intangibles 12 20 1119 — — 12 20 1119
Effect of fuli tax adjustment (4 54) (2 91) - 174 (4 54} (117)
Effect of exceptional costs (including tax impact) - 526 —_ 14 89 -_— 2018
Normalised earnings/(ioss) per share 3269 3104 — (2 08) 3289 28 96
Diluted (continuing
Dhiluted {continuing) Diluted (discontinued) and discontnued)
2014 2013 2044 2013 2014 2013
P P » [ P p
Earnings per share 24 65 16 96 —_ (1813) 24 65 (117)
Effect of amortisatien of acquisition (intangibles 12 02 10 84 — — 12 02 10 B84
Effect of full tax adjustment (4 47) (2 82) —_ 168 (4 47) (114)
Effect of exceptional costs (including tax impact) — 510 — 14 43 — 19 53
Normalised earmings/{loss) per share 3220 3008 — (2 02) 3220 28 06

Anarmalised EPS 1s disclosed in order to show perfarmance undistorted by amortisation of intangibles The Group defines normalsed
earnings as excluding the amortisation of acquisttion intangibles, exceptional costs and adjusted to reflect a full tax charge The profit
attributable to shareholders before and after adjustments for both basic and diluted EPSis

Nermalised (continuing

Normalised {continuing) Naormalised (discontinued) and discontinued)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Profit/(loss) attributable to sharehalders 25,286 16,988 —  (18,1861) 25,286 (1,173)
- amortisation of acquisition intangibles 12,328 10,860 — — 12,328 10 860
- full tax adjustment (4,588) {(2,824) — 1 685 (4,588) (1 139}
- exceptional costs {including tax impact) — 5114 —_ 14,452 — 19,566
Normalised earnings/{loss) 33,026 30138 —_ (2,024) 33,026 28,114
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10. Earnings per share continued

The calculation of EPS 1s based on a weighted averaga of ordinary shares in issue during the year The diluted EPS i1s based on a weighted
average of ordinary shares calculated In accordance with IAS 33 'Earnings Per Share', which assumes that all dilutive options wili be
exercised The additionai normalised basic and diluted EPS use the same weighted average number of shares as the basicand diluted EPS

2014 2013
Millions Millions
Weighted average number of shares in1ssue 101 02 9709
- dilutive effect of share options 154 310
Weighted average number of shares for calculating diluted earnings per share 102 56 10019
11. Goodwill
Goodwill
ansingon Purchased
consabdation goodwill Total
£000 £000 £000
Gross carrying amount
At 1January 2013 137,963 406 138,369
Additions 19,578 — 19,576
At 1 January 2014 157 539 408 157,845
Additions 33,438 — 33 438
Revisions 620 — 620
At 31 December 2014 191,597 406 192,003
Accumulated iImpairment losses
At 1 January 2013, at 1 January 2014 and at 31 Dacember 2014 — — —
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 191,587 4068 192,003
At 31 December 2013 157,539 408 157 945

Goodwill on consolidation arises on the excess of cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired on purchase of acompany

Purchased goodwill arises on the excess of cost of acquisition aver the farr value of the net assets acquired on the purchase
of the trade and assets of a business by the Company

Additions to goodwill arising on consolidation are detailled within note 24

The revision to the goodwill additions in the prior year totalling £0 6m relates to labilities not accrued at the time of the acquisition

The revisions are not considered sufficiently matenal ta warrant the restatement of the prior year balances
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Financiat statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

11 Goodwill continued

Goodwill 1s nat amortised but 1s reviewed for impairment on an annual basss or more frequently if there are any indications that
goodwill may be impaired Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allccated to groups of CGUs according to the level at
which management monitors that goodwill Goodwill 1s carned at cost less accumulated impairment iosses

The carrying value of goodwilt is aliocated to the following CGUs

Goodwl!
ansingon  Purchased
cansolidatian geodwill Total
£000 £000 £ 000
Social Housing 93,585 406 93 991
Care 98,012 — 98,012
191,597 406 192,003

An asset s impaired if 1ts carrying value exceads the unit’s recoverable amount which s basad upon velve iInuse At31 December 2014
impairment revisws were parfaormed by comparning the carrying value of the CGU with the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated The value in use Is calculated based upon the cash flow projections of the latest one-year budget forecast extrapolated
for a further four years by a growth rate applicable to each unit and an appropriate terminal growth rate perpetuity

The rates used were as follows

Post tax Pre tax Growth Growth Growth Terminal

discaunt discount rates rates rates growth

rate rate {year 1)  (years 2-3)  (years 4-5) rate

Social Housing 92% 10 9% 5 0% 5 0% 50% 25%
Care 90% 107% 8 7% 87% 6 2% 25%

The estimated growth rates are based ¢n past experience and knowledge of the individual sector's markets and reprasent
management’s base level expectations for future growth

Social Housing

The contracts awarded within the Social Housing area are sigrificant in size and the contract terms are typicatly three to ten years
in duration The recard of Mears in retaining contracts on expiry is typically over 90% The impairment reviews have always takean
a particularly prudent stance and incorporated a terminal growth assumption of 2 5%, which, whilst marginally higher than the
UK tong-term growth rate of 2 26% 1s supported by historic organic growth

Budgeted operating profits during the budget period are estimated by reference to the average operating margins achieved in
the period immedately before the start of the budget period Thereis no inclusion for any anticipated effictency improvements

Tha Directors cansider that reasonably possible changes in these kay assumptions would not cause aunit’s carrying amount to oxceed
its recoverable amount
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11. Goadwill continued

Care
The care-at-home market will continue te present strong growth opportunitias The Directors believe that future growth s underpinned
by a number of factors including

* the number of people aged over 65, who make up the bulk of Care expenditure 1s forecast to grow, with the number of people over
the age of 65 forecast to make up 24% of the population 1n 2036 compared to 17 5% 1n 2012 Thisisarise of about 6 3m people

+ the NHS 15 tasked with investing more in Continuing Health Care (CHC) spend (n the communsty and with jaining up 1ts services with
Social Care The communtty health service market wasworth £1 1 bildlion tin 2010 and 1s expected to rise to £2 0 billion by 2015 This
represents a compound average growth rate of 12 7% There are an increasing number of areas with joint commsstoning between
the NHS and Sccial Care, with the newly established health and wellbeing boards being encouraged to continue this process of
integration against clearly agreed local priorities A£3 8 billion ‘Better Care Fund’ 1s being set aside from within NES budgets,
to specifically support integrated health and social care work, such as around hospital discharge work and palliative care,

= residentiat care remains a mare expensive solution and one that 1s generatly less preferred by service users Given the considerable
financial challenges facing the UK economy, care at home will benefit from this situation

» continved policy directives referencing the Dilnot Report, are suppaorting increasad spend on care services, the most recent announcement
being a £72,000 cap on the amount an individual will have to spend on funding their own care in the future This will enable the development
of mare cost effective Insurance products for those people wanting to protect themselves against paying for their own care in the future,

= thereisnising political concern about the current under funding of the sector, which management believes will lead to further
funding announcements in the future, and
« alittle over 10% of tha market continues to ba delivered by Local Authonity in-house services however, in parts of the Umted Kingdom,

notably Scotland, thisis as high as 50% Mears has been growing its presence within the areas which currently have high levels of
n-sourcing Given the lower costs within the private sector, further outsourcing is very Likely

The Directors also foresee sigmficant growth opportunities in the higher acuity space and have recently recruited around ten technical
lead specialists to pursue opportunities in this field The Directors expect to see higher acuity revenue growth of about 20% per year
in the Immeadtate future

The imparrment reviews have incorporated growth rates as detailed in the table on page 96

Budgeted operating profits during the budget period are estimated by reference to the average operating margins acheved in
tha period immediately before the start of the budget period There 1s no inctusian for any anticipated efficiency iImprovements

The Directors consider that the Cara value (n use 1s most sensitive to changes in the terminal growth rate The sensitivity of the caleulated
value in use to changes in explicrt growth rate, terminal growth rate and discount rate 1s shown in the table overleaf The rad values
indicate situations which would result in impairment
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Financtal statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

11. Goodwill continued
Care continued

The table below shows the sensitivity of the headroom (£°000) to simultaneous changes in the discount rate and the long-term growth rate

Discount rate

Long term growth rate 825% 8 50% 875% 300% 9 25% g 50% 9 75%

050% (1,424) {4 955) (8,270) {(11,389) (14,328) (17,102) (19,725
1 00% 4,003 69 (3809) (7,057) {10,294) (13,339) (16 208)
150% 10,235 5,811 1,694 (2,147) (5,739} (8,108) {12,265)
200% 17 463 12 436 7.784 3,464 {558) (4,308) {7.814)
250% 25,949 20,166 14,847 9,939 5,395 1,178 {2.748)
300% 36.051 29 301 23,139 17,492 12,299 7 605 3,089

350% 48,279 40,263 3301 26,419 20,402 14,888 9815

400% §3.385 53,660 44960 37,132 30050 23,612 17,738

4 50% 82,519 70,408 59,722 50,224 41,728 34,082 27,165

The tahle below shows sensitivity of the headraom (£'000) to simultaneous changes in the discount rate and EBITA margin

Discount rate

EBITA 825% 8 50% 875% 9 00% 9 25% 9 50% 975%
500% (6995) (11,073) (14,827) (18,296) (21509) (24,495) (27,278)
5 50% 1,241 (3 263) (7,408 (11,237) (14,783) {18.077) (21,145)
600% 8 477 4 546 10 {4178) (8,057 {11,869) (15,013
6 50% 17,713 12,356 7.428 2,880 (1,331 (5.241) (6,880)
7 00% 25,848 20,166 14,847 9,839 5,395 1,178 (2 748
7 50% 34,185 27.876 22,266 16,997 12,122 7,596 3,385
8 00% 42,421 35,785 29,684 24 056 18 848 14,014 9,517
8 50% 50,656 43,695 37103 31,115 25,574 20,433 15,660
9 00% 58 892 51,406 44,522 38,173 32,300 26,851 21,782

The table balow shows sensitivity of the headroom (£'000) to simuitaneous changes in the long-term growth rate and EBITA margin

Long-term growth rate

EBITA 1 00% 150% 2 00% 2 50% 3 00% 3 50% 4 00%
5 00% (29,661) (26,378) (22625) (18,296) {13,244) (7,274) (110)
5 60% (24,010) (20,3200 (16,103) (11,237) {5,560} 1,149 9,200
6 00% (18,359) (14262 (9,580) (4,178) 2,124 9,573 18,511
6 6560% (12,708) {8,205) (3.058) 2,880 9,808 17,996 27.821
7 00% (7,057) {2,147) 3,484 9,239 17,492 26,419 37,132
7 50% (1,405) 3.911 9,987 16,997 25,176 34,843 46 442
8 00% 4,246 9,969 16,509 24,056 32,861 43,266 55,752
850% 9,897 16 026 23,032 31,1156 40 b4b 51,689 65,063
8 00% 158,648 22,084 29,554 38.173 48 220 60,113 74,373
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12. Other intangible assets

Acquisihon intang:blas

Dthar intangibles

Total Tatal
Chient Order acquisition Development Intellectual other Total
relationships book intangibles expenditure property intangibles ntangbles

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Gross carrying amount
At 1January 2013 58,744 13,549 72,293 5,190 224 5414 77,707
Acquired on acquisition 2,552 4,551 7,103 — - — 7.103
Additions — — — 1,169 — 1169 1169
Disposal of subsidiary — — - (173) - (173) (173)
At 1January 2014 61,296 18,100 79,396 6,186 224 6,410 85,808
Acquired on acquisition 10,465 1,260 11,725 — — — 11,725
Additions - — - 1,484 - 1,484 1,484
Disposals — — — (315) — {315) {315}
At 31 December 2014 71,761 19,360 81,121 7,355 224 7,579 98,700
Accumulated amortisation
At 1January 2013 26,826 8,150 35,976 2,188 178 2,366 38,342
Amortisation charge for period 8 600 2,260 10,880 1,046 48 1,092 11,952
Disposal of subsidhary — — — (134) — (134) (134)
At 1 January 2014 35.426 11,410 45,836 3,100 224 3,324 50,160
Amortsation charge for penod 5,928 6,402 12,328 1,152 — 1,152 13,480
Disposals — — - {315) — {315) {315)
At 31 December 2014 41,352 17,812 58,164 3,937 224 4,161 63,325
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 30,409 1,548 31,957 3,418 —_ 3,418 35,375
At 31 December 2013 25,870 6690 32,560 3 086 — 3,086 35,646

Development expenditure relates to the development of the Group's Social Housing job management system and the Group'sCare
management system Development expenditure s ameortised over its useful economic life of § Oyears The weighted average
remaining economic life of the asset 1s 3 4 years (2013 3 B years)

1odelBalens

aouey . eaod e1el0d.o)

SIUBWISIEIS [RIDUBUIZ

Intellactual property 1s amortised over its useful economic life of 5 O years

Amortisation of development expenditure 1s included within other admimistrative expenses Amaortisation of acquisitton intangiblas
1s presented separately

Tha value placed an the order book is based upon the cash flow projections over the contracts in place when a business Is acquired
Due to uncertainties with trying to forecast revenues beyond the contract term, the Directors have taken a measure of conservatism
and value contracts over the contractual term only The value of the order book 1s amertised over 1is remainung life

The value placed on the customer relationships are based upon the non-contractual expected cashinflows These cash flow
projections assume a customer attrition rate of 5% based upon three-year historic trends

Additions to Intangible assets ansing on acquisition are detalled within note 24
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued

For the year ended 31 December 2014

13. Property, plant and equipment

Fixturas
Fraehold Leasehold Plantand fittinga and Motor
property Improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Total
£000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000

Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2013 — 9,478 5,062 39,008 1,223 55,761
Acquired on acquisition — 141 —_ 1,266 162 1,569
Additions 110 576 244 3,267 18 4,215
Dsposals — (159) (1,083) (11,902) (77)  (13,231)
Disposal of subsidiary — {423) {120) {1,920) — (2 463)
At 1January 2014 110 9,613 4,093 30,709 1,326 45,851
Acquired on acquisition 581 52 — 386 217 1238
Additions — 484 899 3,140 13 4,638
Misposals — (142) (1,703) (708) (195) (2,748)
At 31 December 2014 681 10,007 3,289 33,527 1,361 48,875
Depreciation
At 1January 2013 - 5,003 3,742 29,912 1,123 39,780
Acquired on acquisition — 99 — 997 103 1,199
Provided In the year - 1,209 508 3,156 B0 4,924
Eliminated on disposals — (116) (1,098) {11 744) (s8) (13 010)
Disposal of subsideary — (228) (101) {1.781) — (2,110)
At 1 January 2014 — 5967 30565 20,540 1,221 30,783
Acquired on acquisition — 45 — 282 163 490
Provided in the year — 17 366 3033 57 4,362
Eliminated on disposals — {143) {1,6038) (708) (186) (2,640)
At 31 December 2014 —_ 6,786 1,807 23,147 1,255 32,995
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 691 3,221 1,482 10,380 106 15,880
At 31 December 2013 110 3,646 1,038 10,1689 105 15,068
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14 Investments
Joint ventures

£000
At1January 2014 —
Acquired on acquisition 1,617
Share of rasults of equity accounted joint ventures 239
At 31 December 2014 1,856
The principal undertakings within the Group at 31 December 2014 are shown below
Proportion
held Country of registration Nature of business
Mears Limited 100% England and Wales Provision of maintenance services
Scion Technical Services Limited 100% England and Wales Provision of maintenance services
Scion Estates Limited 100% England and Wales Provision of grounds maintenance
Jackson Lloyd Limited 100% England and Wales Prowvision of maintenance services
Morrison Facilities Services Limited 100% Scotland Provision of maintenance services
Mears Scetland LLP 66 67% Scotland Provision of maintenance services
Manchester Working Limited 80% England and Wales Prowision of maintenance services
Mears Home Improvements Limited 100% England and Wales Prowvision of maintenance services
Omega Lettings Limited 100% England and Wales  Provision of housing management services
Plexus UK {First Project) Limited 100% England and Wales  Provision of housing management services
Mears Care Limited 100% England and Wales Provisicn of care
Mears Care (Northern Ireland) Limited 100% Northern lreland Prowisicn of care
Mears Care {Scotland) Limited 100% Scotland Provision of care
Independent Living Services (ILS) Limited 100% Scotland Provision of care
Nurseplus Limited 100% Scotland Provision of care
Terraquest Solutions Limited 100% England and Wales Provision of professional services
Mears Insurance Company Limited 99 99% Guernsey Provision of insurance services

All material subsidiary undertakings with the exception of Manchaster Werking Limited prepare acceounts to 31 December
Manchester Working Limited prepares accounts ta 31 March in line with the minonty shareholder
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued

For the year ended 31 December 2014

14. Investments continued

Afull ist of subsidiary undertakings is available from the Company Secretary upaon request

The table below ssts out selected financial information in respect of subsidianes that have non-controlling interests

that are matenal to the Group

2014 2013
£'000 £000
Share of revenue and profits
Revenue 86,541 73,607
Expenses and taxation (86,897) (74,753)
Loss for the year (356) (1 148)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income (5,181) 502
Total comprehensive expense (5,537) (644)
Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling interests (51 {231)
Total comprehensive expense allocated to non-controlling interests (1,777) {231)
Share of net assets
Non-current assets 400 14,846
Current assets 18,890 16,612
Current labilities (25,182) (31,713}
Total assets lass total liabilities (5,892) {355)
Equity shareholders funds (3,545) 215
Non-controlling interests (2,347) (570)
Total equity {5,892) (355)

The financial and operating activities of the Group’s Jaint ventures are jointly controlled by the participating shareholders The participating
shareholders have rights to the net assets of the joint ventures through their equity shareholdings The Group held 1nvestments in the

following joint ventures at 31 December 2014

Country of registration

Nature of business

Propartion

held

Mears 24/7 LLP 50%
Asert LLP 50%
Tando Property Services Limited 50%
O&T Revelopments Limited 50%

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales

Provision of call centre

servicas

Provision of customer
service training

Provision of housing
management services

Provision of housing
management services
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14. Investments continued

2014 2073
£'000 £000
Share of revenue and profits
Revenue 2,930 —_
Expenses and taxation (2,691) —
Profit for the year 239 —
Share of net assets
Nen-current assets 30 —
Current assets 2,613 —
Current habitities (787) —_
1,856 —

The following UK subsigiartes will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within Section 479A of the Companies Act 2008 ‘/
for the year ending 31 December 2074 (31 March 2015 in the case of Zenon Property Services Limited)

Registration numbar

Heather Housing Limited

Let te Birmingham Limited
Scion Group Limited

Scian Technical Servicas Limited
Scion Estates Limited

Zenon Property Services Limited

07713632
08757503
03905442
(3671450
03720803
07448134

15. Inventories

2014 2013
£'000 £000

Materials and consumables
Work In progress

5,065 3,773
3,403 6 679

8,468 10 452

The Group consumed inventories totalling £613 7m duning the year (2013 £8411m) No items are being carried at fair value less costs

to sell (2013 Eml}

odesaifeleng
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Finangoial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued

For the year ended 31 December 2014

16. Trade and other receivables

2014 2013
£000 £000

Current assets
- trade receivables 44,023 44,322
— amounts recovarable on non-construction contracts 90,154 95 046
- prepayments and accrued income 8,439 11,914
~ gurrent tax assets —_— 411
Total trade and other receivables 142,616 151693

Trads recevables are normally due within 30 to B0 days and do not bear any effective Iinterest rate All trade recevables and accrued
Income are subject to credit risk exposure Social Housing customers are typically Lecat Authorities and Housing Assoctations where
credit nisk 1s minimal Care customers are typically County Couneils where credit risk s mimimat

The ageing analysis of trade receivables 1s as follows

2014 2013

£'000 £000

Nesther impaired nor past due 38,852 39,501

Less than three months past due but notimpaired 2,844 2,906

Mare than three months past due but notimpaired 2,327 1,815

Total trade and other receivables 44,023 44,322
17 Trade and other payables

2014 2043

£'000 £'000

Trade payables 103,943 100692

Accruals and deferred income 43,494 69,708

Soc:al secunity and other taxes 22,291 21,804

Payments on account for nan-construction centract work 5,435 923

Finance lease liabilities 514 —

Other creditors 6,421 3 848

182,098 196,975

The fair value of trade payables has not been disclosed as, dueto their short duration, management considers the carrying amounts

recognised in the Balance Sheettobea reasonable approximation of their fair value

Included in other creditors i1s £0 3m {2013 £0 6m) relating to contingent consideration on acquisitions
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18. Financing habilities

2014 2013

£000 £000
Current liabilities
—Interest rate swaps 580 478
Non-current Liabilities
- Iinterast rate swaps 788 701
Total financing Liabilities 1,368 1,176
19 Long-term other Liabilities

2014 2013

£000 £000
Cther creditors 25,956 1,278

Included n other creditors 15 £20 7m (2013 £1 3m) relating to contingent consideration on acquisibons

20. Financial iInstruments

The Group uses a imited number of financial instruments comprnsing cash and Liquid resources, borrowings, Interest rate swaps and
various 1tems such as trade recevablas and trade payables that anse directly from its operations The main purpose of these financial
instruments 15 to finance the Group's operations Thea Graup seeks to finance 1ts operations through a combination of retained earnings
and borrowings and investing surplus cash on deposit The Group uses financal Instruments to manage the interest rate risks arising
from Its operations and sources of finance but has no interests In the trade of financial instruments

Categones of financial instruments

2014 2013
£'000 £000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Trade receivables 44,023 44 322
Amounts recoverzble on contracts 90,154 95 046
Cash at bank and in hand 66,634 79552
200,811 218,920
Financial habitities
Fair value (fevel 2)
Interest rate swaps - effective —_ (1.179)
Interest rate swaps - neffective {1,368) —
Fair value (level 3)
Deferred and contingent consideration in respect of acquisitions (21,045) {1836)
Amortised cost
Bank borrowings and overdrafts (62,800) (80,000)
Trade payables (103,943) (100692)
Accruals and deferred iIncome (43,494) (69,708)
Other creditors {11,332) (3 848)
(243,982) (257,263)
{43,171) (38 343)
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

20 Financtal instruments continued

Categories of financlal instruments continued

The IFRS 7 hierarchy level categonisation relates to the extent the fair value can be determined by reference to comparable market
values The classifications range from level 1, where instruments are quoted on an active market, through to level 3, where the
assumptions used to arrive at fair value do not have comparable market data

The fair values of interest rate swaps have been calcutated by a third party expert discounting estimated future cash flows on the basis
of market expectations of future interest rates {level 2)

The fair values of cantingent consideration has been calculated by the Directors by reference to expected future income and
expenditure in respect of the acquired businesses

There have been nc transfers betwesn levels during the year

Fair value infermation
The fair value of the Group's financial assets and Liabilties 1s as disclased above and approximates to the book value

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose It to a variety of financiel nisks market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit nisk,
and Lquidity risk The matn risks faced by the Group relate to the availability of funds to meet business needs and the risk af credit
default by customers The Group’s averall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to mimimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance

Risk management is carried out under policies and guidelines approved by the Board of Directors

Borrowing facilities

Tha Group's borrowing facilities are drawn on as required to manage its cash needs Banking facilities are reviewed regularly
and extended and replaced in advance of their expiry

The Group had total borrowing facilities of £120 Om with Barclays Bank PLC and HSBC plc, of which £62 5m was utilisad
at 31 December 2014

The facilities comprise a committed five-year £110 Om revolving credit facility and an unsecured overdraft faciity of £10 Om
The undrawn amounts at 31 December 2014 were a £47 5m revolving credit facility and an overdraft facitity of £10 Om

Interest rate risk management

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retaned profits and bank barrowings fram major banking institutions at floating
rates of Interest based on LIBOR The Group's exposure to intarest rate fluctuations on borrowings ts managed through the use of interest
rate swaps, hence the fixed rate borrowings relate to floating rate loans where the interest rate has been fixed by a hedging arrangement
The fair value of Interest rate exposure on financial kabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2014 was

Interest rate
Fixed Floating Zaro Total
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000
Financial liabllities — 2014 57,500 5,300 21,045 83,845
Financial hatulities - 2013 55,000 25,000 1,836 81,836

The Group's policy Is to accept a degree of interest rate risk, provided the effects of the various potential changes in rates remain within
certain preéscribed parameters

Accordingly, the Group has hedged the first £567 5m of the £120m revolving credit facility by entering into interest rate swap arrangements
with Barclays Bank PLC and HSBC ple This consisis of one £27 5m swap contract expining in August 2016 and one £30 Om swap contract
expiring tn August 2018, both with quarterly maturity, matching the underlying facility
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20, Financial instruments continued
Interest rate nsk management continued
The maturity of the interest rate swap contracts (s as follows

2014 2013
Average Average
Nominal applicable Nominal applicable
amoynt interest amaunt interest
hedged rates hedged rates
£'000 % £000 %

Within one year — —_

One to two years — —
Two 1o five years 57,500 188% 55,000 1 95%

More than five years - —

Effective interest rates
Interest rate swaps with fair vatus Liabilities of £1 4m (2013 £1 2m) and average remaining lives of two years and nine months have been
accounted for in financing liabilibes

The Group's overall average cost of debt, including effective and ineffective interest rate swaps 15 3 2% as at 31 December 2014
(2013 31%) Excluding these swaps the average 1s 2 2% (2013 2 2%)

Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve comprises all gains and losses ansing from the valuation of interest swap coniracts which are effective hedges
and mature after the year end These are valued on a mark-to-market basis are accounted for through the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and are recycled through the Consolidated income Statement when tha hadged item affects the Consolidated Income Statement

During theyear, the Group restructured one of 1ts interest rate swaps Nocash consideration was paid or received on settling the old
Interest rate swap or transacting the new imterest rate swap As a result of the restructure the interest rate swaps become ineffective
for the purposes of IAS 39, though the Group still considered the swaps to be economically effective Amounts thathad been recognised
in other comprehensive income are being racycled on a straight-line basis from equity to the Consclidated Income Statement over the
period In which the hedged forecast cash flows affect profitor loss

The interest rate swap contracts have quarterly maturity and expure in August 2016 and August 2018

Movements during the year were

£'000
At 1 January 2013 (1,913)
Amounts transferred to the Consolidated Income Statement 791
Revaluations during the year 593
Deferred tax movement (319)
At 1January 2014 (848)
Amounts transferred to the Consolidated Income Statement 722
Revaluations durning the year (841)
Deferred tax movement 5
At 31 December 2014 (962)

At 31 December 2014 the Group had rminimal exposure to movemant in interast rates as the remaining interest rate risk was offset
by the Group's cash and shart-term deposits

If the interest rates had been 0 5% higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before taxanion
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and reserves would decrease or Increase, respectively, by £0 1m

www rmearggroup €o uk Annuairepart and accounts 2014 Mears Graup PLC 107

oder 28aieng

aouelIgaol s1pl0dio]

slualualels |einuauy

UOIBULIOMNI JaployaIBys




Financiat statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued

For the year ended 31 December 2014

20 Financial instruments continued
Liquidity risk management

The Group seeks to manage bquidity nsk by ensuring sufficient hiquidity 1s available to meet foreseeabla needs and to invest cash

assets safely and profitably

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s hguidity reserve (comprnising undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and cash
equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flaws This 1s generally carnied out at a local level in the operating companies of the Group
In accordance with practice and imits set by the Group These imits vary by location and take into account the Liguidity and nature

of the market 1n which the entity operates

The quantum of committed borrowing facilities of the Group s regularly reviewed and 1s designed to excaed forecasted peak gross debt
levels For short-term working capital purpoges, the Group utilises bank overdrafts as raquired These facilities are regularly reviewed

and are renegotiated ahead of their expiry date

The table below shows the maturity profile of the Group's financial biabilities

Within 1-2 2-5 Over b

1 year years years years Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2014
Non-derivative financial habilities
Bank horrowings 5,300 _ 57,500 —_ 62,800
Trade and other payables 153,538 5,231 — — 158,769
Deferred and contingent consideration in respect of acquisitions 320 20,725 —_ —_ 21,045
Denvative financial labilihes
Interest rate swaps - ineffactive 580 428 360 _ 1,368
2013
Non-derivative financial Llabiities
Bank borrowings 25,000 — 55,000 — 80 000
Trade and other payables 173 690 — — — 173,690
Deferred and contingant consideration (n respact of acguisitions 558 1,278 — — 1,836
Denvative financial iabilities
Interest rate swaps - effective 478 401 300 — 1,179

The Group has disclosed core bank borrowings of £67 5m as duein two to five years Whilst the amounts borrowed could be repad
each quartar, the Group's Intention 1s to align core bank borrowings with its interest rate swaps
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20 Financial instruments continued

Credit risk management

The Group's credit risk 1s primarily attributable to its trade receivables, amounts recaverable on contracts and work 1N progress

The amounts presented in the Balance Sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group’s management
based on prior experience and the current econcmic environment

Trade receivables are normally due within 30 to 60 days Trade and other receivables included in the Balance Sheet are stated net of a bad
debt prowision which has been estimated by managemant following a review of individual recevable accounts There s no Group-wide rate
of pravision and provision made for debts that are overdue Is based on prior default experience and known factors at the balance sheet date
Recevables are written off against the bad debt pravision when management considers that the debt s no longer recoverable

Social Housing customers are typically Local Autharities and Housing Associations Care customers are typicatly County Councils
The nature of both of these custamers means that credit risk 1s minimal Other trade receivables contain na specific cancentration
of credit risk as the amounts recognised represent a large number of recervables from various customers

The Group continually monitors the position of major customers and incorperates this information into 1ts credit nsk controls
External credit ratings are obtained where appropriate

Detalls of the ageing of trade receivables are shown in note 16

Deferred and contingent consideration
The table below shows the movements in deferred and contingent consideration

Total

£000

At 1January 2013 1,501
Increase due to new acquisitions in the year 500
Paid in respect of acquisitions (204)
Unwinding of discounting 39
At 1January 2014 1,838
Increase due to new acquisitions in theyear 20000
Paid in respect of acquisitions (387)
Released on re-assessment (424)
Unwinding of discounting 20
At 21 December 2014 21,045

Contingent consideration represents an estimate of future consideration likely to be payable In respect of acquistions Contingent
considaration 15 discounted for the likelihood of payment and for the time value of meney Contingent consideration becomes payable
based upon the profitability of acquired businesses or, In the case of ane specific acquisition, the utiisation of certain timing
differences in respect of corporation tax The farr value of contingent cansideration 1s estimated by forecasting future profits and
utilising the forecast to determine the likely contingent consideration payable

Information as to the likely iming of payments in respect of these provisions financial babilities ts provided earlier within this note
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

20. Financial instruments continued
Capital management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are

« tosafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that itcen cantinue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders,
« toprovide an adeqguate return to shareholders by prnicing products and services commeansurately with the level of nsk, and
= tomaintamn an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
The Group sets the amount of capital in propartion to nisk The Group manages the capital siructure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes 1n economic conditians and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets in order to maintain or adjust the capital

structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return caprital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt as disclosed below and equity as disclosed in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

2014 2013
£'000 £ 000

Cash and cash equivalents 1s comprised as follows
- cash at bank and Iin hand 66,634 79,652
- bank horrowings and overdrafts (62,800) (80,000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,834 (448)
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21. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax s calculated on temporary differences under the liability method

Deferred tax asset
The following deferred tax assets were recognised by the Group as at 31 December 2014
Short-term
Pension Share basad Cash flow Tax temparary
schema paymants hedges lossas  differences Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2013 1,321 2,801 571 7.134 3,601 15,428
Acquired on acquisition — — — — 209 209
Debit te Consolidated Income Statement {188) {584) — (3,276) (241) {4 299)
Debit to Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity _— (699) —_ — — {599)
Credit/(debit) to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 150 — (319) — — (189)
At 1 January 2014 1,283 1.608 252 3858 3 569 10,570
Acquired on asquisition — — — — (4) {4)
(Cradit)/debit to Consolidated Income Statement (252) 121 - 500 (2.593) {2,224)
Credit to Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity — (418} — — — (418)
Credit to Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 644 — 5 - — 649
At 31 December 2014 1,675 1,311 257 4,358 972 8,573

In accardance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’ the Group has recognised an expensa for the consumption of amployee services
received as consideration for share options granted A tax deduction will not arise until the eptrons are axercised The tax deduction
in future periods 1s dependent upon the Cormpany’s share price at the date of exercise The estimated future tax deduction 18 based

on the options’ Intringic value at the balance sheei date

The cumulative amount credited to the Consolidated Income Statement 1s hmited to the tax effect ofthe associated cumulative
share-based payment expense The excess has been credited directly to equity This 1s prasented inthe Consolidated Statement

of Camprehensive Income

In addrtion to those recogmsed above, unused tax losses totalling £28 9m (2013 £25 5m) have not been recognised as the Directors

da not consider that 1t is probable that they will be recovered
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Financtal statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

21 Deferred taxation continued
The following deferred tax iabilitres were recognised by the Group as at 31 December 2014

Deferred tax liabilities
Pension  Acquisition

schema  Intangibles Total

£000 £000 £000

At 1January 2013 3,225 8,263 11,488
Acquired on acquisition — 1,682 1,682
Charge/(credit) to Consolidated Income Statement 295 {3.174) (2 879)
Credit to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (427) —_— {427)
At 1 January 2014 3,093 6,671 9,764
Acquired on acquisttion — 2173 2,173
Credit to Consohidated Income Statement 7N (2,452) (2,469)
Credit to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (50) — (50)
At 31 December 2014 3,026 6,392 9,418

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are capitalised at fair value at the date of the acquisition and amortised
aver their useful economic lives The UK tax regime calculates tax using the individual financial statements of the members of the
Group and not the consolidated accounts Hence, the tax base of acquisition intangible assets 1s £nil The estimated tax effact of this
£nil tax base 1s accounted for as a deferred tax lability which 1s released over the period of amorusation of the associated acquisition
intangible asset

22.Share capital and reserves
Classes of reserves
Snare capital represents the nominal value of shares that have besn issued

Share premium represents the difference between tha nominal value of shares 1ssued and the total censideration received

Share-based payment reserve rapresents employee ramuneration which is credited to the share-based payment raserve until
the retated share options are exercised Upon exercise the share-based payment reserve s transferred to retained earnings

The cash flow hedging reserve comprises all gains and losses anising from the valuation of interest swap contracts which are effective
hedges and mature after the year end These are valued on a mark-to-market basis, are accounted for through the Statemant of
Comprehensive Income and are recycled through the Consotidated Income Statement when the hedged item affects the Consolidated
Income Statement

The merger reserve relates to the difference between the nominal vatue and total consideration in respect of acquisitions, where the
Company was entitled to the merger relief offered by the Compantes Act
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22 Share capital and reserves continued

Share capital
2014 2013
£'000 £000
Allotted, called up and fulty paid
At 1 January 100,661,649 (2013 91,859,911} ordinary shares of 1p each 1,007 919
issue of nit (2013 6,368 069) shares as a share placament _ B4
lssue of 472,493 (2013 2,433,670} shares on exercise of share options 4 24
At 31 December 101,134,142 (2013 100,661,649) ordinary shares of 1p each 1,011 1,007

During theyear 472,493 (2013 2,433,670) ordinary 1p shares were 1ssued In respect of share options exercised The difference between

the nominal value of £0 004m and the totat consideration of £0 6m has been credited to the share premium account

23. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
The following non-eperating cash flow adjustments have been made to the result for the year before tax

2014 2013
£'000 £000

Depraciation 4,362 4,748
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 3 215
Amortisation 13,480 11,804
Share-based payments 670 665
|AS 19 pension movement (1,425) {2,538)
Finance income an (2)
Finance cost 3,178 3,566
Total 20,191 18,558

24, Acquisitions

On 2 May 2014 the Group acquired the trade and assets of Careline CC for total consideration of £0 4m which was satisfied in cash

On 16 May 2014 the Group acquired the entire share capital of InSitu Care Limited for total consideration of £0 3m which was satisfied
incash On 7 July 2014 the Group acquired the trade and assets of AginCare for total consideration of £0 2m which was satisfied in cash
These three acquisitions were completed to grow the Group's workjorce within Wiltshire On 20 August 2014 the Group acquired the entire
1ssusd share capital of Heatherpark Community Services Limited and Coulter Estates Limited for a total consideration of £1 8mwhech
was satisfied 1n cash This acquisition was completed to expand the Group's Care offering within Scotland The effect of thesa four

acquisiticns on the Group's assets 1s detailed overleaf on a combined basis
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

24. Acquisitions continued

On 15 October 2014 the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Omega Group for aninitial consideration of £21 8m and

a maximum contingent constderatron of £20 0m The contingent consideration ts dependent on future profitability and 1s payable over
apenod of up to three years The Directors’ best estimate of contingent consideration payable 1s the full £20 Om The acquisition of Omega
proviges a logical extension of the Group's current Housing offering, it willenhance the Group’s ability to work with housing providers
to improve the delivery of housing and property management The effect of this acquisition on the Group's assets 1s detailed below

Book and provisional fair valug

Omega

Group Qther Tatal

£ 000 £000 £000
Assets
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment 706 40 746
Share of net assets of joint ventura 1,617 —_ 1.617
Current
Inventones 211 —_ 211
Trade recevables 2,855 282 3,137
Other receivables 134 31 165
Current tax asset 137 — 137
Cash at bank and in hand 2,382 37 2 419
Total assets 8,042 390 8,432
Liahllities
Current
Trade and other payables 5,738 1,018 8,754
Current tax labilities —_ 154 154
Deferred tax Liabilities — 4 4
Total liabitsties 5,736 1.176 6,812
Net assets/(habilities) acquired 2,308 {786) 1,620
Intangibles caprtalised 8,228 3 487 11,725
Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of intangibles capitatised (1,645) (527) (2,172)
Net assets acquired 8,889 2,184 11,073
Goodwill capitalised 3291 527 33,438

41,800 2,711 44 511

Satisfied by
- cash 21,800 2,711 24,511
- contingent constderation 20 000 — 20,000

41,800 271 44,511
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24, Acquisitions continued
The Omega Group intangible asset is recognised and valued at £8 2m This represents the expected value 1o be derved from the acquired

uodaloidelensg

customer relatianships The value placed on these customer relationships 1s based on the expected cash inflows over the estimated E’
remaining life or each contract The cash flows are discounted using a rate of 13 5% which the Directors consider 1s commensurate withthe E]
nsks associated with capturing returns from the customer relationships The estimated life for customer relationships is twelve years Z
qm
Q
The Directors consider that the value assigned to goodwill represents the benefits io the Group of Improvements n the delivery of housing 3
and praperty management and the benefits from integration of tha business models E
The intangible asset in respect of other acquisitions 1s recognised and valued at £3 5m This represents the expected value to be derived
from the acquired customer related contracts
The amounts recevable detailed above are not materially diffarent from the gross contractual amounts recervable The effect of these
acquisitions on the Group’s assets and labilities 1s disclosed as provisional due tothe proximity of the acquisitions to the balance sheet date
In the period ended 31 December 2014, the sther acquisiions contributed revenue of £11m and a £0 2m operating prefit before -
amortisation of acquisition intangibles 3
3
For the year ended 31 December 2014, had the acquisitions taken place on 1 January 2014, the combinad Group full-year revenus 2
for the year 15 estimated at £855 6m and the combined Group profit for the year bafore taxation s estimated at £31 Sm B
3
Analysis of net outflow in respact of the purchase of the subsidiary undertakings 3
Total L
£000
Cash consideration (24,511)
Cash at bank and tn hand acquired 2,419
Cash payments in respect of prior year acquisitions {129)
22221 w
a
4
25. Pensions 2
Defined contribution schemes s
The Group operates a defined contribution Group persanal pension scheme for the benefit of certain employees The Group contributes g
to persanal pension schemes of certain Directors and senior employees The Group operates a stakeholder pension plan availabte &
to alt employees During the year the Group contributed £4 0m {2013 £3 1m) to thesa schemes g

IAS 19 ‘Employee Benaefits’
The Group contributes to 30 (2013 32) principal defined benefit schemes on behalf of a number of emptoyees which require
contnbutions to ba made to separately administered funds

These pension schemes are operated on behalf of Mears Limrted, Mears Care Limsted, Morrison Facilities Services Limited and their
subsidiary undertakings The assets of the schemes are administered by trustees in funds independent from the assets of the Group

In certain cases. the Group will participate under Admitted Boedy status in the Local Government pension scheme The Group will contribute
for a fimite period up until the end of the particular contract The Group is required to pay regular contributions as detailed in the scheme's
schedule of contributions In some cases these contributions are capped and any excess can be recoverad from the body from which the
amployees crginally transferred Where the Group has a cantractual right to recover the costs of making good any deficit in the scheme
from the Group's client, the fair value of that asset has been recognised within the Group's share of the scheme assets and disclosed on
page 116 Certain judgements around the value of this asset have bean made and are discussed in the judgements and estimates disclosure
within the accounting policies

The disclosures 1n respect of the two (2013 two) Group defined benefit schemes and the 28 (2013 30) other defined benefit schemes
in this note have been aggregated

Costs and liabitities of the schemes are based on actuarial valuations The latest full actuanal valuations for the schemes ware
updated to 31 December 2014 by quatified independent actuaries using the projected unit method
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued

For the year ended 31 December 2014

25. Pensions continued
IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ continued
The principal actuanal assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows

2014 2013

Rate of increase of salaries - first year 100% 100%
Rate of increase of salanes - second year 2 20% 1 00%
Rate of increase of salaries - long term 325% 335%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment — based on CPlwith acap of 5% 2 35% 2 45%
Rate of Increase for pensions In payment - based on RPI with a cap of 5% 3 15% 325%
Rate of ingrease for pensions in payment - based on CPl with a cap of 3% 2 05% 210%
Rate of Increase for pensions tn payment — based on RP! with a cap of 3% 2 50% 2 55%
Discount rate 4 00% 4 60%
Retall Prices inftation 3 25% 3 35%
Consumer Prices inflation 2 35% 2 45%
Life expectancy for a 65 year otd male 22 2years 217 years
Life expectancy for a 65 year old famale 24 Syears 24 1years

The amounts recogmised n the Consolidated Balance Sheet and major categories of plan assets are
2014 2013
Group Other Group {Other

schames schames Total schemes schemes Total

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E000

Equities - quoted 40,426 179,433 219,859 50,449 173,857 224,306
Equities - unquoted —_ 28,696 28,696 — 27,804 27.804
Bonds - quoted 60,961 66,875 127,836 44,800 63,449 108,249
Bonds - unguoted _ 5,046 5,046 — 4787 4,787
Guarantee —_ 17,740 17,740 — 785 785
Praoperty - quoted —_ 3,622 3,522 — 3,252 3,282
Property - unquoted 408 17,570 17,978 347 16,226 16,573
Cash 14,023 28,152 42,175 3,314 34,563 37.877
Group's estimated asset share 115,818 347,034 462,852 98910 324723 423633
Present value of funded scheme liabilities {106,710) (331,666) (438,376) (88,195) (295641) {383,836)
Funded status 9,108 15,368 24,476 10,715 29,082 38,797
Scheme surpluses nat recogmsed as assats — (17,717 (17,717) — (31173 (31.173)
Pension asset/(lability) 9,108 (2,349) 6,759 10715 (2,091) 8,624
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25. Pensions continued
1AS 19 'Employee Benefits' continued
The amounts recognised in the Income Statement are as follows

2014 2013
Group Othar Group Gthar
schemes schemas Total schames schemes Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Current service cost 2,009 6,785 8,794 2,021 5,860 7.881
Past servica cost _ 101 101 — 393 393
Administration costs 224 109 333 568 1580 718
Curtailment _ — — — 15 18
Total cperating charge 2,233 6,995 9,228 2,589 6418 9,007
Net Iinterest {561) {1,249) (1,810) (565) (1,15%) (1,718)
Total charged to the result for year 1,672 5,746 7,418 2.024 5,267 7.291
Cumulative actuarial gains and losses recognised in equity are as foliows

2014 2013
Group Qther Group Other
schemes schemes Total schames schemas Tetal

£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
On TUPE transfer of amployees -—_ 121 129 — (136) (138)
Return on plan assets below that recorded in net interest 10,624 22,125 32,749 3,796 25 804 29,600
Actuanal gain/(toss) arsing from changes in demographic assumptions —_— 2,283 2,283 1 040 (611} 429
Actuarial loss anising from changes in financial assumptions (14,832) (47,805) {62,637) (6,879) (23,770) (30649)
Actuarial gan anising from liatility experience 910 9,828 10,738 932 518 1,450
Effacts of bimitation of recognisable surplus —_ 13,456 13,456 — (2,890} {2.880)
Total gains and losses recogmsed in equity {3,298) 8 (3,290) {1,111) (1,085} {2,196)
At 1Jdanuary (2,138) (7,541) (9,679) {1,027) (6,456) (7,483)
Total at 31 Decamber (5,436) (7,533) (12,969) (2,138) (7.541) (9,679)
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued

FFor the year ended 31 December 2014

25. Pensions continued
1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' continued

Changes in the present value of the defingd benefit obugations are as follows

2014 2013
Group Other Group Other
schemes schemeas Total schemes schemes Total

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £600
Present value of obligations at 1 January 88,195 295641 383,826 79,336 260868 340,204
Current service cost 2,009 6,785 8,794 2,021 5,860 7.881
Past service cost — 101 101 — 303 393
Scheme administration costs —_ 46 46 — 71 71
Interest en obligations 4,028 13,408 17,436 3,682 12 096 15,778
Plan participants’ contributions 453 2,134 2,587 524 2,188 2713
Benefits paid (1,897) (6,061) (7,858) (2,275) (6,069) (8,344)
Contract transfer — (16,082} (16,082) — {3.645) {3,645)
Curtatlments — — — — 15 15
Actuanal {gaim)/loss ansing from changes in demographic assumptions —_ (2,283) (2,283) (1 040} 611 (429)
Actuarial loss ansing from changes in financial assumpgtions 14,832 47,805 62,637 6,879 23,770 30,649
Actuarial gain ansing from liability experience (910) {¢,828) (10,738) (932) (518) {1,450
Present value of obligations at 31 December 106,710 331,666 438,376 88,195 295641 383,836
Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows

2014 2013
Group Other Group Other
schemes schemes Total schemas schemes Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value of plan agsets at 1 January 98,910 324,723 423,633 89,737 287,032 376,769
Expected return on plan assets 4,589 14,657 18,246 4,247 13 247 17,494
Employers’ contributions 3,363 5,480 8,843 3 449 6,380 g 829
Plan participants contributions 453 2,134 2,587 524 2,189 2,713
Benefits paid (1,897) (6,061) (7,958) {2,275) {6,069) (8,344)
Scheme admintstration costs (224) (63) (287) (568) (79) (847)
Contract transfer —  (15,861) {15,961) — (3781) (3,781)
Return on plan assets above that recorded in netinterest 10,624 22,125 32,749 3,798 25,804 29 600
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 115,818 347,034 462,852 98,910 324,723 423633
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25. Pensions continued
IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' continued
History of experience gains and losses are as follows

Group schemes

2014 2013 2012 2011
£'000 £000 £000 £000

2010
£000

Fair value of scheme assets
Net present value of defined benefit obligations

115,818 98,910 89,737 8 305 7 694

(106,710) (88,185) (79,336) (13.097) (13

112)

Net surplus/(deficit)

9,108 10,716 10,401 (4,792 (5,418)

Expertence adjustments arising on scheme assets
Amouni

Percentage of scheme assets

Experience adjustments arising on scheme liabilities

10,624 3 796 685 (711)

(20)

92% 38% 08% (8 6%) {0 3%)

Amount (910} {932) — (21) (21}

Percentage of scheme Liabilities (0 9%) {1 1%) — {0 2%) {0 2%)
Other schemes

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fair value of scheme assets
Net present value of defined benefit obligations

347,034 324,723 286,328 74,310 75,985

(331,666) (295841) (260,689) (68,828) (77

,725)

Net surplus/(deficit)
Asset value not recognised as surplus

15,368 29 082 25 639 5 482 (1
{17,717 (31,172) (27.758) (6 530}

,130)
(545)

MNet deficit

Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets
Amount

Percentage of schema assets

Experience adjustments arising on scheme liabilities
Amount

Percentage of scheme Labilities

(2,349) (2,091) {2,119) (1,048} (2

,275)

22,125 25,805 3,991 (11,769) 352%
6 4% 7 9% 14% {15 8%) 4 6%

(9,828) (518} 143 8,621

397

(3 0%) {0 2%) 01% 12 4% 05%

Funding arrangements are agreed for each of the Group's defined benefit pension schemas with their respective trustees
The employers’ contributions expected to be paid during the financial year ending 31 December 2015 amount to £8 3m

Each of the schemes manage risks through avanaty of methods and straiegies to imit downside in falls in equity markets movement

innflation and movements in interest rates
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Group continued
For the year ended 37 December 2014

25 Pensions continued

I1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ continued v

The Group’s defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in certain key assumptions The sensitivity analysis below shows how
a reasonably possible increase or decrease in a particular assumption, in 1solatron, results in an increase or decrease 1n the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 2014

DecrsasabyO 1% Increase by 0 1%

£'000 £000

Rate of inflation (1,500) 1,080
Rate of iIncrease n sataries {495) 500
Discount rate 2,778 (2,649)
Life gxpectancy (6,245) 4,362

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit cbligation as it 1s unlikely that changes
in assumptions would cccur in 1satation of each other [n presenting this sensitivity analysis, the value of the defined benefit obligation
has been calculated on the same basis that applied in catcutating the defined benefit obligation recagrised at the balance sheet date

26 Operating lease commitments
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals payabte were as follows

Land and buildings Other
2014 2013 2014 2013
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Payable
Within one year 2,554 2512 13,447 15,010
Between two and five years 5,403 5,398 11,875 15,768
After more than five years 2,365 1,964 — —

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties, the hire of vehicles and the hire
of other equipment These leases have durations ranging from three to 16 years No arrangements have been entered intoin respect
of contingent rental payments

27 Capital commitments
The Group had no capital commitments at 31 December 2014 or at 31 December 2013

28, Contingent habilities
The Group has guaranteed that it will complete certain contracts that it has commenced At 31 December 2014 these guarantees
amounted to £26 3m (2013 £20 4m)

The Group had no other contingent liabiliies at 31 December 2014 ar at 31 December 2013
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29. Related party transactions
Identity of related pariies
The Group has a related party relationship with its pension schemes 1ts subsidiartes and with 1ts Directors

Pensian schemes
Details of contributions to pensien schemes are set cut in note 25 to the financial statements

Subsidianes

The Group has a ceniral treasury arrangement in which ail subsidiaries participate The Directors do not consider it meaningful to setout
details of transfers made in respect of this treasury arrangement between companies, nor do they consider it meaningful to set out details

of Interest or dividend payments made within the Group

Transactions with key management personnel
The Group has rdentified key management personnel as the Directors of Mears Group PLC

Key management personnel held the following percentage of vating shares in Mears Group PLC

2014 2013

% %

Directors 04 04
Key management personnel's compensation Is as follows

2014 203

£'000 £000

Salarres including social security costs 1,561 2,966

Contributions to defined centribution pension schemes 185 185

Share-based payments 100 50

1,846 3,201

Further details of Directors’ remuneration are disclosed within the Remuneration Repert

Transachons with other related parties

During the year the Group purchased customer care related services from Asert LLP, a company inwhich Mears Group PLC 15 a 50%

partner totalling £01m {2013 £01m) The Group also recharged costs totalling £01r to Asert LLP at cost At 31 December 2014 the

Group was owed £0 3m {2013 £0 2m) by Asert LLP

During the year the Group also purchased call centre related services from Mears 24/7 LLP, a company in which Mears Limited s a 50%
partner, totalling £1 9m (2013 £1 8m) The Group also recharged costs totailing £0 8m to Mears 24/7 LLP at cost At 31 December 2014

the Group owed £01m {2013 £0 3m)to Mears 24/7 LLP
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Financial statements

Principal accounting policies — Company

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and under
the historical cost convention other than financral instruments which are held at fair value

The principal accounting polictes of the Company are set out below The following accounting policies have remained unchanged
from the previous year

Investments
Investments are included at cost net of any provision for imparment

Goodwill
Goodwill rapresenting the reallocation of amounts previously classed as investments upon the hive-across of trade and assets
15 capitalised and amortised an a straight-line basis over tts estimated useful ecanomic life

Share-based employee remuneration
All share-based payment arrangements that were granted after 7 Navember 2002 are recognised In the financial statements

The Group operates equity-settled share-based remuneration ptans for its employees All employee services recerved in exchange
for the grant of any share-based remuneration are measured at their fair values These are indirectly determined by reference to the
fair value of the share options awarded Therr value 1s determined at the date of grant and 1s not subsequently remeasured unlass the
conditions on which the award was granted are modified The fair value at the date of the grant 1s calculated using the Binomial and
Monte Carlo option pricing models and the cost is recognised on a straight-line basis over thevesting period Adjustments are made
1o reflect expected and actual forfeitures during the vesting peniod

Share-based remuneration in respect of employees of the Company 1s ultimately recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss
Acceunt with a correspanding credit to share-based payment reserve The Group operates share-based remuneration plans for
employees of subsidiaries using the Company’s equity Instruments The fair value of tha compensation given in respect cf these
share-based compensation plans less payments recewved from subsidianes in respect of those share-based paymants is recognised
as a capital contribution

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs up to the nominal value
of the shares 1ssued are allocated to share capital with any excess being recorded as share premium

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 recognised on all tming differences where the transactions or events that give the Company an obligation to pay more
taxn the futurs, or a right to pay less tax in the future, have occurred by the balance sheet date Defarred tax assets are recognised
where 115 more likely than not that they will ba recovered Deferred tax s measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Retirement benefits
1) Defined contribution pension scheme
The pension costs charged aganst profits are the cantributions payable to iIndividual policies in respect of the accounting perted

1) Defined benefit pensions
The Company contributes to one defined benefit scheme

Adefined benefit plan 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or mare factors such as age, years of service and salary The legal obtigations for any benefits from this kind of pension
plan remain with the Company

Schame assets are measured at fair values Scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and
are discounted at appropriata high quality corporate bond ratas that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
liability Appropriate adjustments are made for past service costs Past service cost 1s recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis aver the average period until the benefits become vested To the extent that benefits are already vested, the Group recognises
past service cost immediately
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Retirement benefits continued

i} Defined benefit pensions continued

Actuarial gans and losses are recognised immediately through the Staternent of Total Recognised Gaing and Losses Thenet surplus
or deficit s presented with other net assets on the Parent Company Balance Sheet, net of any related deferred tax balance Asurplus
15 recognised only to the extent that it 1s recoverable by the Company

The Company's contnbutions to the scheme are paid in accerdance with the rules of the schemes and therecommendations of the actuary

Financial instruments

Financial liabilities

The Company's financial hiabilities are overdrafts, borrowings, other creditors and contingent consideration They are inctuded in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet line items ‘Creditors ameunts falling due within one year' and ‘Creditors amounts falling due after more
than one year’

All interest related charges are recognised as an expense in ‘Finance cost’in the Profit and Loss Acceunt with the exception of those
that are diractly attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset which are capitalised as part of that asset

Bank and other borrowings are imitially recognised at far value net of transaction costs Garins and losses arising on the repurchase,
settlement or otherwise cancellation of labilities are recognised respectively in finance revenue and finance costs Berrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the periad in which they are iIncurred with the exception of those which are directly attributable

10 the construction of a qualifying asset which ara capitalised as part of that asset

Contingent consideration is initially recognised at fair value and 1s subsequently measured at fair value through the Profit and Loss Accaunt

Dernvative financial instruments
The Company uses derivative financial Instruments to hedge 1ts exposure 1o (nterest rate risks arising from cperational
and financing activities

Denvative financial instruments are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value, with mark-to-market movements recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account except where cash flow hedge accounting 1s applied (see below)

The fair valus of nterest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Company would receive or pay io terminate the swap at
the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties

In accordance with its treasury policy, the Company does not hold or issue dervative financial Instruments for trading purposes
However, dervatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments Mark-to-market movements
on these denvatives are shown in the Profit and Loss Account

Hedge accounting for interest rate swaps

Where an interest rate swap 15 designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of an existing or highly prohable forecast loan
Interest payment, the effective part of any valuation gain or loss on the swap instrument is recogrised through the statement of total
recognised gains and losses in the hedging reserve The cumulative gain or toss 1s removed from equity and recognised in the Profit
and Loss Aceount at the same time as the hedged transaction The ineffective partof any gain or loss 1s recognised in the Profit

and Loss Account immediately

When a hedging Instrument or hedge retationship 1s terminated but the hedged transaction s still expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss at that pointremains In equity and I1s recogrised In accordance with the above policy when the transaction accurs

If the hadged transaction 1s no longer probable, the cumulative unrealised gain or lass recognised in equity ss recogmised in the
Profit and Loss Account immed ately
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Financial statements

Parent Company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Nota £'000 £ 000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets goodwill 5 969 1,938
Investments 3] 80,123 80,123
81,092 82,061
Current assets
Debtors 7 81,103 96 972
Cash at bank and in hand 694 —_—
81,797 96,972
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 8 (6,542) {30,077)
Net current assets 75,255 66,895
Total assets less current liabilities 156,347 148 956
Crediters amounts falling due after more than ane year 9 (57,900) (55.879}
Provisions for Liabilities
Pansion liability 14 {4,818) (3.173)
93,629 89,904
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 10 1,011 1,007
Share premium account 11 56,714 56,082
Share-based payment reserve 11 1,653 1,050
Hedging reserve 11 {962) (848)
Profit and loss account 11 35,213 32613
93,629 89,9504

Equlty s‘pa;eholders’ funds

Tm fancial statements were approved by the Boapdof Directors an 17 March 2015

R Nolt ACMSmith
Director Director E

The eccompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Company number 03232863
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Notes to the financial statements — Company

1. Profit for the financial year

The Parent Company has taken advantage of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 and has not included its own profit and loss
accaount In these financial statements The Group profit for the year includes a profitof £141m (2013 loss of £1 2m) which 1s dealt
with inthe financial statements of the Company This result 1s stated after charging auditor’s remuneration of £58,000 relating to audit

services and £4 000 relating to taxation services

2. Directors and employees
Employee benefits expense
All staff costs relate to Directors Staff costs duning the year were as follows

2014 2013
£'000 £000
Wages and salaries 1,276 1,963
Social security costs 285 1,003
Other pension costs 185 185
1,746 3161

The average number of emptoyees of the Company during the year was
2014 2013
Number Number
Office and managemant 9 10

3 Share-based employee remuneration

As at 31 December 2014 the Group maintained five share-based payment schemes far employee remuneration The details of each

scheme are included within note 5 to the consolidated finaneial statements

All share-based employea remuneration will be settled in equity The Group has no legal abligation to repurchase or gettle tha options

In total, £0 1m af employee remuneratton expense has been inctuded in the Company’s Profit and Loss Account for 2014 {2013 £0 1m),

which gave rise to additional paid-n capital Notiabilities were recognised due to share-based payment transactions

4. Dividends
The following dividends were paid on ordinary shares in the year
2014 2013
£'000 £000
Final 2013 dvidend of 6 30p (2013 final 2012 dwidend of 5§ 70p) per share 6,370 5,617
Interim 2014 dividend of 2 85p (2013 interim 2013 dividend of 2 50p) per share 2,882 2,499
9,252 8,116

The proposed final 2014 dividend of 7 15p per share has not been included within the financial statements as no obligation existed

at 31 December 2014
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Company continued

5 Goodwill
Googwill
£000
Cost
At 1January 2014 and at 31 December 2014 6,196
Amortisation
At 1January 2014 4,258
Charge for the year 969
At 31 December 2014 5,227
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 969
1,838

At 31 December 2013

Deta:ls of the impairment review undertaken at 31 December 2014 are included in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements

6. Fixed asset investments

Investment
in subsidiary
undertalangs Loans Total
£000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2014 and at 31 December 2014 58,123 22,000 80,123

Details of the principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are shown in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

7. Debtors

2014 2013
£'000 £000

Amounts owed by Group undertakings
Prepayments and accrued income
Other debtors

Corparation tax asset

Deferred tax asset

75,083 92,375
1,124 1,343
3,000 3,000

738 —
258 254

81,103 96.972

The deferred tax asset above of £0 3m 1s due after mora than one year The recoverability of the defarred tax asset 1s dependent
on future taxable profits The Company expects to realise sufficient profits to enable the deferred tax asset to be recovered

8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2014 203

£000 £ 000

Banklcan 5,000 25,000
Bank cverdraft _— 3,673
Other creditors 19 40
Accruals 1,523 1,364
6,542 30,077

Included within accruals 1s £1 5m {2013 £1 4m) relating to an interest rate hedge
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9 Creditors amounts falling due in more than one year

2014 203

£'000 E000

Bank loan 57,500 55,000
Other creditors 400 879
57,900 55,879

The Company has disclosed core bank borrowings of £57 5m as due in two to five years Whilst the amounts borrowed could be repaid

each quarter, the Company's intention 1s to align core bank borrowings with its interest rate swaps

Included In other creditors 1s £0 4m (2013 £0 9m) relating to deferred consideration on acquisitions

10. Share capital
2014 2013
£'000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At 1 January 100,661 649 (2013 §1,859,911) erdinary shares of 1p each 1,007 918
Issue of nil (2013 6,368,069) shares as a share placement — 64
lssue of 472,493 (2013 2,433,670) shares on exercise of share options 4 24
At 31 December 101,134,142 (2013 100,861,649) ordinary shares of 1p each 1,011 1007

During the year, 472,493 (2013 2,433,670) ordinary 1p shares were issied In respect of share options exercised The difference between

the norminal value of £0 004m and the total consideration of £0 6m has been credited to the share premium account

11. Share premium account and reserves
Share Share-based

Profit

Share pramum payment Hedging and loss

capltal account regserva reserve account

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1January 2014 1,007 56,082 1,050 {848) 32813
Issue of shares 4 632 — — —
Share option charges — — 670 —_ —
Exercise of share options — — {87) —_ 67
Cash flow hedge — — — (114) —
Profit for the year — - - o 14,120
Equity dmvidends — — — — {9,252)
Actuanal gain on defined benefit pension scheme net of deferred tax — — — — {2,335}
At 31 December 2014 1,011 56,714 1,653 {962) 35,213
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Company continued

12. Capital commitments
The Company had no capital commitments at 31 December 2014 or at 31 December 2013

13 Contingent habilities
The Company had no contingent liabiiities at 31 December 2014 or at 31 December 2013

14 Pensions
Defined contribution schemes
The Company contributes to personal pension schemes of the Directors

Defined benefit scheme
The Company opearates a defined benefit pension scheme for the benefit of certain employees of its subsidiary compantes
The assets of the schemes are administered by trustees in a fund independent from the assets of the Company

Costs and Liabiliies of the scheme are based on actuarial valuations The actuanal valuations were reviewed and updated
to 31 December 2014 by a qualified independent actuary using the projectad umit method

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows

2014 2013
Rate of increase of salaries - first year 100% 1 00%
Rate of increase of salaries ~ second year 2 20% 1 00%
Rate of Increase of salaries - longterm 325% 335%
Rate of increase for pensians in payment — based on RPl with a cap of 5% 315% 325%
Rate of Increase for pensions In payment - based on RPI with a cap of 3% 250% 255%
Discount rate 4 00% 4 60%
Expected rates of return on investments 4 00% 4 60%
Retail Prices inflation 325% 335%
Consumer Pnices inflation 2 35% 2 45%
Life expectancy for a 65 year old male 23years 23years
Life expectancy for a 65 year old female 25years 25years

The amounts recegnised in the Parent Company Balance Sheet and major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are

2014 2013

£'000 £000

Equities 10,723 9814
Bonds 2,475 2,085
Cash 550 368
Group's estimated asset share 13,748 12,267
Present value of funded scheme liabilities {19,771)  (16,283)
Funded status (6,023) (4,018)
Related deferred tax asset 1,205 843
Pension Liability {4,818) (3,173)
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14. Pensions contuinued
Defined benefit scheme continued
The amounts recognised in the Profit and Loss Account are as follows

2014 2013

£000 £000
Current service cost 164 207
Past service cost - _
Total operating charge 164 207
Net interest 162 148
Total charged to the result far year 326 355
Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows

2014 2013

£'000 £000
Present value of abligations at 1 January 16,283 13,818
Current service cost 164 207
Past service cost — —
Interest on obligations T4 847
Plan participants’ contributions 42 63
Benefits paid (437) (382)
Actuarnial gain anising from changes in demographic assumptions — {1,040)
Actuanial loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 2,975 1,453
Actuarial loss ansing from bability expenence —_ 1.517
Present value of obligations at 31 December 19,771 16 283
Changes (n the fawr value of the plan assets are as follows

2014 2019

£'000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 12,267 10,196
Expected return on plan assets 582 499
Employers contributions 1,155 1,147
Plan participants contnbutions 42 63
Benefits paid (437) {382)
Return on plan assets above that recorded in net interast 139 744
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 13,748 12,267
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements — Company continued

14. Pensions continued
Defined benefit scheme continued
The movements in the net pansion hability and the amount recognised in the Baiance Sheet are as fallows

2014 2013

£000 £000
Deficit 1n schemes at 1 January (4,016) {3,622)
Current service cost {164) (207)
Past service cost - -
Contributions 1,155 1,147
Other finance income {162} {148)
Actuarial gain ansing from changes in demographic assumptions — 1,040
Actuarnal loss ansing from changes in financial assumptions (2,975) {1,453)
Actuarial loss anising from liability experience —_ {1.517)
Return on plan assets above that recorded in net interest 139 744
Defiert in schemes at 31 December {6,023) {4,016)
Cumulative actuanal gains and lossas recognised in eguity are as follows

2014 2013

£'000 £000
At 1January (6,396) (5,210)
Actuarial gain ansing from changes in demographic assumptions - 1 040
Actuanal loss ansing from changes in financial assumpiions {2,975) {1,453)
Actuariai loss ansing from liability experience —_ {1.517)
Return on plan assets above that recorded in net interest 139 744
Total at 31 December (9,232) (6,396}
History of experience gains and losses are as follows

2014 2013 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000

Fair value of scheme assets 13,748 12,267 10,196 8,306
Net present vatue of defined benefit obligations (19,771) (16,283) (13,818) (13097)
Net deficit (6,023) (4,018} (3,622) (4,792)
Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets
Amount 139 744 514 {631)
Percentage of scheme assets 10% g 1% 50% (7 6%)
Experience adjustments arising on scheme liabilities
Amount —_ (1517) — —
Percentage of scheme liabilities — {9 3%) -— —

The employer’s contributions expected to be paid during the financial year ending 31 December 2015 amount to £1 Zm

15 Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption with FRS 8 not to disclose transactions with companies which are 100% owned

by the Group
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Five-year record (unaudited)

Income Statement

2014 2013 2012 2091 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000 E 000
Revenue by business segment
Social Housing 714,733 742479 504,686 415,000 379 400
Care 124,007 123,095 112550 108,518 100,358
Continuing activities 838,740 865574 617236 523,518 479,768
Discontinued activities — 32,8632 62,289 65 453 44 177
Total sales revenue 834,740 898,206 679,525 588971 523,935
Gross profit 225,061 227,960 184,305 174,764 150,633
Operaning profit before acquisstion intangible amortisation and excepttonal costs 42,995 38 392 31,181 33,608 31,320
Exceptional items —  {25,4893) (2877) (3,084) (2,450)
QOperating profit 30,667 2,039 20,323 22,731 18,751
Profit for the year before tax 29,677 277 18 199 20,682 16,362
PBT before acquisition intangible amortisation and exceptional costs 42,005 36 630 29,037 31 459 28,921
Earnings per share
Basic 25 03p {121 1961p 19 87p 17 70p
Diluted 24 65p (117)p 18 85p 19 03p 16 57p
Normalised 32 20p 28 06p 25 60p 26 01p 2338p
Dividends per share 10 00p 880p 8 00p 7 50p 675p
Balance Sheet

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets 268,818 233960 225,964 148923 1464639
Current assets 217,718 241,697 249,719 184,207 143,669
Current tiabilities (190,040) {222 508} {231,934) (169004) (1331 9)
Non-current Liabilities (102,034) (72,850) (74,831) (13341) (15635)
Total equity 194,462 180,301 168,818 151,785 141,554
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3,834 {448) (12,384) (13,429) (12,243)
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Shareholder information

Shareholder and corporate information

Financial calendar
Annual General Meeting
3June 2015

Recard date for finat divtdend
12 June 2015

Dividend warrants posted te shareholders
2July 2015

Interim results announced
18 August 2015
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1390 Montpellier Court
Gloucester Business Park
Brockworth

Gloucester GL3 4AH

Tel 01452 634600
www mearsgroup co uk

Company registration number
3232863
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Ben Westran
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Brockworth
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Tel 01452 634600
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Finzels Reach

Bristol BS1 6BX
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Tel 01242 224433
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Internet

The Group operates a website which can be
found at www mearsgroup co uk This site
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about the Group In particular all of the Group's
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The Group’s commitment to environmental issues 1s reflected n this

Annual Report which has been printed on Cocoon Offset which 1s made from
100% post-consumer fibres, FSC® certified and PCF (Process Chlorine Free)
Printed 1n the UK by Pureprint using therr altof ree’ and pureprint’ environmental
printing technology, and vegetable inks were used throughout Pureprintis &
CarbanNeutral® company Both manufacturing mill and the printer are registered
ta the Environmental Management System 1S014001 and are Forast
Stewardstup Council® (FSC) chamn-of-custody certified

The unavoidable carbon ermussions generated duning the manufacture and
delivery of this document, have been reduced to net zero through a verified
carbon offsetting project
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